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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 75, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited (“DSLA”), Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited and various other companies. He serves as a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of both DSFH and DSBG.
Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of
Foreign Investors and a Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Mr. Wong has over 45 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of DSBG, Group General Manager
of DSFH, Vice Chairman of the Bank and DSLA, and an Executive
Director of the Group’s other key operating banking and fellow

insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 63, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in
1989 and was promoted as its Managing Director in 2000 and Vice
Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed as the Managing Director
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) in 2004 and promoted
as Vice Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed as Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) in 1993 and promoted as its
Managing Director in January 2002. He ceased to be a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of both DSBG and DSFH in
September 2014. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He
is a Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a
Non-Executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co.,
Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong) in which the Group has a 14.66% equity
interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.)
and a Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and
The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K.. Mr. Wong has
over 35 years of experience in banking.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 46, joined the Bank in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010. He
was appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) in 2004 and promoted as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive in April 2011. He is also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited and Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.. Mr. Wong was
appointed as a member of The EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-
Committee, a sub-committee under the Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, in October
2014. He is a qualified solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman
of the Boards of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and DSBG.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 55, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the
overall financial management and control, operations and IT functions
of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011. Mr. Wang
was appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited in 2004. He is also a Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance Company Limited. Mr. Wang
is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wang has over 25 years
of experience in financial management and banking.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 48, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He is currently an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance
Company Limited and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. He serves as
Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible for
its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew has over 25
years of experience in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong
Kong.

Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Lau, aged 53, joined the Bank in 1992, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in
May 2014. He is currently the Head of Commercial Banking Division,
responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial banking
business. Besides, he is a committee member of SME Standing
Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
in 2015-2016 and an Executive Committee member of the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries Group 18. Mr. Lau has over 25 years of
experience in commercial banking.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 49, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
business in February 2012, responsible for the development
and management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive Director in May
2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. Ms. Wong has
over 25 years of experience in retail and personal banking business
with other banks operating in Hong Kong, including Standard
Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hau-Tak Li (Gary Li)
Alternate Chief Executive, Chief Credit Officer and Head of Group Risk

Division

Mr. Li, aged 55, joined the Bank in 2005. He has been the Chief
Credit Officer since September 2009 and assumed the role of Head
of Group Risk Division since February 2013. He was appointed as an
Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2015. Mr. Li graduated
from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree
and the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Master of Business
Administration degree. He is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in
banking.

Mr. Edmund Yue-Yeung Poon
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Poon, aged 56, joined as the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank
in July 2013, and is responsible for overseeing operations and IT
functions of the Group. He graduated from the University of Waterloo
in Canada with a Bachelor Degree of Mathematics and a Master of
Mathematics (Computer Science) Degree. Mr. Poon has 30 years
of extensive experience in operations, IT and project management
mainly covering retail and corporate banking. He has the experience in
managing both operations and IT functions of banking in Hong Kong
in a senior capacity for many years.

Mr. Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller

Mr. Poon, aged 46, joined the Bank in January 2003 as the Head of
Financial Accounting Department and was appointed as a General
Manager and the Group Financial Controller of the Bank in December
2014. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
attained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Poon has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management in the banking industry.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Florence Siu-Wai Lee
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Lee, aged 51, joined the Bank in 2000 and has been the
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources since 2005,
responsible for human resources strategies and management of the
Bank. She graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Arts degree and obtained from The University of Hull,
U.K., a Master degree in Business Administration. Ms. Lee has over 25

years of experience in human resources.

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A.

Mr. Kong, aged 53, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau) in July 2012. Mr. Kong has over 27 years
of experience in banking and finance business with other banks in
Hong Kong including Daiwa Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, and had
focused on corporate and institutional banking business management
for the last 12 years in DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited before joining
the Bank.

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 53, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Head of Business Development of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in September 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in December 2014 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in February 2015. Mr. Yau has 29 years of
experience in the banking industry in China and Hong Kong, and had
assumed various senior executive positions in Standard Chartered
Bank before joining the Bank.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are
the provision of banking, financial and other related services. The

principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 17.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$1.80 per share,
totalling HK$111,600,000.00, which was paid on 22 September 2015.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$6.10
per share, totalling HK$378,200,000.00.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown
in Note 40 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
Note 41 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$2,174,000.00.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and of the Bank during
the year are shown in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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Exg DIRECTORS
RNEFARERREBHRIERRITES A - The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:
B David Shou-Yeh Wong
e Chairman
£ Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
EY A Vice Chairman
F 48 Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EY A Vice-Chairman
EEE* Robert Tsai-To Sze*
REE™ Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*
ELR Lon Dounn*
R s ) > Seng-Lee Chan*
RIRHE* Yuen-Tin Ng*
FirZ Gary Pak-Ling Wang
BRI TIARH Managing Director and Chief Executive
HEE Nicholas John Mayhew
HITEFFEBTHAAH Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
RUpkiE Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
HITEFEFRETTTHAAE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
T2 Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
HITEFEFRETTTHAAE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
CBUHPMITEE * Independent Non-Executive Directors
AR ARIT A ERABTEEEAREBESE There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for
2T MEREIESEERT - retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the
date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of the relevant shares
traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. For options granted before the commencement of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3 March 2014, the nominal
value of the shares in the capital of DSFH and DSBG had been taken
into account in determining the exercise price per option share. (The
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) adopts a mandatory system of
no nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated companies having
a share capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for all
shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of DSFH and
DSBG have no nominal value.) The options granted can be exercised
in varying amounts between the first and fifth anniversaries from the
date of grant in general.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015
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(Continued)

SENAFENEZESTE 2 ESPENT ¢ Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described
below:

(a) AX¥FeHEEERLARRESSZ ([ KX (@)  Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option Schemes (the

EHESE R [ AL EF 2 ])

RIBFTZERBIER AR AT EREBAER
RNAN([ K&/ ]) R2005F 4 A28 B &%
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20154 4 A28 H & ° 7201545 A 27
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BERTE TREZ HARTTERBAAE -

FAIEARTEEEETANERE
T8 (REfEMAT) AT B8 (BH
HERGE) T2 R RBERENES
TEAMERMET ISR ET
Rz RREMESAHF S/ R -
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“Old DSFH Scheme” and the “New DSFH Scheme”)

The share option scheme of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), the Bank’s ultimate holding company,
adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old DSFH Scheme”) had expired
on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New
DSFH Scheme”). No further options can be offered under the
Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration but the provisions of the
Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to exercise of all options granted prior
to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme but not yet exercised
at the time of expiration.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Director of the
Bank, had outstanding options granted under the Old DSFH
Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the Old DSFH Scheme (before its expiration) or
the New DSFH Scheme (since its commencement) and none
of the Directors had acquired shares in DSFH by exercising
options granted under the Old DSFH Scheme or the New DSFH
Scheme.
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EEEHES
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

(®)

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSBG Scheme” and the “New DSBG Scheme”)

The shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
the Bank’s immediate holding company, approved the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and,
at the same time, the termination of the Share Option Scheme
adopted by DSBG on 12 June 2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”)
at the annual general meeting of DSBG held on 27 May 2014.
No further options can be offered under the Old DSBG Scheme
after its termination but the provisions of the Old DSBG Scheme
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to exercise of all options granted prior to the termination
of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet exercised at the time of
termination.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling
Wang, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong, Directors of the Bank, had
outstanding options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the New DSBG Scheme. Save for Ms. Phoebe Mei-
Chun Wong who had acquired shares in DSBG by exercising
options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme, no other
Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by exercising options
granted under the Old DSBG Scheme or the New DSBG
Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its

subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party

to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Bank or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been set out in Note 44 to the financial
statements.
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FEIEEI B STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

RIRHIEZ2015F12 A31B L FEFBHHRE In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
B AT 2 ERESSREERMNRT 2015, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
2R )R EEOAIFEBH 2 CIRITEHRE ) RANZ the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
BIHEENXK - KiRITE 2 ERAZBEENK - Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AT AUDITORS

AP ERRO LR R KES R ESTEZ - The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
ZIZBEBEREER - ARTENARITERZ who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
[ 5 A X AT o the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

AEEGMD On behalf of the Board

Ep¥ David Shou-Yeh Wong

*E Chairman

#2016 FE3 A22H Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
up to 22 March 2016, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Sou-Chao (Kenneth CHAN)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)
LAU Shing-Tat Eddie

LI Hau-Tak (Gary LlI)

LI Koon-Sing (Patrick LI) *

MA Wai-Kin Thomas *

Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin

POON Clement

POON Wing-Fai Jimmy

SZE Tsai-To Robert

TSANG Yuk-Fong Elly

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe
WONG Shou-Yeh David
WONG Tsu-Hing Harold
WOOCO NOMINEES LIMITED *
YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)
ZHANG Fu *

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
subsidiary(ies) of the Bank.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

HZE2015F12 A31 BIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
L
Note 2015 2014
MBI A Interest income 5,053,627 4,932,721
FIEZH Interest expense (1,716,730)  (1,940,224)
FER WA Net interest income 7 3,336,897 2,992,497
AR5 E KBS WA Fee and commission income 1,129,685 1,061,287
R E ke H Fee and commission expense (220,048) (229,567)
FIREERASBA Net fee and commission income 8 909,637 831,720
FEERA Net trading income 9 196,573 214,421
H e E A Other operating income 10 61,631 59,586
EEWA Operating income 4,504,738 4,098,224
BB Operating expenses 11 (2,250,608) (2,150,366)
MBRFE R 2 & E %A Operating profit before impairment losses 2,254,130 1,947,858
EFREBEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 18} (496,352) (472,962)
HNBRETREREEEE 2 W Operating profit before gains and losses
K5 Al E R A on certain investments and fixed assets 1,757,778 1,474,896
HE H AL B E & E 2 FE R Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (1,434) (2,579)
WEYMEATERARZ Net gain on fair value adjustment of
U investment properties 10,268 41,127
HEREAFIRE 2 F W E Net gain on disposal of investments
in securities 14 16,568 17,036
RELEH S A RRE 2 B Loss on deemed disposal of
investment in an associate 17 (47,617) -
N e Share of results of an associate 665,942 602,299
FEAG HERIERIE RS 2 ¥ 4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 21,945 20,657
BB DR R Profit before taxation 2,423,450 2,153,436
I8 Taxation 15 (308,530) (226,179)
S8R 1T IR 3R PE AL 5 R A Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 2,114,920 1,927,257
B’BE Dividends
2k B S Interim dividend paid 18 111,600 -
BRAREAIR S Proposed final dividend 18 378,200 -
F22HEEF 190 B 2 AN G sk 2 — The notes on pages 22 to 190 are an integral part of these
& o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

HZE2015F12 A31BIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2015
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2015 2014
FEERF Profit for the year 2,114,920 1,927,257
FEHMEEmRE Other comprehensive income for the year
HegtegsmofEmRe Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
Wz ARA9IER - to the consolidated income statement:
TE Premises
REBENSBRITER Reserves arising from reclassification
KB R of premises to investment properties 1,393 36,533
ARE S EHMHEE Items that may be reclassified to the
e WERMIER ¢ consolidated income statement:
BHFRE Investments in securities
RN R Al EES Fair value gains on available-for-sale
N ERE securities recognised in equity 57,262 258,976
AFE (W), EIEEE R Fair value (gain)/loss realised and transferred
B E R to income statement upon:
—HEHEERES - Disposal of available-for-sale securities (16,568) (21,692)
— HERERRAHEE - Disposal of investments in securities
HAREFHEE included in the loans and receivables
BREEER R ERFIE category which were previously reclassified
Al 2 BHIRE from the available-for-sale category - 3,756
KEEHREZS 2BERIE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve 6,365 (33,934)
47,059 207,106
BRE G BRERNELEZR Exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign entities (209,767) (108,599)
HRFIER 2 FEEMEER Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,

(E18),Mas net of tax (161,315) 135,040
HBRBEREZEFES MW SBAEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,953,605 2,062,297
FEEEE190 B 2 M A G A RE T — The notes on pages 22 to 190 are an integral part of these
ZR4y o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

2015412 A31H
(PAB R TITALTR)

As at 31 December 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2015 2014

BE ASSETS
& RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 19 17,505,032 14,838,111
ERITTHTFER Placements with banks 7,497,860 5,324,811
%WEE%LW% Trading securities 20 8,572,394 6,850,362
EENAFEGZBEEE)A Financial assets designated at fair value

Tﬁﬁﬁmﬁmﬁéé through profit or loss 20 16,498 9,821
PTESRTEA Derivative financial instruments 21 1,079,328 756,829
%ﬁ%%’x&ﬁm,ﬁﬁ B Advances and other accounts 22 118,415,448 115,858,861

A E Available-for-sale securities 23 24,187,845 23,351,747
258 Held-to-maturity securities 24 10,476,296 10,832,940
/N T&ﬁ Investment in an associate 26 4,099,217 3,746,918

HEZEHIEEIEE Investments in jointly controlled entities 27 71,119 65,694
Wiﬁ%? Goodwill 28 811,690 811,690
| EE Intangible assets 28 59,805 61,844
TEREMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 30 2,871,587 2,728,208
REWE Investment properties 31 930,257 745,166
BT EE Deferred income tax assets 37 83,473 80,591
EESS Total assets 196,677,849 186,063,593
=L LIABILITIES
HRITIFR Deposits from banks 1,550,911 1,572,467
PTEESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 21 1,458,432 1,146,825
HIEEEREMARE Trading liabilities 33 6,270,630 5,597,614
BRER Deposits from customers 34 151,092,390 143,234,437
B BITF R Certificates of deposit issued 35 6,231,837 6,109,777
RIEERS Subordinated notes 36 5,319,894 5,432,378
Hbfz B KkIEIR Other accounts and accruals 2,608,112 2,645,717
BIEATIE B (F Current income tax liabilities 201,204 206,392
FEREFTEE & Deferred income tax liabilities 37 37,543 55,056
=N = Total liabilities 174,770,953 166,000,663
R EQUITY
A& Share capital 40 6,200,000 6,200,000
Hinf#E (BEREEF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 41 15,706,896 13,862,930
BEER Total equity 21,906,896 20,062,930
BERABEaT Total equity and liabilities 196,677,849 186,063,593

FEE20 2016 3 A 22 Bt /E RIFRERM o

March 2016.
FE FHEHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EF EZE Director Director
HER FEE Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
EE EEAEAETE Director Managing Director
Eo2EEE190 B 2 e ARG S B RE 2 — The notes on pages 22 to 190 are an integral part of these

okk

AbD e

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2015F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REBITRREEER
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Bank
(&S Hith & B REEF EREE
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
201541 A1 BH#E&R Balance at 1 January 2015 6,200,000 1,362,855 12,500,075 20,062,930
FE2HKEERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - (161,315) 2,114,920 1,953,605
LARR #E 2 1S LARR 19 1E 7% Provision for equity-settled
RN 2 Bt share-based compensation - 1,961 = 1,961
2015 FHHIR S 2015 interim dividend - - (111,600) (111,600)
201512 B 31 B#&# Balance at 31 December 2015 6,200,000 1,203,501 14,503,395 21,906,896

BZ12A31HILEE
Year ended 31 December

2015 2014
BREAMRBAENNA Proposed final dividend included
2R AR EAAR B in retained earnings 378,200 -
AERITIG R (G
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Bank
&N H A RE AT HEmAE
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
201441 A1 B Balance at 1 January 2014 5,000,000 1,224,061 10,822,818 17,046,879
FEL2EREAEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 135,040 1,927,257 2,062,297
BT E BRI GD Issue of ordinary shares 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
VARG HESZ ST LARR A 1E 5 Provision for equity-settled
ELRE RN 2 B % share-based compensation = 3,754 = 3,754
2013 G R HBAR 5. 2013 final dividend - - (250,000)  (250,000)
2014 %12 A31 B&E% Balance at 31 December 2014 6,200,000 1,362,855 12,500,075 20,062,930

H

okr

7R3 ©
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22BHZEF 190 B Z M I AGRE M HRE 2 —

consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 22 to 190 are an integral part of these
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

HZE2015F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2015 2014
RETFH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
LEEBRAR S F5 Net cash from operating activities 42(a) 2,079,708 6,442,760
RETHZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETE  REVER Purchase of premises, investment
HAbEEEE properties and other fixed assets (493,198) (1,242,556)
HETE  KEMER Proceeds from disposal of premises,
HAth [EE & EFTS5E investment properties and
other fixed assets 23 178
HEEEFTRAIR & F 5 Net cash used in investing activities (493,175)  (1,242,378)
RETERESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BITIRBET Issue of subordinated notes = 1,731,250
B BITREGS RMES Interest paid on subordinated notes
BHZHE and debt securities issued (278,573) (246,560)
fE Bl (B 7558 5 Debt securities redeemed - (775,285)
BT EmERAR D Issue of ordinary shares = 1,200,000
k2 BB AR AR B Dividends paid on ordinary shares (111,600) (250,000)
BMEES (FTA) AR FE Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (390,173) 1,659,405
RERERRELEREMFEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,196,360 6,859,787
FURERERRESIEHE Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 16,080,566 9,305,124
MESRMATE 7 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (127,472) (84,345)
ERBEERERRELEE Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 42(b) 17,149,454 16,080,566
F22BEEF 190 B 2 NAGE P THRERZ — The notes on pages 22 to 190 are an integral part of these
2o o consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABREFThzgI7R)

1. —RER
REBITERA T (TARIT)) EEH B AT (45
BIAEE)DESS BFRTEEETER
17 BEBTREMBESRRE -

RNIRIT T —RAEBBEMAO SRR - st
REBEFELITE108 R AT SR O 3642 °

KBTI ZHRBRERABDARFCREBRBERAE R
BE—ELETRA]

BB AERN - IR A PR IRER LS E T iz
FI/R > WER2016F3 A2 HES T2 %

AT RREAMBREAFEN EREHBE
BB AR - BEBEM B FEPRRE B -

2.1 mEEXE

REBEZGEVBERRZRELSAMAE(EH
BEFMAE]) IRBZMBERTENBRE
RA(TEEMBREEA] - REEMBERE
RHBARBHHREED BEGFHEN(EES
SAEADAREREZSH)  EEEBRRMAZ
2T RRAIRES R GRS

A MBRERTDBBEELKATRERE - A
RREYE  AREEZEREE  KIEEER
BEBREEREBRABNEENAFHENER
HEHFTARGNEREERERAR(BEN
ATR) Z2E[MEHAE  WIRAFEIK -

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 22 March 2016.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities held for trading, and financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) designated at fair
value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.



B A5 R Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABREFThzgI7R)

2. FESHBEBSEm

2.1 wEEXE@m)

REN BBV BRELN M BHRACHE
FEEZEzgiths TAEEERERALSES
RS R HE - RABZBREFBEZEME
AR EZSME M BEBRRENEATZE - B
EEREARNRREEBNE RAKE 287
BRAFIEINEM IR L RS - B RFE
H S EE R B - RESAMBRRTE
BAZBREME - TR 4 HIREE -

(7F) FrE&ERAINFH(622%)

BB A RHEGI(622F ) ([FARIED ) E
9MDARE RBEZIZ A E B AMBRFERE
R GEMBHRERAETERZZI R
RERMELER -

(Z) FEBFN T RAASETER]

AR AREBR201591 A 1 Bk A R4
Z R EOR AR 2 ERIERT ¢

BB B ELERA R 2010F £2012 F
BN FEEERB BN BHREERE 85
(EBEBHIE) - BEBEHERIFE165(M
¥ HERREBEIRESSFAERF 385
(EEZEEIMBBEAEFE 245 HEA
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“NCO”) come
into operation during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1 January 2015:

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs - 2010-
2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8, “Operating segments”, HKAS 16,
“Property, plant and equipment” and HKAS 38, “Intangible
assets” and HKAS 24, “Related party disclosures”.

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs - 2011-
2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3, “Business combinations”, HKFRS 13,
“Fair value measurement” and HKAS 40, “Investment property”.

The adoption of the improvements made in the 2010-2012 Cycle
has required additional disclosures in the segment note. Other
than that, the remaining amendments are not material to the
Group.
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2. FESTHBEHSE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 REEXE @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(A7) KERANZ FPER R FE (c)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
BHAR A IS MR ARIZEZHEA— LR A number of new standards and amendments to standards and

20151 A1 BABHAR 2 FEHARER 2
HrER| AR 2 EFTFIREE o BT 5I %8
Hh - FBER B EM e HAEE 2 FRE S

interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2015, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of these is

WMREBBATE . expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except for the following
standards:

iy BRVBRSEFIF(EMIE) () HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the

mlEMEENEMBEZDE 5 classification, measurement and recognition of financial
= MR o TERAZBEBIIEHRE assets and financial liabilities. The complete version of
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HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the guidance in
HKAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the
mixed measurement model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in
equity instruments are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception
to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income not recycling. There is now a new expected credit
losses model that replaces the incurred loss impairment
model used in HKAS 39. For financial liabilities there were
no changes to classification and measurement except
for the recognition of changes in own credit risk in other
comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements
for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright line hedge
effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship
between the hedged item and hedging instrument and for
the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one management
actually use for risk management purposes.

Contemporaneous documentation is still required but is
different to that currently prepared under HKAS 39. The
Group has already commenced the assessment of the
full impact and so far has not decided to early adopt the
standard, which shall be effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”
deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles
for reporting useful information to users of financial
statements about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an
entity’s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised
when a customer obtains control of a good or service
and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain
the benefits from the good or service. The standard
replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 and earlier application is permitted. The
Group is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31

December.

(@

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over

which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity

when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect

those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are

consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to

the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control

ceases.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment

loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.
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2. FEEHBEBEm@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 HZEHMBHEK @ 2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
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(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the
income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the

income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is

EEFHEES - ER—FEREE—2 subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
2 o unilateral control over the economic activity.

HAEZEGIERE XS BERBERES The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
SEEAR o A WERBIEARSEEEL are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The

HRAZEHEERFEESE  MEATBHR
MERABEANEBEELREHEEE
EFE -
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consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

25 BREWA 2.5 Dividend income
A B P 78 B2 1B WA BR AT F5R oz AR ) 0 e S By 1 W e R Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
o

tr

right to receive payment is established.
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2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

26 TREE 2.6 Financial assets

26.1 7% 2.6.1 Classification

AEBBECREESR SUTER « LAFES The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

ERESHHABRENSREE  ERKEEK financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

H BRI PERELRAIHEESHEE - %08 receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale

BURRBAZEMEEZBRN - BRERERFE financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which

BREEEN AR EEEREENET the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

N RIS EESENRNEEE/EL IR AR HE classification of its financial assets at initial recognition, except for

R subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant

asset reclassification.

(FF) URFEFEARZEA B S (a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
HEE
LRI BR/NVE : BIEEERRZ This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
PREERNBAREEAALEFE trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
HEFT A ABRNEeREE at inception.
WETBAZEMEETERIENHESH A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
BN MBEEENEBARNLIETE - BIsE principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
BAEBEEBERE - ITELTAKRIEEEE designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
BENFRRR  BRINERABIEEBERR - held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
REBEBAFTE T 2 IGHER - RYIBTHE The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
AT EEAEEUNATEFER as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
HEE)E AR (AN TETRRIE) - option) if the following criteria are met:
(i) BB SRR HBE AT R EMEt 2 (i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
SEREE - iR B L IE T recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
— Bz iER (A [estiahdl) accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from

measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;

(i) ARIEFIAZ B E R E RS B IR (i) A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
—HEREE  WARFEEERT is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
HERE  RZAREEREBEEE documented risk management or investment strategy, and
B(ESEe MITHAK)IREERE this is the basis on which information about the assets is
EMREER % provided internally to the key management personnel such

as the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i) AMITETEMNESBEEMZARDT (iii)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
HT B 7R &R R EE S I IEER characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
REER o not closely related to the host contracts.
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2.

2.6

2.6.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require
adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
2.6.3 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.6

2.6.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets
are derecognised. Upon derecognition, the gains and losses
previously recognised in equity are reclassified into the income
statement.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on

held-to-maturity investments.
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2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;
o Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been
renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past due
again is considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial

liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value and are derecognised when the

obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. The bases for the

determination of fair value of financial liabilities are set out in Note

3.5(a).

@

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held

for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or

loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred

principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It

is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through

profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the

characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between
the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the income statement under “Net trading income”. For derivatives
that are managed in conjunction with designated financial assets
or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in
their fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to

counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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POLICIES (Continued)
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All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding

item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or

remaining period of lease

—  Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10

years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and
buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets (Continued)

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s
share of the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that
entity in the Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s
share of the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including
goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income
within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

49



DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

50

LY P e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

2. FEEHBEBEm@

2.19 BHA R IRFEFEIE ()

i s = R A] A LA BT 88 R R B AT RE K 3R 2 JRER TR
wm A - EINEREMSHEEAR - BEHIA
BERORBEENZFE R AN HEARRATEE
EEZ RV BEEAREE

RIFEREZR 2 BOBmAEEEH MR ERER
RATEET SR BARED - ARECHRER
MEAR  BMEQRLARZEHERMELZE
R RIEH R

AR EMEZRERBRERRZERED
A2 3B 3 6 TR [ Ui L R T B2 T 75 AR 1 At

o

fBD e

HEBMFEHEEREZ A FERBDELTHR
B TEREESRINR S ARRER - AR
BRI E RSN WS R AR o

2.20 EERF
(F) BUhzEE

KERE BRI ARS RS ARER
FORINEE] - SHEIZAE - REBUER
ZESHE RS BB EBIEEAR
BB T -

=

S B[R SR B AR 25 8 R IUEHBURIK
AN ZHFREENKEEBEAH -
BREGRHIMEATRSEIIN  KEAHET
ERZEEVSREF 2 M5 AR H 5 8 W K
RNz R E HK R IEFIR AR

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@)  Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 BEEA @)
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2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)
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The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
capital” account.

(c)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the

financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversee and guide the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction
of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy and
direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the tolerance
for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of return and
key corporate objectives and covers the areas including target
returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and other key
risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring
of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular
reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”)
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the
committees responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio
monitoring of the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These
committees are all chaired by the Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”) with certain Executive Directors and senior
business and credit officers as members. Credit risk measurement,
underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements are detailed in
credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management based
upon established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit
exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and
controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s
internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure
compliance with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

(@

Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and

to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,

the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk

of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or

counterparty; and (iii) the amount of impairment allowances.

(i)

(i)

(i)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.83.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.

Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both

outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(b)  Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee, documentary
letter of credit, standby letter of credit and undrawn commitment
on legally bound facilities. Their credit risk is similar to loans
except for documentary letters of credit which are usually short
term and self-liquidating and carry a low level of credit risk and
capital charge.

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d) Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.
3.2

3.2.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d) Derivatives (Continued)

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control

concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or

counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower

or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their

exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are

capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the

overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to

the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All

these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the
GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating of
individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and their
characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are the
respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional
recourse to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements
provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

o Charges over deposits.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.

(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to enter
into International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement
or analogous master agreement in order to follow the
standardised market practice of close-out netting arrangement
in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also

in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and
derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at
the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under
HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
. Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
° Deterioration in the value of collateral.

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)
Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below

do not have individual impairment.

TR FAREEEABRBRAERRERI
BEZARFRARN AP LA REEERER
M RSNz HERRE 2 (ERIFTh AR & REHE) Y

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)

EE® -

covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three

broad internal rating classes.

2015 2014
WEZERE B
BT IEERERE
Bok Ao
Impairment Impairment
ERRBI  allowance EHmE#EF  allowance
Bo as a % of B as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
advances balance advances balance
% % % %
487 Class
1—1E% 1 - pass 98.6 0.3 99.2 0.2
2—RRlEEE 2 — special mention 0.3 8.9 0.2 10.1
3— IR IAT 3 — sub-standard or below 1.1 29.9 0.6 41.7
100.0 100.0
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
324 R AEEEZHEHEEAEMEEREE 3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
FiZBEEEREREE or other credit enhancements
2015 2014

FHEERGBERNEEZ Credit risk exposures relating to

EERBRENT : on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
IR & RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 17,505,032 14,838,111
FERITHIFR Placements with banks 7,497,860 5,324,811
HIEEBERZNES Trading securities 8,572,394 6,850,362
EENAFEFZBESE Financial assets designated at fair

ATABENEREE value through profit or loss 16,498 9,821
PTEEmMTA Derivative financial instruments 1,098,418 756,829
BEEERRBR Loans and advances to customers

EAEF LB Loans and advances to individuals

— AR — Credit cards 4,706,017 4,057,656

—IRIBER - Mortgages 31,273,079 29,109,305

—HAh — Others 9,729,001 8,660,111

EEERRBK Loans and advances to corporate

entities

—BHER - Term loans 29,150,773 29,903,231

—IBER - Mortgages 16,023,858 14,082,486

—BI5mE — Trade finance 7,986,955 7,135,572

—HAh — Others 10,762,963 12,289,676
BHER Trade bills 6,469,899 7,384,057
Hh&EE Other assets 3,030,653 3,771,683
AEHER S Available-for-sale securities

—BEBES - Debt securities 23,733,525 22,960,307
FE L EE S Held-to-maturity securities 10,476,296 10,832,940

188,033,221 177,966,958

FHREAEAGBRINER Z Credit risk exposures relating to

FEERBRENT : off-balance sheet items are as follows:
ISR EEMEERBE Financial guarantees and other credit

HARBE related contingent liabilities 1,215,161 1,487,700
B EREMEERREZ Loan commitments and other credit

I related commitments 69,244,002 69,193,856

70,459,163 70,681,556

12 A31H At 31 December 258,492,384 248,648,514
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.4 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014, without
taking into account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

. 4% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2014: 5%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 98% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2014: 98%);

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually
or collectively impaired constituted 0.75% (2014: 0.35%) of the
total loans and advances to customers; and

. 73% (2014: 71%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2015 2014
i HA R AR (B R RUE Neither past due nor individually
impaired 107,028,100 103,548,804
BEMERERRE Past due but not individually impaired 1,808,227 1,340,946
BB E Individually impaired 796,319 348,287
foks] Gross 109,632,646 105,238,037
B OREEE Less: allowance for impairment (686,025) (508,813)
FEE Net 108,946,621 104,729,224
2015 2014
BEER K Impaired loans and advances
— AR E (G (R)) — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 796,319 348,287
— 4R ARE (GE(2)) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 21,815 20,179
818,134 368,466
AL Impairment allowances made
— BRI (FE(R)) - Individually assessed (Note (c)) (327,953) (217,744)
— kAR (F(2)) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (20,026) (18,578)
(347,979) (236,322)
470,155 132,144
BHEERRATE Fair value of collaterals held * 582,726 169,394
BEERRBRIERFER Impaired loans and advances as a %
MaFmE s Bkt of total loans and advances to
customers 0.75% 0.35%
* EHRGAFEDRBERERMERERREELS o Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

# MEPREEEE

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. HMBERERE @
3.2 FERR®@
325 B R 4
=5

() ERREERDZEETAERREEREET
—HREMHEREERENTERREERE (1B
=D BN - MRBEREFEZER AR
RREREERTE - WA FEHEE -

(2) HRMERRRBIIEZENGAEEERER
HEVEER RN 2R E B BHRERBERBHIORZ
ER KRB - ZER D25 2R EE KRS R
BEEFTERGAREERN &) °

(A) ALERREEREZRBBERN2/31BE
Z B AmEE -

ERRBR 2R ELERFEEER686,025,000%
70 (2014 4F : 508,813,000/8 7T ) © £ 4F % @ 7!
A E K 2 % %327,953,0007% T (2014 4F :
217,744,00078 7T ) R ikir & R ET 0 E X
2 BB 4T A % {5358,072,0007% T (2014 4F -
291,069,000/7T) © 222 HELZ AEFER
KRB R EAMIR B (B 2 REEFEER -

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.
3.2

3.2.5

Note:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances is
HK$686,025,000 (2014: HK$508,813,000), comprising an allowance
of HK$327,953,000 (2014: HK$217,744,000) for the individually
impaired loans and the overall collective impairment allowances
of HK$358,072,000 (2014: HK$291,069,000) provided on loans

assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the impairment

allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to customers,

and other accounts is provided in Note 22.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEF KRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF) RS REZ B R EHN (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBTEAR EEEEAERTRE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB T — AR BRI 52 8.2.8 1R I3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
EHVERE - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.8.
A (ZERF) ¥ RRERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities BRER
=il 5% Total loans
Credit  %BEX Ht  BHER  REER Trade H4ty and advances
015%12A31A At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
A5 Class:
1-I% 1-pass 4,651,874 30,761,014 9542438 28917171 15,721,219 7,542,065 9,824,553 106,960,394
2-HREE 2 - special mention - - 10,963 4,000 2,869 34,961 12,589 65,382
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 613 1,660 - 51 - - 2,34
A Total 4,651,874 30,761,627 9,555,061 28921171 15,724,199 7,577,026 9,837,142 107,028,100
A (ZEZF) i1 RPEHR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities ER
i 2584 Total loans
Credt  REEH i AHER  REER Trade £t and advances
014127318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others to customers
i Class:
1-I% 1-pass 4,001,781 28,709,991 8495624 29800290  13931,329 6,847,063  11,644961 103,431,039
-kl 2 - special mention - - - 18,500 31,023 37,122 16,689 104,234
3- RS 3 - sub-standard or below - 297 954 11,184 1,026 - 70 13,531
A Total 4,001,781 28,710,288 8496578  29,829974 13964278 6,884,185 11,661,720 103,548,804
ERBR A TER Z IR IBE R E EHK Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were
2 B RERB T EAARBE - assessed as not impaired after taking into consideration the

value and recovery of collaterals.
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZEREE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BEFRB (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z2) EEHERFES B R (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EA(BEEF) % EFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities 845
=ik EEE Total loans
Credit  REBEH At BHER  RBER Trade Efty and advances
20155125318 At 31 December 2015 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others to customers
A1 EASAT Past due up to 1 month 32,555 422,907 135,387 10,649 170,200 74,775 517,262 1,363,735
SE1ERNE Past due more than 1 month
23{dA and up to 3 months 11,000 61,160 25,094 5,037 18,779 6,532 90,016 217,618
BHSEANLE Past due more than 3 months
26f8A and up to 6 months 6,105 - 8,901 7,850 - 1,279 51,238 75,373
#H6EANE Past due more than 6 months 4,483 16,995 b 37,168 21,284 240 71,326 151,501
At Total 54,143 501,062 169,387 60,704 210,263 82,826 729,842 1,808,227
FEERRATE Fair value of collaterals * - 500,661 4,523 59,259 205,800 25,115 653,554 1,448,912
EA(ZERR) 13 EFEFR
Indlvidual (retail customers) Corporate entities B
Hiiny 2588 Total loans
Credit  %BER i BHER  EBER Trade £H and advances
0145124318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others to customers
S ERINUT Past due up to 1 month 33,321 355,169 129,107 13,059 101,648 48,782 449,440 1,130,526
PE1EANE Past due more than 1 month
EXLE and up to 3 months 11,654 24,033 22,858 - 8,237 24,294 52,159 143,235
#H3EANE Past due more than 3 months
Z6fHA and up to 6 months 6,566 10,669 6,309 - - - 12,444 35,988
BH6EANE Past due more than 6 months 4,334 4,761 5 - = 240 21,857 31,197
At Total 55,875 394,632 158,279 13,059 109,885 73,316 535,900 1,340,946
FERARCATE Fair value of collaterals * - 390,398 3,367 3,469 109,623 12,987 463,764 983,608
* EHGZ AFEEEERGRTELER * Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market value of
REELH  MEPREEME ° collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBERERE @ &

3.2 FEREM @

325 B RBH (&)
(Z) BHERBEZ BEHREL (&) (b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)

Loans and advances past due but not impaired (Continued)

VIR TERE R R B - AR R Rz
FEDKEEFGEBAEEZGET AN

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the

o BERERE ZEMBZAFEDNZE
M ER R A R Bm B -

(A) EFIREZ &P B KRB

AREB R AKBEFFRFRZRERAT
ZERREZEFPER MBI A 796,319,000
77T (2014 4F : 348,287,000757T) °

{E R RE & % & VR 2 4 RE S AN 5 B P %
TEER 2 BRI @ A S ER AR S a0
T

particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of
similar assets.

(c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers of
the Group before taking into consideration the cash flows from
collateral held is HK$796,319,000 (2014: HK$348,287,000).

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

HERE-
fIA(SEEF) % fERISF{
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5RE allowances -
BBEX A EHEX  REER Trade A &t individual
2015%12R31A At 31 December 2015 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
{ARIHEER Individually impaired loans 10,390 4,553 168,898 89,396 327,103 195,979 796,319 327,953
FERARCATE Fair value of collaterals® 10,365 3,001 118,088 79,433 220,273 151,566 582,726
EER-
A (ZEZR) % {EIRIGT1E
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
SOE allowances -
HEE At BEEN  REEX Trade it A3 individual
0145124318 At 31 December 2014 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
ERIREER Individually impaired loans 4,385 5,054 60,198 8,323 178,071 92,056 348,267 217,744
FRERRZATHE" Fair value of collaterals* 4,385 3,391 6,509 7,304 91,168 56,637 169,394
* ERR 2 AFEDBREERRTERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined as the lower of the market value of

REES  MEPREEME

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRB &) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #2EI3 187 ULEZ B KRB (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
)y BwHKREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
2015 2014
BHAEER BBREE
ERHE Exuem
Gross h4%E Gross kg
amount of BA amount of Bt
overdue loans % of total  overdue loans % of total
AEERFEN Gross advances to customers
B5 - wE which have been overdue for:
—3EAUER - six months or less but over
61&A three months 229,892 0.21 97,112 0.09
—6EANERE1E - one year or less but over
six months 260,593 0.24 39,052 0.04
—1EH)E - over one year 209,635 0.19 185,726 0.18
700,120 0.64 321,890 0.31
(iy BEAREEBERRBRZREERK (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
FrFF A miE against overdue loans and advances
EXRBR kil HEER-

KEBEE B gl gl HirfE g {4
Outstanding Current  FrAEDH ReREDH ERHEEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion  Portion not Other allowances -

loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual

2015128318 At 31 December 2015 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation  assessment
BHREEEPESREF  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 700,120 1,196,607 525,584 174,536 - 213,854
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BFRBZ (&) 3.2.5 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #2EI31EFULEZ BRI (%) (d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)
(i) BHREEERRBRZBEEERER (i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
PR mE (&) against overdue loans and advances (Continued)
ERREH EHm REEE-
REEHE R gl BHA EifzE BRI
Outstanding Current  FAESH Re&dEdh EBRFEEE  Impairment
amount of market Portion Portion not Other  allowances -
loans and valueof  coveredby  covered by credit risk individual
2014%F12 831 H At 31 December 2014 advances collateral collateral collateral mitigation ~ assessment

AHAEERPEZ P Overdue loans and advances
to customers 321,890 233,734 160,454 161,436 - 146,562

i nEE AIRER RIREE - Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and
mortgage over properties.

(%) #EHEZ (EHEG EIEFE L2 8 (e) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
AEZ) overdue advances shown above
HBEE D {HBREE DL
2015 % of total 2014 % of total
BEPEX Advances to customers 243,284 0.22 171,817 0.16

BB L Impairment allowances 15,825 =
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 BZEE 3.2.6 Trade bills
M2015F 12 A1 H - @ EAKEE3E AN £ As at 31 December 2015, there were trade bills overdue for six months
Z6AAKGEANLEE1FZESZR DR A or less but over three months and for one year or less but over six
1,975,000 75 7T & 3,070,000 7% 7T R W0 R E 2 & months of HK$1,975,000 and HK$3,070,000 respectively and no trade
SEE (2014 F : ££) - bills were impaired (2014: Nil).
327 WEIH #m 3.2.7 Repossessed collateral
RERFE 2 WREEARAT Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:
2015 2014
BEME Nature of assets
ek Repossessed properties 140,163 69,680
HAfth Others 7,464 315
147,627 69,995
e QIR A TEARREE - BUEIER N Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
AR B 2 B RARERETS proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.
{5 7] 238 4218 5 63,255,000,% 7T (2014 & - Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
66,228,000/8 70 ) 2 E R BN A H T HE MY realisable value of HK$63,255,000 (2014: HK$66,228,000), which had
¥ - DHASERER B AMEREH 2 ESMT been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
e LA B R B o 23K Gn R 2 A 5E 32 issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
ZIEMEE| BTORIEBEE ZEE - 182 Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note

BB IETER - 32. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 FERR®@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

328 EHEF 3.2.8 Debt securities
TRV RN 2015FE K% 2014F 12 531 B The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
ST AR EIEIE E BT 2 BISFES © agency designation as at 31 December 2015 and 2014.

BEEE BEN THEERE B2AHRE
BEEE ATEFE  Available- Held-to-

Trading Designated for-sale maturity CE
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA 249 - 997,458 - 997,707
AA-Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 8,572,098 - 7,104,515 1,372,442 17,049,055
A-EA+ A- to A+ 47 - 10,681,887 2,711,844 13,393,778
BB EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 15,878 2,756,536 2,191,143 4,963,557
FEHR Unrated - 620 2,193,129 4,200,867 6,394,616
ast Total 8,572,394 16,498 23,733,525 10,476,296 42,798,713

RHEBE BTN HLERE BEIBRE
BrdE ATEFE  Available- Held-to-

Trading Designated for-sale maturity G
2014F12 318 At 31 December 2014 assets at fair value investments investments Total
AAA AAA 245 - 1,072,104 - 1,072,349
AA-Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 6,849,743 - 6,120,273 1,591,932 14,561,948
A-ZEA+ A- to A+ 374 - 9,930,632 3,456,521 13,387,527
BREERA- Rated but lower than A- - 9,588 3,918,441 1,749,218 5,677,247
FEHR Unrated - 233 1,918,857  4,035269 5,954,359
B Total 6,850,362 9,821 22,960,307 10,832,940 40,653,430
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WHBEEERBZEHEELEREE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HREEE exposure
(F) B (a) Geographical sectors
BEEFERZRESTIHIBEE ZRRAKRE Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
BRIZERAFESLSE — RS ' B according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
EFXNERTEREEBRANRZ RS account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
B B o when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area

which is different from that of the borrower.

TRABEEFRBBERRI DN ° The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20155 20144
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

HEEFRE Gross advances to customers
— B8 - Hong Kong 88,670,794 83,856,418
—FE - China 7,374,771 8,278,746
— P - Macau 12,014,448 11,443,268
—Hfth - Others 1,572,633 1,659,605

109,632,646 105,238,037

78 AFRITER AT | 20155 E3R



B A5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WHEEEERBZEHEEZEEE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HIEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors
BREERRE - RITEREFRES Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2015 2014
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITHEcR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER - Property development 1,909,605 1,741,185
—MERE - Property investment 16,136,906 15,752,867
—eRbE - Financial concerns 1,118,110 821,938
—IREL L — Stockbrokers 965,931 133,234
— R ETER — Wholesale and retail trade 4,144,996 4,497,466
—BUER - Manufacturing 3,026,032 2,971,483
— B RERRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,713,584 4,612,041
—REEE) - Recreational activities 262,522 277,832
— BB — Information technology 72,019 22,938
—Hft — Others 5,454,602 5,036,198
36,804,307 35,867,182
fEA Individuals
-BE[EEE — Loans for the purchase of
HEE - [FLA flats in Home Ownership
2EFEEE] & Scheme, Private Sector
[BEEERS] Participation Scheme and
EFEX Tenants Purchase Scheme 869,023 962,720
—BEHMEE — Loans for the purchase of
MEEK other residential properties 21,260,300 19,451,578
—ZARER — Credit card advances 4,465,225 3,838,208
—Hft — Others 9,217,401 8,355,472
35,811,949 32,607,978
EBREEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 72,616,256 68,475,160
BEoSmE (E(1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,394,880 6,517,342
TERBAIMERRER Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(FF(2)) (Note (2)) 29,621,510 30,245,535

109,632,646 105,238,037
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZEREE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 WHBEEERBZEHEELEREE 3.2.9 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HIEEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(Z) 775 %) (b)  Industry sectors (Continued)
R Note:
(1) FEFFRZEZRERLRERECHUERE (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
BEBELER])ZEH 2@ MDA of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
AEBED - HOMEOMNRE  ARE Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
mESMESEZER - relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).
THERBEBEZESREER(BIEAREIT Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
ZEBNRITBRARKTZESME) & finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
18592,075,000% (2014512 A31 H : totalling HK$592,075,000 (31 December 2014: HK$618,230,000)
618,230,000 7T ) A AR [TEBEABAIME are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

REER] BT -

@ HEEBUMIMERNERBRERTEERP (2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
BEBBUIMERZER - customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

80 RERITARAT | 20155 ER



B A5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.3 WA

MG T s BT i5 R R RERE(L TS| EE
BE  BEMEEABRIMNGREZEBRRAR -

BRRHZMZRROBESE  AREELE
REEELMERRERRZESREEERT
ZRENMZEZ S RRARBERIESIAERE - &
PR AR A B A NS 2 dn S T R B 4R Bl %
E - RZERBHEEBETHRESH LR
FRERERTSEREE(MERAREE]D 2
B -MASERTERABNEERAERTETRR
MEARR - SEE Rz @k E R M e ap ([
TR N B ER 1) Ty — (BB L 2 [\ o 3R R 4
B aELRERMEFHERE - LAHEA - &5t
B EEKEEZERABRREZARTHERR
FRWBRHIERRZKFEAR - EHANFARER
MEBRBERRREREFEEBEREE -VE
hKERREEE EREERAREEGNE
EEFEERHE -

RRITZHBARRPIFERITRMNERAF
(DRFRERT D RAFRIT(FE) BR QA
(TRFHRTT (FE) ) REE—EBERBMBER
RAEARRITRE 2 AETIHREBRIEHARITER
TZMEERS - NRITZ AR ETE R EERES
K ERRERPIE R IRIT RAFRIT (FE) &
BEZMGRAR

AEFRBEEERIRITEREZ TS ARERT
[l BB ERBR NIRRT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by the Bank. The RMCD
of the Bank oversees and controls the market risk arising from the
treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
331 FEEERZTHSEE 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book
T AR B B AR T ORI R S R1T © The following descriptions relate to the Bank and BCM.
AEBZBEERNAN  EINE - EES - B In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
BERTETEZEBFAERFEEMGRER - positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.
(FF) mEREEGZE % (a)  Market risk measurement technique
EEMESRKRER  AEBFERSEER In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
LR 2 AT 25 R R & T 5 risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry

and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of

extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of one
calendar year using a method known as parametric VaR
methodology.
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3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.3 mWiEE @)
331 FEEERZ T 5ERE &)

(FF) THRERE B % (%) (@)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.8.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

() THiZRREEE)
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(i) Value at risk (Continued)

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are

reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$2,368,000 (2014: HK$1,821,000).

(i)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 WiEEE @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

331 FEEEKRZHSEE #) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(Z) TR EE (b) VaR summary of trading portfolio
BZ2015512 831 ALL12{8A HZE2014512A31B1E12f8A
12 months to 31 December 2015 12 months to 31 December 2014
¥ B& 44 4 B =&
Average High Low Average High Low
SNE R Foreign exchange risk 1,397 2,137 732 1,396 2,166 706
FERE R Interest rate risk 471 1,459 181 1,089 3,201 240
2HER All risks 2,368 3,563 1,573 1,821 3,460 1,120

332 FHRITRZ 5 ERE

AREEZRITRT - MiGEREZREMER K
HEERH 2R -

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.
(FF) 5 REfEETE5 L @)

Market risk measurement technique
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Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.
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3. UHEREE@m ).

3.3 WiHEE @

332 FERITARZ T E/EE (%)
(Z) FFFFIEEBEASME 2 BEEST (b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
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(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$14 million higher (2014: HK$10 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$14 million lower (2014: HK$10 million lower).
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken, which are monitored regularly by RMCD.
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332 FEIRITARZ T E/EE (%)
(Z) FFIEEERHHEEZ GUBEST (4) (b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
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(i)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the next
12 months and the equity would have been HK$46 million
lower (2014: HK$201 million lower) and HK$748 million
lower (2014: HK$843 million lower) respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
on the same basis for both 2014 and 2015.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk, the Group’s investments in debt securities and
equity securities are also exposed to other price risks.
Consequently, the value of such investments could
change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events
that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 JMERE R 3.3.3 Currency risk

TRBT| AN E B SRS R ASKE[TD| L > The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and

TMEENMAG  URBEBBERIMEEEZEF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit

BREEREZSHE - commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.

BT EYH b Akt ARE 2t =
2015%12H31 8 At 31 December 2015 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
e RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 5,645,828 7,748,567 496,360 2,062,617 1,551,660 17,505,032
ERTRER Placements with banks 300,001 5,060,782 - 1,825588 311,489 7,497,860
HEEERERES Trading securities 8,572,347 - - 47 - 8,572,3%
BEARTEFEAAZY Financial assets designated at

FABRREREE fair value through profit or loss - 16,498 - - - 16,498
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 42,870 975,141 - 52 61,265 1,079,328
XESFRAMEE Advances and other accounts 84,532,315 17,186,933 5,879,516 9,870,768 945916 118,415,448
AHHEES Available-for-sale securities 3,452,323 20,040,127 631 456,016 238,748 24,187,845
FEIH#ES Held-to-maturity securities 540,296 6,513,189 1,994,338 1,132,754 295,719 10,476,296
SREES Total financial assets 103,085,980 57,541,237 8,370,845 15,347,842 3,404,797 187,750,701
8 Liabilities
RITER Deposits from banks 103,918 1,446,107 152 112 622 1,550,911
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 29,639 1,413,377 - 581 14,835 1,458,432
HIEEERRMARE Trading liabilities 6,270,629 - - - - 6,270,629
REREH Deposits from customers 107,835,109 15,782,914 8,385,965 13,542,557 5,545,845 151,092,390
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,945,244 286,593 = = - 6,231,837
BEES Subordinated notes - 4,096,710 - - 1,223,184 5,319,804
HifR A LR Other accounts and accruals 1,422,160 628,826 55,357 408,514 93,255 2,608,112
SRAeEaT Total financial liabilities 121,606,699 23,654,527 8,441,474 13,951,764 6,877,741 174,532,205
BEBBRAEATE Net on-balance sheet positions ~ (18,520,719) 33,886,710 (70,629) 1,396,078  (3,472,944) 13,218,496

BEBBRIMFRERFE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 29,612,545  (33,002,743) = (283,729) 3,488,306 (185,621)
EERE Credit commitments 60,704,881 6,288,507 902,569 2,461,184 102,022 70,459,163
% BEABRINFALE FHIETEARNHEAE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
BINEEHRRZINESBITETEN LR F amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
55 o are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.

88 RERITARAT | 20155 ER



B A5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 JMEREEE &) 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
BT £ kil ARE ity =
2014512 A31 1 At 31 December 2014 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
R RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 2,181,349 8,857,621 383,548 2,631,821 783,772 14,838,111
TERITHER Placements with banks - 3,220,767 - 1,970,543 133,501 5,324,811
HIEEERRRNES Trading securities 6,849,988 - - 374 - 6,850,362
EENATEFEEEE Financial assets designated at
FABRHNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 9,821 - - - 9,821
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 28,748 702,458 - 43 25,580 756,829
RHERREMIRE Advances and other accounts 81,402,231 15015931  5466,920 13,145,687 828,092 115,858,861
A EES Available-for-sale securities 1,972,063 20,383,519 631 673,141 322,393 23,351,747
BEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 1,199,530 7,212,714 920,497 1,139,908 360,291 10,832,940
SREEA Total financial assets 93,633,909  55402,831 6,771,596 19,561,517 2,453,629 177,823,482
afE Liabilities
IR Deposits from banks 60,580 1,505,241 101 255 6,290 1,572,467
fTESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 25,820 1,048,669 - - 72,336 1,146,825
HIEEERAMAR Trading liabilities 5,597,614 - - - - 5597614
REGEH Deposits from customers 96,125,906 15,869,292 7,205,756 18,067,795 5,965,688 143,234,437
BETNEHE Certificates of deposit issued 5,799,744 310,033 - - - 6,109,777
&IEEK Subordinated notes - 4,131,026 - - 1301,352 5432378
HifE B kER Other accounts and accruals 1,303,567 726,394 57,035 485,554 73,167 2,645,717
SRAEAS Total financial liabilities 108,913,231 23,590,655 7,262,892 18,553,604 7,418,833 165,739,215
BEARKARETE Net on-balance sheet positions (15,279,322) 31,812,176 (491,296) 1,007,913  (4,965,204) 12,084,267
BEABRRIMNGEREZ TR Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 25,959,998  (31,213,945) - 340,548 4,855,770 (57,629)

ERRE Credit commitments 62,216,083 3,930,806 495,194 3,848,740 190,733 70,681,556

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 89



B F R Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.34 FIFEmEEE 3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TREFNAER 2 FEE - RABFENERIR The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
FHSHETEZEREEEBE  WIREFEX risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
HekR|EAH (AREE A%E) 5fE - liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual

repricing or maturity dates.

3EAME 5L

38R E1f E5F
HHT Over Over SENE iR
3months 3 months to 1yearto Over  Non-interest At
20156124311 At 31 December 2015 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Be RESTHER Cash and balances with banks 15,733,402 1,111,202 - - 660,428 17,505,032
RO Placements with banks 4,399,716 3,008,144 - - - 7,497,860
FEEERENES Trading securities 2,421,056 6,121,951 29,387 - - 8,572,394
EEALTESEAEALY Financial assets designated at fair
SAERNSRAE value through profit or loss - - - - 16,498 16,498
THeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,079,328 1,079,328
REEFRAMES Advances and other accounts 96,175,563 8,017,829 8,099,579 1,678,326 4444150 118,415,448
AREERS Avallable-for-sale securities 2,782,122 2,139,471 12,311,285 6,495,894 459,073 24,187,845
FRHEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,503,986 677,165 6,295,145 - - 10,476,296
SREEST Total financial assets 125,015,845 21,165,762 26,735,396 8,174,220 6,659,478 187,750,701
af Liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 686,709 - 813,755 - 50,447 1,550,911
THeRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,458,432 1,458,432
REEERRMAR Trading liabilities 703,526 5,504,770 62,334 - - 6,270,630
PR Deposits from customers 116,691,395 27,616,233 47,174 - 6,037,588 151,002,390
BEHEE Certificates of deposit issued 3,160,688 1,616,677 1,454,472 - - 6,231,837
kREER Subordinated notes - - 5,319,804 - - 5,319,894
HitdR A R Other accounts and accruals - - - - 2,608,112 2,608,112
ERaRLH Total financial liabilities 121,242,318 34,737,680 8,397,629 - 10154579 174,532,206
NESBEERLH (REHE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* 3,773,527 (13571,918) 18,337,767 8,174,220
AEfEIRAHZEE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,825,721 795,495 2,326,751 (6,105,877)
NEBBERAH (BHR) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 6,509,248  (12,776423) 20,664,518 2,068,343
* RISHBEFNEFREE IR EEBBRANBEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
BENSASET KA SHREERDEA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
TR A1) 2= & B i A T O Al R AT T B S 49K takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
2o into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. BXERER@m 3.
3.3 mWiEE @)
3.34 FIZEE LR &)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EAML 155 F
3f@A BE E5F
FUT Over Over SENE Tt
3months  3monthsto 1yearto Over  Non-interest 8%

2014612 4311 At 31 December 2014 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Be RERTHER Cash and balances with banks 12,616,114 464,207 - - 1,757,790 14,838,111
ERANER Placements with banks 2,289,629 3,035,182 - - - 5,324,811
HIEEBRENES Trading securities 2,051,864 4,769,256 29,242 - - 6,850,362
BENATEZAERY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 9,821 9,821
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 756,829 756,829
FREFREMER Advances and other accounts 83,299,564 10,575,020 11,120,258 6,104,592 4759427 115,858,861
EHEERS Available-for-sale securities 2,417,059 2,004,641 12,424,145 6,034,710 381,192 23,351,747
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities 2,031,325 2,186,169 6,415,446 - - 10,832,940
SREEAT Total financial assets 104905555 23124475 29,989,001 12,139,302 7665059 177,823,482
L Liabilities
R/iTER Deposits from banks 1,501,734 - - - 70,733 1,572,467
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,146,825 1,146,825
RHEEERRMAE Trading liabilities 3,016,569 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
REER Deposits from customers 117,852,846 19,276,547 789,799 - 53150245 143234437
ERIHFNE Certificates of deposit issued 2,460,682 1,014,801 2,634,204 - - 6,109,777
kEEH Subordinated notes - - 3,516,676 1,915,702 - 5,432,378
R A RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - 2,645,117 2,645,717
EMBEAF Total financial liabilities 124,831,831 22,824,699 6,988,463 1,915,702 9,178520 165,739,215
HEGREERA (REAR)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)® (19,926,276 299,776 23,000,628 10,223,600
HEfETRANZ T2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,646,315 409,492 712,526 (3,842,627)
MEGREEAG (LHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (17,279,961) 709268 23,713,154 6,380,973

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015



DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

£

LY P e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.4 REBESRES

RBEERBRIEAREREENTETAER
ZERRNEAT /IENEEREIAIB 22
BMEBERTNREE -

341 REIECEEEEESF

AEEZEEHRAETEESRIN - BERKE
EERIRERAZEZZREERRBERE S © LA
NEEMNEHEEREEAZ TR EAZRHE
BE&BH - 5820151 A1 Bt - REBE DR
HEReERMEERBEINZRBESIELES

Biasb sl ARBEERFLL X ([ RBEESR
FELE R ) UBRRR B E LR AEERER - KX
ERBARBEREEEAFLEXRENEERE
ZRH25%

o - REBERBEBELE RN 2011F4 AKE
ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ’]( EIB( ?ﬂ%>LM-2F?ﬁ§U’\EﬂﬁEE@Z1@
E%E °<< EEHR ?ﬂﬂ}>LM-2Tb7'—?§ﬁEE§Eﬁ
RITEEZE ((EEREES ) B2 ES
mENIEIR BT HIE - & EsR(bIR1TEY 7 Eh 1% @
EIRREAE o

MEBMRAREREREEESHEZHERE
REE  BUREASENEELAGEEREZE
gEERDMRRER AKRBHNEERARBE
BLRESFEHRNAEEZERRERNES K
""""" Bt  MEBRKRIEA - ARE—RIBERED
BEAFLERIBERNR 2 B IEREREE
TEREEE - AEEH N ERREEFTEHEE N
IREA N AR - WHA TR AR S & = PAREIRBE
ENMEERESHER - WEMATES MR
BURAZAFER MAREEREZNRER
BEEBAEREERSENRARKRD - T
TImENED AT R BRI RI, - BATS BRI BR (T BA 75 B2
BDRAREERRBSIERR EERE - WA
%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁéﬁir?ﬂu&iﬁiﬂﬁﬁ HEFTEL R B E 1
FER - mEMERBSMERESERERBZ AN -

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standard and to ensure that there is an
adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. Starting from 1 January 2015, the Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) introduced by the
HKMA to replace the liquidity ratio as a regulatory standard as part of
the implementation of Basel Ill liquidity regime in Hong Kong. During
the period, the Group had maintained a sufficiently high LMR well
above the statutory minimum of 25%.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2
is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles formulated by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to
strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including
the LMR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate
limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid
assets are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term
funding requirements. The Treasury Division is responsible for the
day-to-day management of funding and liquidity position while the
RMCD is responsible for the measurement and monitoring of liquidity
risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis, and also conducting
liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial Control Division
(“FCD”) handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk, and
coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR,
budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding management.



B A5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.4 REBESRE @
34.1 BEBELTREEEEES &)

AEEREERBYSHKERBENER R -
BRTEPERRASENES 2 AN A&
BTIERETERERTHEREULERESH
BEFHLBCEERBBEZFY - £ARHIH
ERT - IFERAEHIRT R EF AR ED
BENEBXRRER - AKRERTRETSH
RN e

EEREHRTRBR 2A LN E R
BT BRETPUETEZFERRSERE
—EHR—EARRED - WEHAEEINZF
TREERAGBZANEHNE  WHKERBEE
R ZEFEREERABNERZIGA - B
BenhZEEEARRIINAR  BRERERE
ERERIANBEPINERERABRER) Z
BETR - RE—ERBEENMAS AR R
HRZFRERER - FH 2BEHESERET
EARMERET IS RE T - AEETHETE
DA - BREERBEEREN  —RH5EK
B KOt & ME BN RE 77 AR E R B AR X
BZHSERTHEEZE YO HERZEE
FTE - FEERE M B RN EZER
TEARSR TR ZREF (FInETERHHER
SREBEFRERDUERREREREZEE) - &
EAREzRXSRAFRAETRAERERT
ZBREREAME  WRBAEGBE=T 22X 5k
B ARBEZHBARNEFTRIEEERTAE
BHRBSECHARANENETE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquid asset portfolio
is held to withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Debt
securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity. The Group performs stress testing regularly,
which includes an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market
crisis scenario and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order
to assess the potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets
out strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted on
arm’s length basis and are treated the same way as other third party
transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under normal
scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage their
liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and stressed
conditions.
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3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

342 FRIHZH 3.4.2 Maturity analysis
TEROMAEEIZRERREEHSHEHASK The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
HEREAERE (ER) ZRSGEHRE EZ BE K relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
BfE - end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where

applicable, the earliest callable date.

1EARE
R EEEDA 3EANL 150
3 months 1 B5E
MHEE  1BAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  fERH it
0155128318 At 31 December 2015 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
BeRERTREE Cashand balances with banks 2,241,730 15,263,302 = - - - - 17,505,032
TR Placements with banks - - 439719 3,098,141 - - - 7497860
RIEEERRYES Trading securities - 970,485 1,866,683 5,685,617 49,609 - - 8,572,394
EENATEHEEEST Financial assets designated at
HABRNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - - = 5 o 16,498 - 16,498
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 127,618 61,352 321,722 522,780 45,856 - 1,079,328
ERETRE A Advances and other accounts 8,287,082 13,158,116 13997900 16916472 29,032,031 35735537 1,087,410 118,415,448
i EES Available-for-sale securities - 272,680 1,801,792 2593677 11,974,532 7,086,091 459,078 24,187,845
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,427,783 634,405 1,865,857 6,548,251 - - 10,476,296
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - = 5 o - 4,099,217 4,099,017
AREHERRE Investments in jointly
controlled entities - - - - - - 71,119 7,119
55 Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EVRE Intangible assets - - = 5 o - 59,805 59,805
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - = 5 o - 2,871,587 2,871,587
REE Investment properties - - - - - - 930,257 930,257
ELiREE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 83473 - - 83473
BERH Total assets 10,528,812 31,219,984 22,761,851 30,481,486 48,211,576 42,883,982 10,590,158 196,677,849
8 Liabiliies
ROBH Deposits from banks 21,047 96,303 40,000 581,254 812,307 - - 1,550,911
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 90,088 62,248 357,804 763,153 185,049 - 1,458,432
RIEEERRVER Trading liabilties - 436,010 267,504 5,504,770 62,346 - - 6,270,630
BFEH Deposits from customers 58,121,137 32,442,450 32,164,278 27,617,351 747,174 - - 151,092,390
BEANERE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,310,093 1,850,594 1,616,677 1,454,473 - - 6,231,837
RERK Subordinated notes = = - = 5,319,894 = = 5,319,804
EtbiRE kiR Other accounts and accruals 21,625 838,419 631,099 758,844 45,972 - 312,153 2,608,112
J8EaR Current income tax liabilities - - - 201,204 - - - 201,204
EtiRak Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 37,543 - - 37,543
BERH Total liabilities 58,163,809 35,213,363 35,015,723 36,637,994 9,242,862 185,049 312,153 174,770,953
FROMEE Net liquidity gap (47634997)  (3993379)  (12,253872)  (6,156,508) 38,968,714 42698933 10,278,005 21,906,896

94 RERITARAT | 20155 ER



B A5 R R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
3.4.2 2B H 57 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1EAME
B3EAFNUT  SEANME 185k
3 months EiF E5F
EER  1EARMNT orless Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EHAS GH

201412 A31A At 31 December 2014 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year t0 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
ReRERINES Cash and balances with banks 2,771,835 12,086,276 - - = = - 14838111
RRITHRER Placements with banks - - 2178304 8151507 - - - 534811
RIEEERRVES Trading securities - 366,993 1,676,964 4,761,251 45,154 - - 6,850,362
EENATENEEEZE Financial assets designated at

TAERNEHAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 9,821 - 9,621
fEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - 50,387 38,998 93,313 350,366 223,765 - 756,829
EREFRAMEE Advances and other accounts 7,459,311 12,175,730 13,023,854 18,313,306 29,962,446 33,190,268 1,733,946 115,858,861
ARLEES Available-for-sale securities - 248,532 1,829,698 2,172,191 12,300,365 6,414,769 386,192 23,351,747
RIS Held-to-maturity securities - 561,653 58,116 3,143,157 7,070,014 - - 10,832,940
BENARE Investment in an associate - - - - - = 3746,918 3,746,918
RRAHERRE Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 65,694 65,694

g Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
BlAE Intangible assets - - - - - = 61,844 61,844
ek AT AR Premises and ofher fixed assets - - - - - - 2708208 2728208
Rams Investment properties - - - - - - 745,166 745,166
ELfREE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 80,591 = = 80,591
AERH Total assets 10,231,146 25,469,571 18,800,934 31,634,725 49,808,936 39,838,623 10,279,658 186,063,593
85 Liabilites
i Deposits from banks 41,679 142,433 - 806,727 581,628 - - 1,572,467
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 41,982 65,343 116,783 771,638 151,079 - 1,146,825
RIEEERRYAR Trading liabilities - 98,500 2,918,069 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
ZPHH Deposits from customers 50606760 43469015  27.000791 19,278,063 789,799 - - 143234437
BRINEE Certificates of deposit issued - 501,056 840,079 2,134,348 2,634,294 - - 6,109,777
) Subordinated notes - - - - 5,432,378 - - 543,378
EtbiEA kAR Other accounts and accruals 23,594 756,804 617,058 770,848 61,508 - 415,905 2,645,717
HEEasE Current income tax liabilities - - - 206,392 - - - 206,392
BEHEAE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 55,056 = = 55,056
854 Total liabilities 52,672,042 45,009,790 31,531,340 25,846,512 10,373,995 151,079 415905 166,000,663
FRatEE Net liquidity gap (42,440,896)  (19,540,219)  (12,730,406) 5,788,213 39,434,941 39,687,544 9,863,753 20,062,930
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3. HBEBRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 REBELERE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

34.2 FIEHZ#7 (&) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

RBERARFERERAE B S EEERLTRN In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose

FRRBZ AR - HREHNZIE B R Z RIREIR and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
AHFIRAAT the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1AL
B3EAIAAT  SfEANL 1EHE
3 months EE E5F
PHEE  1EAINT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  SERH it
on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
0155128318 At 31 December 2015
FEaan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
REHNEES Held-to-maturity securities - 378,578 = 498,955 300,000 - - 1,177,533
014412 31 At 31 December 2014
ﬁmﬁ@ f@ Certificates of deposit held
included in:

iR Held-to-maturity securities - 124,762 - 1,822,615 - - - 1,947,377
BEHEEGEHELANERN AR M2 il 5 e The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
BEEEE+SEE HRETHEBRBTZIKREH interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
Z%ﬁgiﬁ’gﬁﬂﬁﬁ&ﬂ?ﬁ*éﬁu  ¥HERTTM S - o2 management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
PR IE R TR o THEEMNIEAMARIEER matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
Fag S @m@ij}ugg}g\ﬂ fé o and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances

profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.
EEHBENIHAE RUAASEMNRKAZRIHE 2 The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
MEBENEH  RifHERRHESRERF an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
RN ERGSEHFIARERMGOEERZE - important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

AEE BRI TERE = 2REGEHZ2HE Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
AE%  EMAEERNERERAZE NAERELN standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
REESERRINAENSTE AR RZEZE commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
EERD SR IEABESEES 0 RIttBERIE parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
HEEE 7 EERENRENENEALSBRVER contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
HERIRESES o necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these

commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3.4 REBESRES @
343 BAEXNBHAZ KB BEELT
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

. SMEHTAET B - RHIINE - SNERRH] . Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
. MZELTHE T B« Fl| 2= fe HY [ 32 #a 6 #EFl| & ° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency

= R
. SEMITATR  EREORMEH -

interest rate swaps; and
o Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRE @
343 BEXBE A ZAKBBEELT (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

98

(Continued)
1A LE
BAHIUT 3EANL 18N L
3 months B1E B5E
1EAZUT or less Over Over 5EHE
Up to butover 3 months 1year Over ait
2015612831 H At 31 December 2015 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FIETARER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 157,502 977 581,766 812,307 - 1,552,552
EPHER Deposits from customers 90,770,998 32,826,501 27,934,728 1,362,298 - 152,894,525
KEEERENAR Trading liabilities 436,000 267,620 5,505,473 62,724 - 6,271,817
BETNEE Certificates of deposit issued 1,318436 1,859,006 1,657,060 1,491,721 - 6,327,132
REER Subordinated notes 46,791 103,437 148,769 5,893,981 - 6,192,078
AfafE Other liabilities 719,035 344,348 321,962 - 54463 1,439,808
BREES Total liabilities
(AthzIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 93,448,762 35402789 36,149,767 9,623,031 54,463 174,678,812
fIETIARSR Derivative cash flow
REBEEZITE Derivative financial instruments
FRTA settled on net basis 6,690 4,848 (25,200) (52,362) (2,158) (68,182)
RABEE I NE Derivative financial instruments
ERIA settled on a gross basis
et Total outflow 34,372,894 | | 18,995,925| | 29,679,102 | 2,808,579 503,610 | | 86,360,110
MAEE Total inflow (34,414,618)| | (18,995,176)| | (29,437,748)( | (2,382,385) (249,458)| | (85,479,385)
(41,724) 749 241,354 426,194 254,152 880,725
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRE @
343 BAEXBE A2 K BEELT (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1AM LR
3MEAZIAT 3fEAME 1€ML E
3 months 2E B5E
1EASAT or less Over Over 5EN L
Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over A7
2014124310 At 31 December 2014 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
HTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
af& Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 186,562 2,925 808,988 581,649 - 1,580,124
EPHER Deposits from customers 96,323,415 27,691,204 19,640,668 911,746 - 144,567,033
FIEEERGENERE Trading liabilities 98,500 2,918,086 2,533,739 49,166 - 5,599,491
BETNENE Certificates of deposit issued 508,734 856250 2,197,660 2,717,075 - 6,219,728
REER Subordinated notes 46,821 105,516 150962 4423553 1803970 6,530,822
At Other liabilities 566,190 322,261 386,622 - - 1,275,073
AR Total liabilities
(BH3IH8A) (contractual maturity dates) 97,730,222 31,896,251 25,718,639 8,683,189 1,803,970 165,832,271
TETARSR Derivative cash flow
REBEEZITE Derivative financial instruments
TRTH settled on net basis (19,447) (29,589) (58,488) (38,454) (2,933) (148,911)
RABEE LN Derivative financial instruments
ERIA settled on a gross basis
e Total outflow 30,744,088 15,165,665 14,128,887 3,499,792 555,368 64,093,800
MALE Total inflow (31,075,160)( | (15,137,767)| | (13,927,269) | (2,993,800) (314,575)| | (63,448,571)
(331,072) 27,898 201,618 505,992 240,793 645,229
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRE @
344 BEEEEXIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

TREIEATIER : Included in the table below are the following items:

. ERHEETREEEREMRE 2B . Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
EREEAEBEEAGBERIEGMTIAY amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
A8 BE) ; that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. REE TR B A B BERIETME S 2 B s i J Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
12 reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

o  AEEASAEAZTAIBURKE L ALE S
MARREN Z HZEEENRETE - &

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o
L]

s BEFEMRBIENASE

Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
1EH0R 150 E S5Ep
No later ZE5E Over &&t
2015612 A31H At 31 December 2015 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 66,145,095 2,958,451 140,456 69,244,002
BR AR LA ME RS Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
— &, - Acceptances = = - -
—EREkERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 356,891 417,443 2,178 776,512
—RERHEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 438,649 - - 438,649
KT K I Operating lease commitments 184,232 468,581 349,332 1,002,145
BREIE Capital commitments 165,688 - - 165,688
&t Total 67,290,555 3,844,475 491,966 71,626,996
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. BKERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBESRE @

344 BEEEEXKSIEE (&)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1R 18 E 5E F
No later ZE 54 Over &t
2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURE Loan commitments 65,609,969 3,571,018 12,869 69,193,856
ER - AEREMSRARHE Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
— & H - Acceptances 24,061 - - 24,061
—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 773,616 129,244 83,315 986,175
- RENEECRE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 477,089 &t - 477,464
IS TR A Operating lease commitments 159,801 113,400 47,428 320,629
EVINES Capital commitments 140,972 = = 140,972
Bt Total 67,185,508 3,814,037 143,612 71,143,157

35 TRMEEREEBEZAYE
(F) R FEZETE (a)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Determination of fair value

RNFHEXRRNEABESSRAABRRAKHE
BEENMGEE R REHIEF 2 EHE
R-EFSRBEVERRERARZESE
EERMITAZMERR - AEHARRERE
REEENB LA ERMEERN(WER) B
ST A EARTERRE - R
RFEFFEBREZTEMY -

BT A2 ATFETER D BERT T
SRENGEBRTZAFRDTHE
S AR B R AT 2 B -
S AR B 1 TR U P A O
it -

K>
30|

T

3

>

Sim
W

Iy

=TI

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
valuers and the valuation results are periodically verified to
ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation

technique.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the
fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes
model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) NFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

BATEAEZEERERE

ERE

Py

ERE

A

=]
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFTEEEESA Financial assets at fair value
BaRreREE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
(B &5 Debt securities - 8,572,394 - 8,572,394
BENATFEFEEH Designated at fair value through
ZH AER profit or loss
B ES Debt securities - 16,498 - 16,498
TESMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading 42 884,727 - 884,769
5B R+ Held for hedging - 194,559 - 194,559
AREE s SREE Available-for-sale financial assets
& 7 Debt securities - 23,728,772 4,753 23,733,525
R Equity securities 208,587 170,703 75,030 454,320
BATENEZEERR Total assets measured at fair value 208,629 33,567,653 79,783 33,856,065
NFEEEHES Financial liabilities at fair value
Efk?ﬁﬁﬁ@%mﬁﬁﬁ through profit or loss
RHIEEERZ Held for trading - 6,270,630 = 6,270,630
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 939,144 = 939,144
A R{ELH Held for hedging - 519,288 - 519,288
BN EFECABEAG Total liabilities measured at fair value - 7,729,062 = 7,729,062

RERFIGHEEZERMEERIFLME
aERBHFREFKRE - WESREERK
BERNFEASENBZRAETR

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
are stated at cost which is considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) N-FEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

BATEAECZEENABE  (8) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

#H £2015%F12 A31 8 X20144 12 A 31 For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,

HIEFE: BEcREEREEE ANE there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
EAFEZFRFHNEIRG - FREE 2 # out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying

REfEEE o

value represent the revaluation gains/losses.

FA

Fo

3

=a
2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AAFEFEEHESH A Financial assets at fair value
BaNeREE through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading
BEREHR Debt securities - 6,850,362 - 6,850,362
BENATEFEAH Designated at fair value through
""""" @Juﬂ\?ﬁ i profit or loss
BEBEH Debt securities - 9,821 - 9,821
TEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments
RERERRZ Held for trading - 540,441 - 540,441
BEREL Held for hedging - 216,388 - 216,388
AEHEZSBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
BI85 Debt securities - 22,955,554 4,753 22,960,307
EmRltES Equity securities 171,946 144,386 75,108 391,440
% B2 EEAG Total assets measured at fair value 171,946 30,716,952 79,861 30,968,759
URAFEFEBEZEF A Financial liabilities at fair value
BaneRan through profit or loss
HEBERR Held for trading - 5,597,614 - 5,597,614
fTESBMITA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 661,242 - 661,242
B B+ Held for hedging - 485,583 - 485,583
RAFEFEZBEA Total liabilities measured at fair value = 6,744,439 - 6,744,439
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.5 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(A) AL FlEGTEZEMTA ()

TEREAZERAEBRBARNRKARINA
RNFHEIRZEBEER BB ZREEM
NFE - ERBEMBEENE - EQFE
TyiR4E (AE ) AN R BIAE B 17 45 71 K Bk
BERzeMTARKSOOENRER
MR EBEFREME - BHIHERNL

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented
in the Group’s statement of financial position at their fair
value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have been
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group

106

RMEEBTE for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of
investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value
2015 2014 2015 2014

SRMEE Financial assets

H e RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 17,505,032 14,838,111 17,506,617 14,842,985

TESRITHITF 3K Placements with banks 7,497,860 5,324,811 7,504,096 5,345,936

REER MBI Loans and advances to

customers

BAER&ER Loans and advances to

individuals
—fERAKR — Credit cards 4,706,017 4,057,656 4,706,498 4,058,213
—ZBER - Mortgages 31,273,079 29,109,305 31,273,004 29,109,232
— HAh — Others 9,729,001 8,660,111 9,732,804 8,662,133
EER KR Loans and advances to

corporate entities
—BHIER — Term loans 29,150,773 29,903,231 29,149,405 29,904,055
—RIBER - Mortgages 16,023,858 14,082,486 16,024,111 14,082,511
—EoRE — Trade finance 7,986,955 7,135,572 7,986,955 7,136,859
— HAh — Others 10,762,963 12,289,676 10,769,582 12,289,649

B55% Trade bills 6,469,899 7,384,057 6,504,322 7,461,102

FEIEHES Held-to-maturity securities 10,476,296 10,832,940 10,485,600 10,862,006

SRBE Financial liabilities

RITIF X Deposits from banks 1,550,911 1,572,467 1,569,956 1,572,372

BREEHR Deposits from customers 151,092,390 143,234,437 151,143,154 143,239,847

BT RE Certificates of deposit issued 6,231,837 6,109,777 6,235,944 6,096,361

BIBER Subordinated notes 5,319,894 5,432,378 5,452,466 5,574,367
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.5 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(A) REAFlEFGTEZEBTAE) (©)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

() ERAOER

ERITHZ B R RBRIEFRZ A
ETDEREE - BEMBFRZ b
RNFETIRENR A REEERR R
HARSERZEBUNENEEMS
MEABEZBRAETR

iy FPERRBH MEZFFEE

ERRBRRESERZ G AFE
IR AR & W B IR SR B3R
E - BERIARSMIZBITM SN R/,
BABERFE °

(i) BHRKRE

ERREESEREREIHERNZ
MEBE - HEFMEEZAFET
KEMSERIEL ' XHERE -
WARBUFEER - A FEZFAETIR
AMEEREE - 2IH A RKREER
MBS RIE

(ivy S|IGFERRER  BEFER
BEEITHFEREREMEAER

k>

EERIME 2FR - BERIMER
H o EAHERREZHE - K
BARTISREZ BEMNSFREE
&R - ERFHETRBERANAE
[FI 2 HA B R BB R 2 FTE TS B R E
ZHHRBRMIGE

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the held-to-maturity category. Fair value of
held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(A) FERFEGTEC /T A ) (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
(v) BBTHNERESBIEEET (v Debt securities in issue including subordinated
iz EER notes issued
HAREMESEMEZEFSMES - AIRA For those notes where quoted market prices are not
A E B RIS 2 2 A ks il 4R available, the present value technique is used based on
B/ S =B B ZLIRETERGESA current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
A o the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
3.6 EFXRERE 3.6 Capital management
AEBEBERNZBIZA : The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
o RFENEBMEESENTS ZRITEE o To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
EMEMRE ZERHETE regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;
J REAEBFERREEFZ/EN . To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;
. 7 PR PR S U =[] 3 A0 75 46 B K1) 25 4E B . To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
EEENZ & to other stakeholders; and
o IR KERNEM AT EREE - o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.
AEEEEETHEALEEERZE SH LA Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
EREBERMNITIEEETRGEESI 2 A - BiEE regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based
AAERENMEECEAZER  BEAZEREES on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented
ERHERAEBRENER - by the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is

filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)
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3.6 BEXREE#)
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D RERL R NEABTITEEEZ20174F ¢
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R nESEeREERBERARIINZEER
%~ TISRARAIRIERR 2 RRINERES
BERBERARBREBEEFSAXNSERREE S
BREKBERASERRAZINBEEFREESE
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HERINEE - BERBERINEBRERED B R
BRI EA - ERAESBERARZERERR
HRBHREEREESERE  HUEEENEE
BEXRARE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

As Basel Ill has become effective from January 2013 in Hong
Kong, DSB is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively
against risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum
of these three ratios starting from 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%,
6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM
CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set
further buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum
regulatory capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements,
internal assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under
the Pillar Il capital requirement. In addition, the capital conservation
buffer, countercyclical capital buffer and higher loss absorbency
(“HLA”) capital requirements introduced by the Basel Committee
will be implemented from 1 January 2016 in Hong Kong. In line with
the international standards, the HKMA also adopts the phase-in
arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to the Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio, capital buffers and HLA
capital requirements as set by the Basel Committee and will achieve
full implementation by 1 January 2019. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio
that forms part of Basel Ill implementation is under parallel run
until 2017 and relevant information has been submitted by DSB for
regulatory monitoring.

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.

(@) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.1

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of

securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.
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JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included in
the available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories as of the
end of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its available-for-sale and held-
to-maturity securities is individually impaired as at 31 December
2015.

Given the continuing uncertain conditions in global credit
markets, the Group has conducted an assessment of its debt
securities on a collective basis. Based on its judgement, the
Group identified certain information indicating a possible
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a certain
group of debt securities, even though the decrease cannot
yet be identified with an individual debt security. The
judgement formed by the Group takes into account the
nature of the securities held and its evaluation of the impact
of market volatility, changes in credit conditions and market
developments on the recoverable amounts. Based on its
evaluation, a collective impairment allowance had been
recognised for a group of debt securities since 2011. As at
31 December 2014, the amount of such collective impairment
allowance was HK$15 million. Due to the recovery of bond
market and default risk of the Group’s debt securities is
assessed to be low, the Group decided to write back the
collective impairment allowance of HK$15 million in the year
ended 31 December 2015.
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JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need
to be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and estimated
amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred to settle
the obligation after considering factors such as recent settlement
experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of
the value in use is based on a discounted cash flow projection
which contains certain assumptions derived from management
and observable market information. This estimate is subject
to application of management judgment and is sensitive to
assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate
disposal.

As at 31 December 2015, management’s estimate of the value in
use is higher than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

AERAT I AR R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2015 2014

EE ASSETS
IR & RIERI TR AR Cash and balances with banks 16,417,720 13,778,437
ERITTHTFER Placements with banks 7,529,258 4,652,611
FEBEERZRNE Trading securities 8,572,394 6,850,362
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 1,101,442 776,476
%IEE%\’X&%MEE | Advances and other accounts 100,968,921 96,910,623

A E Available-for-sale securities 23,951,415 23,075,378
et Held-to-maturity securities 6,251,800 7,078,817
N T&Q Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057

HEZEGHIEEIEE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
WE AIRE RER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,713,640 3,694,389
TERAEMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 2,444,419 2,279,787
REWE Investment properties 928,209 743,077
EEAE Total assets 173,112,275 161,073,014
=N LIABILITIES
RITIER Deposits from banks 3,474,322 2,612,806
PTEEmMITA Derivative financial instruments 1,456,106 1,141,386
FEBEEABRNEE Trading liabilities 6,270,630 5,597,614
BEEER Deposits from customers 129,809,722 120,865,621
BEITHIF R Certificates of deposit issued 6,231,837 6,209,781
BEES Subordinated notes 5,319,894 5,432,378
HBR B RIER Other accounts and accruals 2,289,431 2,215,292
BIHATH IR & (E Current income tax liabilities 155,461 168,850
RIETIEE & Deferred income tax liabilities 27,209 47,204
BEAF Total liabilities 155,034,612 144,290,932
Em EQUITY
&N Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
i Other reserves (including

(BIEREBAEF) £ () retained earnings) Note (a) 11,877,663 10,582,082
Emast Total equity 18,077,663 16,782,082
EnkBES Total equity and liabilities 173,112,275 161,073,014
EE2R 2016 E3 A 22 A BRI o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

March 2016.

B2 FHE David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
o o Director Director
BER Tax Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
EF EFpLE Director Managing Director
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5. ABRITHBRARREFAFELE @0 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (cContinued)
5 Note:
() ARITHEEES (@)  Reserve movement of the Bank
NRGAEE
B2 Gl RERA
TEEMRE  REEMHRE Reserve for (&)
Premises Investment EXGE -RiEH Share- Retained
Revaluation Revaluation Exchange General based Eamings At
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
0151 f1H At 1 January 2015 201,780 140,181 - 693,304 7,735 9,539,082 10,582,082
A ERE 2 AT YR Fair value gains on available-for-sale
RERRMER securties recognised in equity - (8,651) - - - - (8,651)
ATEEBRALERERAMHNE Fair value loss realised and transferred to income
BARETAEAE RER statement upon disposal of investments in
HERA R I SRR B 5 securties included in the loans and
RERER REAEURR recelvables category and held-to-maturity
category which were previously reclassified
from the available-for-sale category - - - - - - -
AHERERLETRLE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
EARERRERR YRR income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (16,568) - - - - (16,568)
REBRERES BT Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - 6,370 - - - - 6,370
REENARNEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
VIEhA premises to investment properties 1,393 - - - - - 1,393
BERMTEBRED Exchange differences arising on translation
EXZR of the financial statements of a foreign branch - - - - - - -
B TR AR Provision for equity-settled share-based
SR compensation - - - - 1,621 = 1,621
ERER Profit for the year - - - - - 1,423,016 1423016
15EREHE 2015 nterm dividend - . = - - (111,600 (11,600)
01512318 At 31 December 2015 203,173 121,332 - 693,304 9,356 10,850,498 11,877,663
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5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(@) Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

WA AR
2 G RERH
EERRE  RAEMRE Reserve for (&)
Premises Investment EfGE —Hh Share- Retained
Revaluation Revaluation Exchange General based Earnings it
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
20141718 At1 January 2014 165,246 (23,774) 170 693,304 431 8,380,890 9,220,207
A ERE 2 AT YR Fair value gains on available-for-sale
RERRNER securties recognised in equity - 214,164 - - - - 214,164
ATEEBALEREE AR Fair value loss realised and transferred to
HEBARETAEAER income statement upon disposal of
REUGERRIR 2 investments in securities included
Rl ESRERER in the loans and receivables category
REZZYHR and held-to-maturity category which
were previously reclassified from the
available-for-sale category - 3,756 - - - - 3,756
AHERERLETRLE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
EARERRERR YRR income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (21,692) - - - - (21,692)
REBRERES ELHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (32,273) - - - - (32,273)
REENARNERARENFCRE Reserve arising from reclassification of
premises to investment properties 36,534 - - - - - 36,534
BERMTIBRROEL 2 Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of a foreign branch - - (170) - - - (170)
RS AR BERRM  Bita Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation - - - - 3,364 - 3,364
ERET) Profit for the year - - - - - 1,408,192 1,408,192
N1BERHRE 2013 final dividend - - - - - (250,000) (250,000)
0145128318 At 31 December 2014 201,780 140,181 - 693,304 7,135 9,539,082 10,582,082
5 Note:

RIRITANEERBELAEFRBBY R ELRIPTA
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TREPIRAEHEERBNIAMEERTE - ZEE
RERRARETRRZFEHSHE - EERBIEDA
HEBSERETHN  WEENESRHERAR -

2015512 431 H - ANR{TEHEE 1,528,440,000,8
7T (2014 4F : 1,481,245,000/87T) 2 & EIEBEE i
EHMEHLE —REE  fERRESRSREBETFRE

=
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The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can
be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,528,440,000 (2014: HK$1,481,245,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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6. EXDEBE

REEIRBRESMGRELEDE8H(EEEBH
BEMRE N IBIWE - MBETHAS R EMAIT
LZEEKBZEBZEERFEAZMMIERE RS
RREETEABZER - THREART - %
R1T - BB RIBIMRITEB DA 2 W RFEE -
AHIRITEB 2 S BRBREBZ IO - ME
IMRITES v SBERBIREBHIBDN

KERBNAMEL 2 BTPE - EmRRE - &F
RIBMERE  AEEBEEEKE DA TIE
HwHIHE

s EARTEBEREEXBAZRPER &
ERFRBER  MAER - BXMNER
RIRTE - REREFSHIHE R E IR o

s BERTEBEEEIENR BEXR - 2E
EeMEREIRE Eﬁm%ﬁ&mﬂ’é
EFTERTEHERBBLERR

c Hﬁﬁ%ﬁi% BEINERY - PREFR
B MERAREE EFREBTER
$‘§Ima¥2§i EMEHE -

e BIMRITEHERAMMNAMNMNTEZE
SN R R B Z (B A SRIT AN S ER1T 5
T R B —RAE R B 2 BRI T
TS o

s HMBREATEERENEME/RNEZ

HEXE  SEREREBES (BRERE
&%)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking

business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment

services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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IRENAREM = - HAUERRARSER D
BZREEF  Em&RBEA - BEZEZHN
ERNE: MAoRZENESERRESERMA
EERBRAMESKAN - B2RMSHNE 2 8B
BREFHIEESDE - DEEZR S IMKIER
FTEZFREF=EXZZRBHFERE - DR
RZ WA HRGARAEE - & THRET
EEIIAFEN2016FERAZECERBRE
B RETRABI R ZEE

FIBTRNBEZ BEEMXKHERRABNDED
B MERAXREBAFAXKEREE -
BERAzZBRARITEEMDBREELA - DEE
NRK DB MEMR ° TR BN RERTDE
EmhkXESFHcEFEBMAS - AFRERAX
SR THEMIIAT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Certain comparative
amounts have been revised to conform to the changes in funds
transfer pricing mechanism and certain income reallocation adopted
in 2015.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. ZEEDERE @) 6.

BZE2015F12H31 ALLEE

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BARS BT BMRT EER
Personal ~ Commercial BEEE  Overseas At Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/(2i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,367,555 1,149,755 377,085 508,611 (66,109) - 3336807
FHERA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 632,469 213,035 190476 126,657 5,204 - 116784
EEIA Total operating income 2,000,024 1,362,790 567,561 635,268 (60,905) - 4,504,738
BELH QOperating expenses (1,260,121) (378,778) (140,878) (469,366) (1,465) - (2,250,608)
TEREFERAtEEREN Operating profit/loss) before impairment
LEERT losses and other credit provisions 739,903 984,012 426,683 165,902 (62,370) - 2,254,130
EREBRREMERRE Loan impairment losses and other credit
(1RE)/ provisions (charged)/written back (230,256) (237,955) 15,000 43,141) - - (496,352)
hAESERAESRER Operating profit/(loss) after impairment
LEERT /() losses and other credit provisions 509,647 746,057 441,683 122,761 (62,370) - 1,751,778
HERENFRENEREE Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
REATERELF (BE) /Y adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (1,283) (12) (13) 7 10,135 - 8,834
HEEFRE NG Net gain on disposal of investments
in securities - - 16,568 - - - 16,568
RALEBENARE 2R Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (47,617) - - (47,617)
N Share of results of an associate - - - 665,942 - - 665,042
ElEERETEE £ Share of results of jointly controlled entities = = = = 21,045 = 21,045
BRI/ (BE) Profit/{loss) before taxation 508,364 746,045 458,238 741,093 (30,200) - 2423450
il Taxation expenses (83,868) (128,097) (75,609) (25,064) (892) - (308,530)
Ritkar/ (B8) Profit{loss) after taxation 424,496 622,048 382,629 716,029 (31,182) - 211492
HZ2015512 431 HLLER For the year ended 31 December 2015
NEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 58,882 12,246 6,759 40,746 50,192 - 168,825
R2015512 431 At 31 December 2015
AREE Segment assets 44238858 55,906,000 63,141,488 31,842,489 5,182,476 (3,633,462) 196,677,849
HRRE Segment liabilities 85575624 37,962,644 16,816,776 23420044 14620327 (3633462 174,770,953
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6. ZEEDERE @) 6.

HE2014F12 A31 B ILEE (KE5)

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Restated)

AR HERG MR BEE
Personal  Commercial BEEK Overseas £t Inter- G
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
EHEMA/ (XiH) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,253,240 986,439 277,843 537,362 (62,387) - 2990497
FEHSRA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 544,320 202,99 223,943 121,551 14,401 (1483 1,105,727
EEHA Total operating income 1,797,560 1,189,434 501,786 658,913 (47,986) (1,483) 4,098,224
BEY QOperating expenses (1,158,834) (350,022) (137,219) (486,161) (19,613) 1,483 (2,150,366)
T AESE Rt E SR E Operating profit/loss) before impairment
LEERH losses and other credit provisions 638,726 839,412 364,567 172,752 (67,599) - 1,947,858
ERREBERAMEERRE Loan impairment losses and other credit
(IRE)/ provisions (charged)/written back (201,779) (63,229) 60,000 (267,960) - - (472,962)
hAESERANEERER, Operating profit/(loss) after impairment
2ERT)/(58) losses and other credit provisions 436,947 776,189 424,567 (95,208) (67,599) - 14748%
HERENFREMETAER Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ARVERREZE(BR) s adjustment of investment properties
and other fixed assets (844) (60) 9 (46) 39,507 - 38,548
HEZHRE 2 Fa Net gain on disposal of investments
in securities - - 17,036 - - - 17,036
ERBEnszE5 Share of results of an associate - - = 602,299 - = 602,299
EEAREHER 545 Share of results of jointly controlled entties - - - - 20,657 - 20,657
R/ (B8) Profit/loss) before taxation 436,103 776,129 441,594 507,045 (7,435) - 215343
PR (i) /Bl Taxation (expenses)/credit (70565 (128,061) (72,863) 32,324 12,986 - (26179)
Bitg &R Profit after taxation 365,538 648,068 368,731 539,369 5,551 - 1,927,257
HEN14E 1231 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2014
NEREEER Depreciation and amortisation 52,198 10,561 6,218 42,831 37,840 - 149,648
R2014£12 8318 At 31 December 2014
PEEE Segment assets 41,988,779 54,596,171 55,550,630 33,581,542 4,302,765 (3,956,294) 186,063,593
PEER Segment liabilities 78375819 36248907 15,126,832 25,631,700 14,573,699 (3,956,294) 166,000,663
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6. ZEEDERE @) 6.
TRBEINTRE 2 WS TIREMNRER ~ BN
B ZRITHBARIMRE s T EERERE - 8
EEXER CERE EERE BFERE

° of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension

&

to customers.

TREHEZREBEZERN  BREDREAEE
ASNEPE PR EARTS - BEBMER S R BE
EA TE MRS 2 FTE M T HEERR.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

124

services to external customers.

B 5 B[
EEREAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZ2015%12H31H For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2015
2B A Operating income 4,094,843 409,895 = 4,504,738
RLAD R A Profit before taxation 2,205,708 217,742 - 2,423,450
R2015%12H31H At 31 December 2015
BEAG Total assets 179,735,799 18,576,197 (1,634,147) 196,677,849
BEAE Total liabilities 160,169,710 16,235,390 (1,634,147) 174,770,953
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 552,828 = 871,495
kA B R RAIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 76,231,176 1,862,244 (31,100) 78,062,320
& 32453 T
1K 84
BB REA Inter-
Hong Kong JRFY segment et
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2014512 A31H For the year ended
HFE 31 December 2014
2B A Operating income 3,727,153 371,071 = 4,098,224
R0 Al A Profit before taxation 1,969,042 184,394 - 2,153,436
R 2014512 A 31 B (KE51) At 31 December 2014 (Restated)
BEAG Total assets 169,963,337 17,355,567 (1,255,311) 186,063,593
BEA Total liabilities 152,043,326 15,212,648 (1,255,311) 166,000,663
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 554,867 = 873,534
kA B R RAHE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 74,888,084 1,938,999 (36,760) 76,790,323
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7. FEFEWA

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

2015 2014
FEWA Interest income
e MIERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 312,858 351,080
BHIRE Investments in securities 695,375 688,879
ZHEERNMEMEER Advances and other accounts 4,045,394 3,892,762
5,053,627 4,932,721
FE X H Interest expense

RITER RPTH

Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers

1,438,672 1,672,730

BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 78,234 72,106
BEITHNERES Issued debt securities = 3,494
BBED Subordinated notes 198,517 189,996
HAh Others 1,307 1,898
1,716,730 1,940,224

FEWABE Included within interest income
RARTFEFTEBEES) Interest income on financial

FFABERNCRIEE assets not at fair value

Z A BN through profit or loss 5,047,101 4,902,764
MNEXHES Included within interest expense
RAARFEFEBEES Interest expenses on financial

STABZENERMERE liabilities not at fair value

Z B through profit or loss 1,714,098 1,935,288
REZE2015F K 2014FE12 B31 HILEE @ Wi For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, there was no interest

ERBEREEEZHNSHWA -

income recognised on impaired assets.
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. FHRBEBERAESWA 8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2015 2014
REEBERASKA Fee and commission income
RAAFEFEREES) Fee and commission income from
ATAERNEREERAEZ financial assets and liabilities not
R & R A S WA at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEEZRBERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 136,538 135,992
—ESmA - Trade finance 91,987 73,158
—fERAR — Credit card 301,225 311,848
HM B ERAS KA Other fee and commission income
— B AE — Securities brokerage 132,011 87,853
— R SHE R EAM — Insurance distribution and others 111,249 94,747
—DERE N EERRE — Retail investment and wealth
management services 185,001 170,801
—RITREERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 61,850 58,599
—HifrBE — Other fees 109,824 128,289
1,129,685 1,061,287
REERMASIH Fee and commission expense
KARFEFTEBHE Fee and commission expense from
AIAERNEREERAEY financial assets and liabilities not
k% ERAEZH at fair value through profit or loss
—FEEBENAE® - Handling fees and commission 205,536 215,957
- ENEMREER — Other fees paid 14,512 13,610
220,048 229,567
REERE=FRMHETE X5t BPEEEREK The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
BEIERS - ZZUREATNEEZEELT investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
BEEEMFEHRRNA - are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements.
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9. FEEWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME
2015 2014
HNE B B F U Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 137,481 193,762
HIEEBERENESR 2 F K/ (Ei8) Net gain/(loss) on trading securities 3,784 (11,123)
FHEEBREMITET A 2 F e Net gain from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose 57,452 51,351
AR ELE R ERER TR 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (8,774) (25,173)
EENAAFEE B EZBE ABEN Net gain arising from financial
ERMITAE 23K instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 6,630 5,604
196,573 214,421
10. H&ERA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2015 2014
A HEFHFEE 2 R EMA Dividend income from investments in
available-for-sale securities 17,166 16,608
wEME S WAL Gross rental income from
investment properties 22,994 22,853
HaAS A Other rental income 11,423 11,012
Hth Others 10,048 9,113
61,631 59,586
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

11. EEXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2015 2014
1E B B M A A S i Employee compensation and
(PRREREEHM) (KE12) benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 12) 1,452,712 1,314,247
TERAEMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TRENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—1TEMASS N — Rental of premises 169,209 177,569
—Hfty - Others 125,794 126,223
& (Mi7E30) Depreciation (Note 30) 166,786 145,250
EERHEHEE S N Advertising and promotion costs 71,991 90,932
ENf » X B REE Printing, stationery and postage 51,386 48,911
EREE#EER (MirE28) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 28) 2,039 4,398
ZERET N & Auditors’ remuneration 7,570 7,322
Hith Others 203,121 235,514
2,250,608 2,150,366

12. EEFMEENZH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2015 2014
HHEREMAETER Salaries and other staff costs 1,364,590 1,235,432

DARR A7 74 EE R S il 2 188 (s 12 8% Provision for share-based
(FfizE45) compensation charged (Note 45) 9,643 5,622

BIRET Pension costs — defined

— A EHKETE contribution plans 78,479 73,193
1,452,712 1,314,247
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13. EXRESRERAMEERE 13. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER CREDIT

PROVISIONS
2015 2014
BRUREEE Loan impairment losses
FEER K EAR B R EEE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
SEIRR (B ) losses on advances and other accounts
—-E52F — Trade bills 3,670 2,070
—REEX - Advances to customers 508,713 510,339
— R A B R EMER B — Accrued interest and other accounts (1,031) 20,553
511,352 532,962
FEIEER R EAR B REEE Net charge of impairment losses on
R advances and other accounts
—{ERIFT& — Individually assessed 218,941 249,015
—RAFHE — Collectively assessed 292,411 283,947
511,352 532,962
EReE Of which
— I R RN — new and additional allowances
(BENFAEEME ) (including amounts directly
written off in the year) 641,447 596,620
— % - releases (76,697) (22,866)
=gl — recoveries (53,398) (40,792)
511,352 532,962
H {5 ER Other credit provisions
AR ERES 2 REEE Net (reversal)/charge of impairment
F(EI8), TR losses on available-for-sale
securities
— e — Collectively assessed (15,000) 15,000
BIEEER R EWFIE R 2 Net reversal of impairment losses
BHIE 2 REEEF 5 on investments in securities
included in the loans and
receivables category
— 4R AR — Collectively assessed = (75,000)
WrasBR A 32 Net charge to income statement 496,352 472,962
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

14, HEFRZREZFWE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. NET GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENTS IN
SECURITIES

2015 2014

HE A& E 7 F s

& BREREE R K RKFIRER]
ZRBHREFER

15. HIE

H S 1S H 012 R A AT B AR B v I DA B =
16.5% (2014 4F : 16.5% ) IR B o JGINRFTY
12 F R IMib a1 FE R B i IR AN B8 [ 48 i 7 it
EZIRITRERTE -

BELERARRAAEEREREZR - WARZE
HIBBERBNEREER THREATER 25
KNERHHER ©

Net gain on disposal of available-for-

sale securities 16,568 21,692
Net loss on disposal of investments

in securities included in the loans

and receivables category - (4,656)

16,568 17,036

15. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2015 2014
RNEEFEHIE : Current income tax:
—EBFEH - Hong Kong profits tax 287,227 247,400
—/BHMRIE - Overseas taxation 38,784 31,778
—RBAFENR 2 EE — Under-provision in prior years 399 5,418
IREFIE (MizE37) ¢ Deferred income tax (Note 37):
— BT R = A A I [l - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (18,660) (61,405)
—(ERHBER - Utilisation of tax losses 780 2,988
I8 Taxation 308,530 226,179
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2015 2014

R AT gt 7

BEEBFIEHE16.5%
HEZBE
RIABERR
HfEIR 2 B E

ERE 2 WA
TREFRAZ H

UATR 1% BT 2 5 2 Bt & AR
HEHEHIE R 2 X8

ERBERERZRHER

REEFET R ZEE
iR

Profit before taxation 2,423,450 2,153,436

Tax calculated at Hong Kong

profits tax rate of 16.5% 399,869 355,317
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in

other countries 4,636 (13,003)
Income not subject to taxation (16,639) (35,870)
Expenses not deductible 33,766 18,299

Results of associates and jointly

controlled entities reported

net of tax (113,501) (102,787)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised

tax losses = (1,195)
Under-provision in prior years 399 5,418
Taxation 308,530 226,179
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. EEE£ 16. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2015 2014
EE=Me Directors’ fee 447 345
e FE - BEUHmREMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and
other allowances 103,334 94,355
RIREAET B2 B =K Employer’s contribution to
retirement benefit schemes 2,636 2,636
106,417 97,336

RNEFERKNERLE  TERAEBEBER T
MEARS - RHREH  EFRREIAEF—
FRARBIZEEEFENMEEEFBREKRF
%5 (2014 4F : 48) o

AEFAWES [ FEERIFEELD 2 FEKEF
(20144 : 4E) -

17. REHEBEQATNREZEE

AEBRBEAREERTZRGOER  BEE
$R1T7IR2015F 12 B AR EF R R 1 THTH LA
5 (TEERD ) B H 16.95% [& = 14.66% °

RREBGTERIE 28 F(ME RRIREIRE -
BERREEEERMBREERRTHERE
EHEREEAYENETEREHAEETREZQ
Al o FAER 20% —REWR S TEREFEERY
B BIERFENEBIRWRER

HRAEEEERRITESSARLAR - LA
BRNZERRRF  AEEREERITZER
B AR EF L A REIE -
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No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2014: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors
during the year (2014: Nil).

17. LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT IN
AN ASSOCIATE

The Group’s shareholding interest in BOCQ, which is the Group’s
associate, decreased from 16.95% to 14.66% after BOCQ completed
its issuance of new H-shares by way of a placement (the “Share
Placement”) in December 2015.

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard No. 28,
“Investments in Associates”, an associate is an entity over which the
investor has significant influence, including the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions, without controlling the
management of the investee. Usually a holding of less than 20% is
presumed not to have significant influence, unless such influence can
be clearly demonstrated.

The Group’s interest in BOCQ has been accounted for as an associate
using the equity method as the Group has representation in the
Board of BOCQ, and the ability to participate in the decision making
process.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
17. REAHEHE ARREZERE @ 17. LOSS ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT IN
AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

REER2015FHEEERITIFA ZIRM T - 1% The reduction in the Group’s shareholding in BOCQ in 2015 is
WERIEE THNEERITZRERIE - ZKE A treated as a deemed partial disposal of investment in BOCQ. The
BOEERGIAE R 2ERIIEEHRREEFRTT loss arising from the deemed partial disposal is caused mainly by
RECE B Ap ek 12 - EETEITRG 2 BRRAAEF the lowering in the net asset value per share of BOCQ immediately
REEREZERRERMDAIZEBIRFEEEMSHE after the completion of the Share Placement, as the net proceeds per
FREEEE RN - R A LESHAE share on the new issue is lower than the net asset value per share
BREERITHERE  AEBRLHERERTE immediately before the Share Placement. With the partial disposal of
EFEZ TRERERRLE 2 BEEE the Group’s interest in BOCQ having been recognised, the reduction

in the Group’s share of BOCQ net assets is accounted as a deemed
disposal loss.

18. BRE 18. DIVIDENDS
2015 2014
IR G E AR 2R S 1.80 7T Interim dividend paid of HK$1.80
(2014 4F : ) (2014: Nil) per ordinary share 111,600 -
Bk FAR T AR BAR 2 6.10 8 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$6.10
(2014 4 : /%) (2014: Nil) per ordinary share 378,200 -
489,800 -
19. B REHRITHER 19. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
2015 2014
RE RIERITH A Cash and balances with banks 2,182,568 2,728,441
BN HATE R Money at call and short notice 15,322,464 12,109,670

17,505,032 14,838,111
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D
(LAEREFThzgI7R)

20. HFIFEEAENESREEURQF

EfEEESETARENTHE
E

FHEEBERBNRES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

2015 2014

EBES
—EBLD
—3LT

FHEEBEREME A

AR T AR AR ED
HABRNSRARE
ERFES -
— B L

BER BRI BRI
MAT B 8 A RSB A
BEMERAERE
BEEEHESNE -
—BEEHFEEREES
2B ES (SARLER)

—BRERIEEERGZRE S ZBUTES

— R AR B RE T
— DS
—%

R2015FE % 2014F12 A31H @ Ll EEEH

BHAATEH B2 BB A BB ALE DR
BEHE -

Trading securities:

Debt securities:
— Listed in Hong Kong 58,398 243,944
— Unlisted 8,513,996 6,606,418

Total trading securities

8,572,394 6,850,362
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss:
Debt securities:
— Listed outside Hong Kong 16,498 9,821

Total trading securities and
financial assets designated at

fair value through profit or loss 8,588,892 6,860,183

Included within debt securities are:
— Government bonds included in
trading securities which are
cash equivalents 228,497 2,040,796
— Government bonds included in
trading securities 8,343,648 4,809,321
— Other debt securities issued by:

— Public sector entities 249 245

16,498

— Corporate entities 9,821

8,588,892 6,860,183

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no certificates of

deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value

debt securities.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
21. fTHEEMIT A 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
R2015F 12 A1 HARINBMITAETEG N 2B E The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
AEREAFENT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2015 were as follows:
B4/
EESHE AVE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 8
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SNETET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and futures contracts 81,116,914 269,836 (258,369)
B8 A\ Ko SN e Currency options purchased and written 55,739,652 572,595 (574,619)
Z)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FEHE Interest rate futures = = -
gl peegect i Interest rate swaps 4,867,283 34,377 (98,232)
A) B tiTETA c) Equity derivatives
ARG R i Equity options purchased and written 222,582 7,961 (7,924)
FEEERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (A&t held for trading 141,946,431 884,769 (939,144)
2) FHEEHRRGEZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B) IEEN R FHEEZITETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
Fll=ia 5 Interest rate swaps 19,850,922 194,559 (340,795)
gl Currency swaps 1,234,871 = (178,493)
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(8F) A5t held for hedging 21,085,793 194,559 (519,288)
ERRZITERRMTIE Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF) A assets/(liabilities) 163,032,224 1,079,328 (1,458,432)

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 135



B F Sk Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

21. $TE€mI B wm)

R2014F 12 A31 BRBBEITETEA N ZEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

ReREAFENT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2014 were as follows:
&8/
2 AEE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BfE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SNETET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and futures contracts 58,078,027 104,394 (120,380)
AR T INE R Currency options purchased and written 76,459,074 375,891 (375,654)
Z)FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
FEHE Interest rate futures 31,020 118 -
gl peegect i Interest rate swaps 12,489,451 50,168 (155,762)
A) B tiTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
ARG R i Equity options purchased and written 332,987 9,870 (9,446)
FEEERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(Bf) A held for trading 147,390,559 540,441 (661,242)
2) FEEHRRGEZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
B) IEEN R FHEEZITETR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
GilEs it Interest rate swaps 19,416,887 216,388 (385,094)
Bkt Currency swaps 1,319,385 - (100,489)
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(8F) A held for hedging 20,736,272 216,388 (485,583)
ERRZITERRMTIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF) A assets/(liabilities) 168,126,831 756,829 (1,146,825)

BREMETAZATEREZEREEFHEAER
H(ER)WFE -

The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been
taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(ASEET TThL5R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
21. fTE€RMTE @) 21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
EERS HHR5 -
Trading Hedging Total
25LE Notional amount 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
EXGH Exchange rate contracts
RELHERY Forward and futures contracts 81,116,914 58,078,027 - - 81,116,914 58,078,027
Eisi Currency swaps - - 1,234,871 1,319,385 1,234,871 1,319,385
MNEHER D Foreign exchange option contracts
—BINEHR - Currency options purchased 27,854,259 38,243,970 - - 27,854,259 38,243,970
—BiINEEE - Currency options written 27,885,393 38,215,104 - - 27,885,393 38,215,104

136,856,566 134,537,101 1,234,871 1,319,385 138,091,437 135,856,486

HEEH Interest rate contracts
BAREERY Forward and futures contracts - 31,020 - = - 31,020
pilpech Interest rate swaps 4,867,283 12,489,451 19,850,922 19,416,887 24,718,205 31,906,338
4,867,283 12,520,471 19,850,922 19,416,387 24,718,205 31,937,358
EdreYg Other contracts
Bt L Equity option contracts
~BABE - Options purchased 112,359 167,562 - - 112,359 167,562
—hHSE - Options written 110,223 165,425 - - 110,223 165,425

222,582 332,987 - = 222,582 332,987
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(LAEREFThzgI7R)

21. $TE€mI B wm)
FitRFFAREB I v B8 FHREETH X
271231 BEERERINEE NEERRINE
gEE o 20T

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December without taking into account the effect
of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as

follows:

2015 2014

ERGH4 Exchange rate contracts
RENEESL Forward and futures contracts 487,000 322,012
Bkt Currency swaps 12,349 13,194
5 A\ JNE B Currency options purchased 1,128,111 1,322,809

MEEL Interest rate contracts

Fl =37 HA Interest rate swaps 139,476 156,200
Hih a4 Other contracts 13,714 17,957
1,780,650 1,832,172

HETEZANBEER/ERBEHRNRS
E UTMRKREERSE -

EERBNEHEI2EFESEREL Z(R
TRER)RADMFRE2HE A EAT 28
BARFRXZHF REESORBFERE -

AR EFRIEND AR 2.9 E

NEEE R AR R B 2 2 A (B 8 SRS
BREEERREBGIEER 2 EFHFIEE - AlEH
EEBELFAREEITABZBHBEEFEEAR -
50 T A 2 Y25 557,750,000 7T (2014 4F -
E187/351,687,000/47T) o ¥HIE B G E
% 7 [E918 /4 66,524,0008 7T (2014 4 : W25 A4
26,514,000%7T) ° ILFXEE 2FIRMFZ
[BAFES BRI A 2 F ke HiE )
ﬂq °
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The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note
2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The gains
on the hedging instruments were HK$57,750,000 (2014: losses of
HK$51,687,000). The losses on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$66,524,000 (2014: gains of HK$26,514,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 9.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

22. BEHERKAEMKRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2015 2014
AAER KRR Loans and advances to individuals
—EA — Credit cards 4,706,017 4,057,656
— I E R - Mortgages 31,273,079 29,109,305
—HAh - Others 9,729,001 8,660,111
EERRBR Loans and advances to corporate entities
—BHEXR - Term loans 29,150,773 29,903,231
—IZIBE R - Mortgages 16,023,858 14,082,486
—B5mE - Trade finance 7,986,955 7,135,572
—HAh - Others 10,762,963 12,289,676
EEEREEE Gross advances to customers 109,632,646 105,238,037
BS5 R Trade bills 6,469,899 7,384,057
HnEE (FfzE32) Other assets (Note 32) 3,027,670 3,771,683
119,130,215 116,393,777
R « REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— &R F - Individually assessed (347,538) (238,250)
— kR ERHE - Collectively assessed (367,229) (296,666)
(714,767) (534,916)
BHEERRHEMER Advances and other accounts 118,415,448 115,858,861
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22. BREERKREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBVHREMER (a)

B HRK

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

and advances to customers and trade bills

(B2 — (B3RP A

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

REBEXR Hity &t
Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRBEEEZEE Movement in impairment allowances on loans
and advances to individuals
201441 A1 B&&S Balance at 1 January 2014 218 1,674 1,892
EES (%) /175 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (768) 1,844 1,076
ReEBEERMHE Loans written off as uncollectible - (703) (703)
WEIE R EFHE 2 BT Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 768 693 1,461
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 218 3,508 3,726
20151 A1 BEH Balance at 1 January 2015 218 3,508 3,726
WERE (B15) ek Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (466) 2,309 1,843
RECEEE TR Loans written off as uncollectible = (2,444) (2,444)
WEIE R EFHME 2 R Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 466 1,195 1,661
BE 5 I LA R Exchange and other adjustments - 8) 8)
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 218 4,560 4,778
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. BREERKREMERE @)

() EFERRBAREZZEBEZEEEHER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REER - RETE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
kS BEEX Hith &5t
Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBHRREE Movement in impairment
EHE2EH allowances on loans and
advances to individuals
20141 A1 BE&ER Balance at 1 January 2014 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
BB ERR Impairment losses charged 53,727 3,718 139,283 196,728
A EREFMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible (66,561) - (144,873) (211,434)
WEIBREFME 2 ER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 13,486 - 15,889 29,375
B 5, e H At A Exchange and other adjustments - (29) ®) (32)
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
20151 A1 BEH Balance at 1 January 2015 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
REE B Impairment losses charged 45,703 18,361 168,171 232,235
ReEBEERMHE Loans written off as uncollectible (63,448) - (182,068) (245,516)
WEIE A EFMEZER Recoveries of advances written
off in previous years 18,123 - 20,216 38,339
B 5, o H fth Exchange and other adjustments - (224) (26) (250)
2015%12H31H At 31 December 2015 27,068 28,502 59,793 115,363
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(ASEET TThL5R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22, REHERRHEMER @ 22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

() EFERRBAREZZBZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
B HiR%E (&) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)

B2 — BRI

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

BHEX E50E
Term RIBER Trade Hit S
loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERREH Movement in impairment
REEFEZED allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
2014451 A1 BRY& S Balance at 1 January 2014 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
REBERE /(D) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 68,052 (1,010) 142,687 17,704 227,433
REBEETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible (122,907) = (114,316) (25,606) (262,829)
WEIBREEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 277 25 1,635 8,014 9,951
R Exchange adjustments (2,001) - (938) - (2,939)
2014512 A31H At 31 December 2014 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
20151 A1 BEY &R Balance at 1 January 2015 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
REE B Impairment losses charged 84,555 1 97,825 34,717 217,098
ReLERETMIHE Loans written off as uncollectible (22,045) - (75,540) (19,898) (117,483)
W BB REEMH ZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 698 - 9,126 3,541 13,365
R R AR Exchange and other adjustments (1,180) - (2,643) - (3,829)
2015%12A31H At 31 December 2015 99,438 306 171,597 51,834 323,175
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22, REERRHEMERR @ 22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
() EFERRBAREZZEBEZEEEHER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers and trade bills (Continued)
REERE-RE T
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEX E50E
Term REBEX Trade Hity a5t
loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
LEERREH Movement in impairment
REEE22E allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
201451 A1 BRY& & Balance at 1 January 2014 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
REEERERE Impairment losses charged 27,125 5,859 40,769 13,419 87,172
REEEET MR Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (5,308) (5,308)
WEIEREEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 5 5
BE 5 R E AR Exchange and other adjustments (492) - (96) (511) (1,099)
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
20151 B 1 BM& SR Balance at 1 January 2015 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
REEERE/(25) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 31,489 15,762 (16,525) 29,560 60,286
ReEEEERMER Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (11,696) (11,696)
WEEREFHE L ER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 33 33
R R AR Exchange and other adjustments (1,823) - (406) (529) (2,758)
2015%12831H At 31 December 2015 87,740 29,968 52,058 81,844 251,610
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
22, REERRHEMERR @ 22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
(2) EStRIERHEMEE 2EEEHFREHERR (b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on

accrued interest and other accounts

EEtRE R EAiRE
Accrued interest and
other accounts
WEEE- BEEE-

RE R 18 B 31

Impairment  Impairment

allowances - allowances —
Collective individual
assessment assessment

EstREREMEEE Movement in impairment
WEEE2EE allowances on accrued
interest and other accounts

20141 A1 BH&RR: Balance at 1 January 2014 319 -
B E R Impairment losses charged 47 20,506
2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 366 20,506
201541 A1 BW &R Balance at 1 January 2015 366 20,506
B ES 18 [B] Impairment losses reversed (110) -
VE 5 R B A2 Exchange and other adjustments = (921)
2015%12H31 H At 31 December 2015 256 19,585
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22. BREERKREMERE @)

(R) BREEFERRBRzAEHAEERIER
mE :

EFEFRLBSEEREREMERAARENR
ERMZEBaNMEETEP Z2RBKREF
7 o BHRMIAEAREE BRI RERE - AE
EBEZHEEE -

B AR R Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(c) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset
at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2015 2014
KEEMERE 2 EUER Gross investment in finance
R lease receivables:
1FELARN Not later than 1 year 2,640,295 2,701,878
1FEUERESF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 3,694,792 4,066,931
5F A Later than 5 years 1,336,971 2,406,979
7,672,058 9,175,788
MEME 2 AHKERZ Unearned future finance income
BEWRA on finance leases (708,387) (1,045,112)
RERERE F5E Net investment in finance leases 6,963,671 8,130,676
MEREREFHEL The net investment in finance
DT : leases is analysed as follows:
1 FELARN Not later than 1 year 2,399,057 2,415,545
1FEUERESF Later than 1 year and
not later than 5 years 3,426,844 3,696,568
5F A Later than 5 years 1,137,770 2,018,563

R2015F 12 A31H @ Ll EH SR EEE
AR EERFIREE (2014 F : &) o

201512 431 B » AEERAKRITZ EFR
BEEFHEBFENITIRE 2 #E RS RUARIEL %
& &t /45,415,000 7% 7T (2014 4F : 34,002,000
PETT) °

6,963,671 8,130,676

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
Nil).

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2015 of the Group
amounted to HK$45,415,000 (2014: HK$34,002,000).
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
23. AHHERES 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
2015 2014
BEBES Debt securities:
—&BEE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 12,683,540 11,888,205
—BHBLAINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 9,060,290 9,151,353
—JE Lt — Unlisted 1,989,695 1,920,749

23,733,525 22,960,307

RS Equity securities:
—&BEm - Listed in Hong Kong 208,587 171,946
—3JE LT - Unlisted 245,733 219,494
454,320 391,440
A EFAFARE Total available-for-sale securities 24,187,845 23,351,747
i Note:
R2015F K 201412 318 » LilERHEARE LS As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, there were no certificates of deposit held
A B IERF B T 505 © included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
A EE RIS TS Available-for-sale securities
BRIDMAT - are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:
— FR SRR J R R ERAT - Central governments and
central banks 3,848,200 2,535,358
— RNEIE — Public sector entities 500,463 198,916
—RTT R E At £ B iE - Banks and other financial
institutions 4,132,163 5,161,559
— 1 - Corporate entities 15,704,566 15,453,461
— Efth - Others 2,453 2,453

24,187,845 23,351,747
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
24, BEZRIHAES 24. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES
2015 2014
BEBES Debt securities:
—&BEE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 2,384,910 2,255,635
—BHBLAINET - Listed outside Hong Kong 4,441,722 5,234,147
—3E Lt — Unlisted 3,649,664 3,343,158

10,476,296 10,832,940

BREEBKES Included within debt securities are:
— 5B 17 50E — Certificates of deposit held 1,177,533 1,947,377
—H b ERE S — Other debt securities 9,298,763 8,885,563
10,476,296 10,832,940
B ERHBERRET Held-to-maturity securities are
BRI AT T : analysed by categories of
issuers as follows:
— FR SRR J R R ERAT - Central governments and
central banks 2,436,484 1,219,264
— RIT SR B fth & RS - Banks and other financial
institutions 3,598,931 4,927,850
— 1 — Corporate entities 4,440,881 4,685,826

10,476,296 10,832,940
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(CABREFThz5I7R)

25. TRBECZENIR

AEBERBE2015F12 A3 ALEFEALEE
o BT RS MEE

REE2014F 12 A1 BIEFER » AEBEEH
DETINEREE -

() Efo BMEEEERRERREERR
ZREREZTHHEER

R2014F6 A5 ' "B B ERKEWKIELE
RIEFT D AT A BIEE B 3 & B W IE 28 Bl I 7
EERANREERANZEFEE -

ZESRMEENEF VBB 2 ATFERERES
%Utzszs 504,0007% 7t }2.873,550,00058 7T ° &= #T
I E A 2 N FEEE 45,046,000 7% 7T 2 5 1E

() BT BETAIREETHZR/FESR
&%

201456 H26 B - REBEMDHEE THEEHN
D8R 48T (E /5 4,378,815,0008 7T 2 Al it &
EHEEFAFERIES  REAEEELRES
ZEBHFZERZREI -
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group did not reclassify any financial assets in the year ended 31
December 2015.

In the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made the following
reclassification of financial assets.

(a) Reclassification of investments in securities included in the
loans and receivables category to the available-for-sale
category

On 5 June 2014, the Group reclassified all investments in securities
included in the loans and receivable category that qualified for
recognition as available-for-sale out of the loans and receivables
category.

The fair value and carrying value of these financial assets at the
date of reclassification were HK$828,504,000 and HK$873,550,000
respectively. The fair value loss of HK$45,046,000 generated upon the
reclassification had been taken to other comprehensive income.

(b) Reclassification of certain available-for-sale securities as
held-to-maturity securities

On 26 June 2014, the Group reclassified certain available-for-sale
debt securities with a total market value at the time of reclassification
of HK$4,378,815,000 as held-to-maturity securities, reflecting
a change in the Group’s intention on holding these securities to
maturity.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. BERNFRE

26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2015 2014

JEE B EFE Share of net assets 3,754,594 3,402,295

EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623

A&t Total 4,099,217 3,746,918

2015 2014

1A1H At 1 January 3,746,918 3,304,993

FE(RBRFRIE 4R Share of results, net of tax 665,942 602,299
FE(EBR TR IR E BhRHEE Share of investment revaluation

reserve, net of tax 59,793 43,644

RFAHE 2 EE Loss on deemed disposal (47,617) -

BARE Dividend received (158,071) (129,187)

ERER Exchange differences (167,748) (74,831)

12 A31H At 31 December 4,099,217 3,746,918

M2015F R 2014F12 H31 H 2B E AR EE

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

BRI December 2015 and 2014:
SR R & E it B FEEK FritERE DL
728 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of interest
Name and operation activities in ownership
2015 2014

BEERIT FREE A RATIE HRIT
Bank of Chongqing People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 16.95%
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. B=EAQATIRE @) 26.
(R) EERITZRRMEER (a)

EERTZEATEET2E A E12A318 - #E
20154 22014412 A 31 B IFFEHR - A&E
REZ 201512 A31 H 2014612 A31 HIE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to

150

12 A 2 BHREREBEERRITIER °

the 12 months to 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

2015 & 2014 &
12831 H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
EERTZEREENARER Selected balance sheet
information of BOCQ
& RIEF RIRITOERR Cash and balances with central banks 45,592,990 44,609,051
FEUTHE b 8R1T K & B s Due from other banks and
financial institutions 54,729,387 67,989,236
BEEERNBR Loans and advances to customers 145,386,839 130,100,237
Hib R &E Other financial assets 129,026,511 94,690,965
H&EE Other assets 6,952,227 5,660,511
BEAF Total assets 381,687,954 343,050,000
FETEABRTT K & s Due to other banks and
financial institutions 87,405,976 102,010,776
EFEER Customer deposits 237,861,211 209,845,853
Hib e ahafE Other financial liabilities 22,068,534 4,729,774
Hh B & Other liabilities 8,939,236 6,591,418
BEEE Total liabilities 356,274,957 323,177,821
e et Total equity 25,412,997 19,872,179

BERITBRRERAFTERRITEAPBRERA
ZEREEHRE

RERTTIE(G IR B RT

Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’ equity to the carrying

amount in the Bank’s consolidated financial statements

The Bank’s share of total

shareholders’ equity 3,726,753 3,368,619

o WEERE 2 PR R A T EREE Add: Goodwill and fair value
adjustment at acquisition 372,464 378,299
BEHEE Carrying amount 4,099,217 3,746,918
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. HEERQATRE @) 26. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(FF) EERITZRENKER @m) (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

BI12H831 BHEEL
For the year ended
31 December
2015 2014

BEERITZEERREER

Selected income statement
information of BOCQ

R B Net interest income 8,631,850 7,832,779
FRSE RS WA Net fee and commission income 1,863,993 1,142,352
EREEER Loan impairment charges (1,399,548) (1,118,118)
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation (189,022) (171,951)
HiIE S Tax expense (1,355,857)  (1,210,584)
FREE A Profit for the year 3,907,913 3,553,508
H b 2w Other comprehensive income 367,227 254,628
EHE W= BEE Total comprehensive income 4,275,140 3,808,136
BWEERITIRE Dividends received from BOCQ 158,071 129,187

27. HEEFHERRE

27. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

2015 2014

SE ETRRE - R Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FEIE U R Share of post-acquisition reserves 51,119 45,694
71,119 65,694
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
27. HEEZHFHERRE @ 27. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
R2015F K% 2014412 A 31 B My A 4 =82 40 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
N~ 2015 and 2014:
EHEEEZEDLL

X 3t B FEER R B Percentage of
728 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREGE AR AR A 7 B8 R BRI - BE
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
RIS AR AT B8 BET X BA
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%

Hong Kong
RIS RARAA BB BETER  BE
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong

TESRB IR AR A T 2 AE s A AN SR ITE A - The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
TSR =T AR A T LRI S B A R A 7 Jh iR Bk Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
ERRER AT 2 EHEAT - Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium

Holding Limited.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. BEREREE 28. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BORR EFBE
& BVEE Bl EE
BYEE Core  Customer
HE Contract deposit relationship [k &it
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
AR Cost
2015F1 A18 R At 1 January 2015 and
20155124318 31 December 2015 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
Ve & Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
20151 F1A At 1 January 2015 - 26,499 80,583 67,185 - 174,267
ER (A1) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 2,039 - 2,039
20155124318 At 31 December 2015 - 26,499 80,583 69,224 - 176,306
REE Carrying value
201512531 A At 31 December 2015 811,690 - - 1,553 58,252 871,495
BUER EPBE
ah B AE B AR
BlEE Core  Customer
mE Contract deposit  relationship i ait
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
AR Cost
2014F1 18R At 1 January 2014 and
2014%12A318 31 December 2014 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
Ve 6 Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2014F151A At 1 January 2014 - 26,499 80,583 62,787 - 169,869
ERE L (1) Charge for the year (Note 11) - - - 4,398 - 4,398
20145124318 At 31 December 2014 - 26,499 80,583 67,185 - 174,267
REE Carrying value
201412310 At 31 December 2014 811,690 - - 3,592 58,252 873,534
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

28. HEREFEE®@®

BERERPRZEBEVEEERALN  RLERLK
FPRARETEEMARBERELENFEE
FZURFHEE - BREAERERMRYES i
RIS E R BB 1B MAR AR RIERE RS

0

BEDEEREANBEERERE —BNEKD
HERACHSELSN (REEEEM]) - &
EDEMEZINT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

201412 H31 HK 201541231 H
At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015

RISERT fEIASRAT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas &5t
Banking Banking Banking Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
JRFT Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

HEESFERENR  HHEBRBFTEZERAE
BEMEE2HCELBEMIDIRSE - ZaTHIE
FEaE=sEEEABMGR - K5G8 2 AR

> B RIAISF SR B AR R F IR E

%?ﬁ;ﬂu%sﬁu&ﬁﬂ@i c Z5FrTEIEREE
BABERNHUBHARSCEEBMNZEBRZE
TSR TE RIS BA N B0 B VE ISR 2 ST S FTAR &l » FTAE
FA 2 B3R 2R Th i BN AN 52 [ 2 & AN AR I S )
£10.9% (20144 : 9.7%) °

PSR EET R ERFA T ERA2RBREEBR
5 2. 3% Tt Al B I #E B 2R % LA P HA AT 81 2 78 Rl
A BUAEEFERE2% R E5FAEEK
R FTEAZANR X 510.9% (2014 F : 9.7%)
TR ENANEE 2 EARK A IR T2 -

AR EE AR R R SR 2 BB B 1R (2014
FE) -
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Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 10.9% (2014: 9.7%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 10.9%
(2014: 9.7%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2014: Nil).
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. MELQF 29. SUBSIDIARIES

MR2015F12 A31 H » NiR1T 2 ZEMBE AR The following is a list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

T~ December 2015:
BRTEBRRE
o fif it B Particulars of
NEEE FTEEK Place of issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation share capital
RHFTERIT (R E) AR AR R1T i AR HARE
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China RMB1,200,000,000
RPIEERITRH AR AR R17 P
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau MOP225,000,000
REREER AR AR R4 e
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong HK$200,000
mE¥ RBREAHS
Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1
REEFEARAA I ABRTE e
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong HK$100,000
REZER BB
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$9,998
mE¥ KBRS
Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1
RFTEHBRAR EHFEER e

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
REZER e

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1
REZER BB

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1

RETE R GTA R AR mEE e

Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Inactive Hong Kong HK$20
mE¥ KBRS

DSLI (1) Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1
mE¥ REBRAES

Channel Winner Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1

ZEUBAR AR i i e

OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong HK$1,000
mE¥ REBRIES

Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1

RREUH(FE)ERAH mE¥ BB

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong HK$450,000,000

HEREBEBRAR MERE BB

Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited Property investment Hong Kong HK$20
MERE REBRIES

Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1
MERE REBRIES

Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. MR TR @ 29. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRI P R ZEERATAR (D A PR A ] (L 22% H 2 [ 52 The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
FDSB BCM (1) Limited &2DSB BCM (2) Limited Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
AN U ERRIEAARRITEEERERES ° indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2)

Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

MRIOBPIRmERITIRMD AR AR ~ KFRIT(HEH) Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
R AT R _ EAMHBAREINER 2 AT - HAb Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
NEEHEEBLE - above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

AFERTT(FRE) BR AR 2008 F 7 BEFBR Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
HEEA S - HARBR AP EE A R AR 2 AR July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
"IBRAR] (BHAE  BAIBRFIZER by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
&) o the People’s Republic of China.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. TERHMEEEE 30. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

ESAN
RERSRE
Furniture,
equipment
{TE  and motor S5t
Premises vehicles Total
HZE2014F12 A31 HILFE Year ended 31 December 2014
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,321,700 383,650 1,705,350
i Additions 1,103,000 139,556 1,242,556
BN BRTERKREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (66,966) - (66,966)
L& Disposals - (2,757) (2,757)
FrEXH (HisE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (41,733) (103,517) (145,250)
EHER Exchange difference (3,325) (1,400) (4,725)
FARREFE Closing net book amount 2,312,676 415,532 2,728,208
2014412 A31 H At 31 December 2014
AR Cost 2,534,076 878,301 3,412,377
R2ENE Accumulated depreciation (221,400) (462,769) (684,169)
IRESE Net book amount 2,312,676 415,532 2,728,208
BZE2015512A31 HILEE Year ended 31 December 2015
FHREFE Opening net book amount 2,312,676 415,532 2,728,208
i Additions 233,281 96,994 330,275
BN RTERKREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties (10,507) - (10,507)
L& Disposals - (1,457) (1,457)
WEZH (KaE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (54,004) (112,782) (166,786)
EHER Exchange difference (5,878) (2,268) (8,146)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,475,568 396,019 2,871,587
201512831 H At 31 December 2015
AR Cost 2,750,118 912,513 3,662,631
ZIEE Accumulated depreciation (274,550) (516,494) (791,044)
REFE Net book amount 2,475,568 396,019 2,871,587
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(CABREFThz5I7R)

30. TERHMBEEEE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

30. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
2015 2014
TRfEH Leaseholds
EERFE 2 FEHEL Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(fE10E50F 2 M) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,129,958 1,951,701
FEBBAINGFE 2+ 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
4 (FE10 =505 2 ) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 345,610 360,975
2,475,568 2,312,676
31. BEYHE 31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2015 2014
1HA1H At 1 January 745,166 600,540
#hig Additions 162,923 -
BN ETERKRENE Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 11,900 103,499
EHEAFEKZ Fair value gains on revaluation 10,268 41,127
12H31H At 31 December 930,257 745,166
RAVRZKEFERRE : The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2015 2014
Gisk=pad Leaseholds
EREBFA 2P ALY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FE10Z=50F 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 928,209 743,077
TEBBAINGFE 2 H 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
4 (FE10 =504 2 ) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 2,048 2,089
930,257 745,166
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(CABREFThz5I7R)

31. BEWE @)
(B) sTEREMEZNTE

ANE BN 20154 & 2014512 A31 B AR EY
EREBEEIT T EM o WA BB B S 5A
EME-—ARFHEH ((FEREEER) BRAR
BANRBEARPEBEANZ MEERE— K&
CRF) BRARAMMNBRM 2 MELREELE S
ERBMARBEEELTRAR 25 Z AU ER
3T AR A AC B IRHETT ©

TISEE ALY HEER  AREEUHRE
HAIE 1SR ATEFBID 2 AT EES—HR
B ARTHEREN S 2 RANRENDEA

EHEREMENEER  HPF—HEZEKEAR
KEBRHE - 2 RENERNEFHR)RE
BATEERHEEMLER  IREZBENTE
5 RA,695%8 7L (20144 : 1,70080) EFF
779 123,800 7 7T (2014 4F : 123,500/ 7T ) © 4
EEBEMUEBERN TREBBUREME L A EFE
BHEEAS LR D - RZIFA o

REMEDBRAESTBUHRELLFE 135
(R FHERE)TF A THESRHE IR -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2015 and 2014 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment
properties in Macau.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,695 (2014: HK$1,700) to HK$123,800 (2014: HK$123,500) per
square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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31. REWE @

(2) DHESERPFEIRBI 2 AFEFEY

fR=
TRFHAVNERBEERTABRRIBEZHEE
B IRR 2R EMEF EN R EREIT R
HiR 2 Fl A e 3 2 S8R

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement
between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment
properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with
significant unobservable inputs:

2015 2014
1A1H At 1 January 745,166 600,540
i Additions 162,923 -

ENDBRTERREDE

— B BATEZREFE

—EfBRBBATEESGBHRE

AFERE

12 A31H

RERIEZ BEERE
LY ey ]
i o 5 R

— B F R

RERFTE 2 BEERRERT
ERERZAREHR WS LRI

— A {Ek

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

Reclassification from premises
to investment properties
— Net book value of premises
reclassified 10,507 66,966
— Surplus on revaluation credited

to premises revaluation reserve 1,393 36,533
11,900 103,499

Fair value gains 10,268 41,127
At 31 December 930,257 745,166

Unrealised gains or losses
recognised in comprehensive
income statement relating to
those assets held at
the end of the year
— Net surplus on property
revaluation 1,393 36,533

Unrealised gains or losses
recognised in income statement
relating to those assets held at
the end of the year
— Fair value gains 10,268 41,127
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
31. REWHE @ 31. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
(R) EBEIFANAFEFEFEZNER (c) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
fHER % TABRZEE
Valuation Unobservable & [E]
technique(s) input(s) Range
KEWFE WARBEELT A 5 = 3.50%
(R ER) (20144 : 3.50%)
Investment properties Income capitalisation approach Market yields 3.50%
(reversionary yield) (2014: 3.50%)
bRz ritka BEHRI4EBT
(2014 : ®FFH
R 35 47T)
Market rental HK$34 per square foot
(2014: HK$35
per square foot)
NWABREBEEETEAEETATFEZIREDME - For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
B 7 TG EFWAREBEEELREEEZEY the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
EYHEERESRWA B EIT - A EET on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
SEMISHSKIEABRRER  EmisRaEks for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
MHEARIR - measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and

inversely correlated to the market yields.

32. HihEE 32. OTHER ASSETS
2015 2014
FEW R IE MRS I B Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,084,215 2,822,386
FEEFIRA Accrued income 715,756 732,687
HAth Others 227,699 216,610
3,027,670 3,771,683
33. BHEFEEREMERE 33. TRADING LIABILITIES
2015 2014
THEEER R R EEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 6,270,630 5,697,614
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34. BEFER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2015 2014

AR R AERER Demand deposits and current accounts 36,294,515 26,439,546
HBEEX Savings deposits 21,826,622 26,165,548
TEH - AR E AR Time, call and notice deposits 92,971,253 90,629,343
151,092,390 143,234,437

REFOA&SBEWIFEADERED TR
AIEZ B G 2 17 507,178,00078 7T (2014 4F -
14,329,000/87T) °

B - BRI RN -
e AIE BT -

FrEEMEFER

35. BRITHNENRRE

Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$7,178,000 (2014:

HK$14,329,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under

import letters of credit.

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.

35. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2015 2014

REDRF R ERR T At fair value under fair value hedge
AESAR (for hedging interest rate risk) 4,361,923 4,990,231
R R At amortised cost 1,869,914 1,119,546
6,231,837 6,109,777

R2015F M 2014 F R - REBRERVAFER
BHEEIMERTEREAUNATFEAELHEE
T ABES o

AEBENSERTEREIHMRRE VRN

S REE A _EFT7I 2 BREE(X.8,000,0007%5 7T (2014
£ : 53,000,000/87T) °

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

During 2015 and 2014, the Group did not designate on initial

recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through

profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$8 million

lower (2014: HK$3 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
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(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
36. BERS® 36. SUBORDINATED NOTES
2015 2014
225,000,000 = T4 2020 4 2 HA US$225,000,000 Subordinated
WE SR EER (GE(F)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2020
(Note (a)) 1,894,565 1,915,702
200,000,000 EJTKATE B US$200,000,000 Perpetual
‘EER (E(Z2)) Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
(Note (b)) 448,814 469,056
225,000,000 7 N3 T i 2022 F EI| Hf S$$225,000,000 Subordinated
HE SR EER (FE(R)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2022
(Note (c)) 1,223,184 1,301,352
225,000,000 ZE T4 2024 F F| By US$225,000,000 Subordinated
ELEEBK(GE(T)) Fixed Rate Notes due 2024
(Note (d)) 1,753,331 1,746,268
5,319,894 5,432,378
TR A == @ T A T E SR At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,871,080 4,963,322
TREERRA AN T BR At amortised cost 448,814 469,056
5,319,894 5,432,378
R2015F K 2014 F N » AEBEXRER VIR FER During 2015 and 2014, the Group did not designate on initial
RIEEEMBERFAARTEF 2B EESH: recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
Az o
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36.
it

(%)

BREE®K @

i Ty K R 17 R2010F2 8118 % 17 2
225,000,000 & T £ 37 N4 X 5 B ([ 37 2 B 1)
EHTEREAEMNMNEANTEEREGER([E
1) o tEEHE R 202042 511 B2 H - 4
B 56.625% @ BFHEERE—IX - RiR/TIE H
—EIRRERAT RIS A RIS HI A N EIS M EE F &
B ANAETIRITRZER S AERAZEF S

Eo
A °

I T K R 17 R2007F2A16H % 17 2
200,000,000 = CEF R E MWK R E A= E
MIANE ARB KA ELEEER ([EH]) - ILEE
H2iRBHEERA201742 8178 - M317H
SHIZREMEER  F£5/56.253% @ FEEN
B—R o Hig  EBAREREBEEEBRRER
FENFESET AIEABHETRITRERS
IN190%5F - BEEAEECE RELIE - AR
TR MR R A s ARSI AR R F B3R B
NEmEEBERFAME GEHD ) &R - ARITHE
B —BBRRTTR] M A RIFHR A K i E A E e A
BREBANUETRITREREBEBNZEFE
5K ©

2010 4F % 2009 F © ANRITHRERIEIERI S
MERBEHEUTEELNRBEERASRES A
75,000,000 7T }2.70,000,000% 7T 2 SR (EFS
MmBMZEEBRBERERESEELER2AELI
BT -

L T ANER1 TR 201242 A 8 HE17,2225,000,000
FANB TR R AT LT R E AKT INE AR E
BrEEB(E%]) - LEEBKR2022F2 A
OHE|H - EEHEERB2017F2A9H - A
BTEEHRBHEEA  £554.875% ' &
FERB—IX - HiE - WEFRERZEERA
BEE - AROFNSEETAERSFHF M T
EHEENIT6 R F - EEGTESEREL
A RERITA IR BN EE A AR S E AR F
BNRBLZEEEBER A GEBH)ERF - &
$R1TINE B — BUBRERAT 5T 3 F RIS HI & KIS (B TS
B EEFI SR A AR LRI TRIZER B AEHER
SRENFI SR o
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36.

Note:

(@)

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange
Trading Limited (“SGX”). The Notes will mature on 11 February 2020.
Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of the Bank issued on
16 February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval
of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on
the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.

In 2010 and 2009, the Bank repurchased a portion of the Notes with
a total notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000
respectively at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount
of interest rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after
receiving prior approval of the HKMA.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 8 February
2012 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on
9 February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.
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36.

BREE®K @

(T) T3 ARIRTTR20144E1 529 B 317 2 225,000,000

ETEBRBHERIMAERAR ([BEBRSHH])
EHRFABERBGE INMERE A - KERN
10FHAE BB EBER ([EK]) (AEFEAGRIT
F(ER)BADZIER) o lLEEE KR 2024 51
A29BEIH - BIZFEEH A201991 5290 -
HETHEHREZEEER  £84A525% &
HEME—IK - Hig - WEBKREEZEEER
fEE - TN EEETRERSFHXEEE
BEHFEENMITSHT - GEGEESEREL
A ARATA IR BN EE A AR S E AR T
SRFRBEUEEEBEBER A GEBH ) &5 - A
RITIPE B —BER IR1T AT S Al 2 B & D IS BT
B & E A SR AR TIRIT R RS A EM S
SFENFIBAK o

NEBE S B EGEDHBRANENNESEE
B A FFr5l 2 BREE 1K 171,000,00075 7T (2014
£ : 1£197,000,000 77T °

37. EERE
ERFIBEAER B ENYHNAEAG S EZRTE

B[R —HEHEE R T AT - HiH 2SR

P e
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(@)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis points.
The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$171 million

lower (2014: HK$197 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against

current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

e relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
2015 2014

FEEFR I E = Deferred income tax assets 83,473 80,591

EERAEAE Deferred income tax liabilities (37,543) (55,056)
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37. EZEHIE @) 37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

BT EEENBEREERE=E ZHFEMER & Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
BT 2B BB ¢ underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date

of recovery and settlement are as follows:

2015 2014
RIEFI TR A E - Deferred income tax assets:
—AJfE 12 & A& Ug Bl — Deferred income tax assets to
ZIEETIBEE be recovered after more than
12 months 154,307 137,368
REFI A E ¢ Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12EREEE - Deferred income tax liabilities to
ZIEEFIE A & be settled after more than
12 months (108,377) (111,833)
45,930 25,535
EIEFIIAER B A= Ehan T ¢ The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:
2015 2014
1A1H At 1 January 21535 1,707
A UK 2 BR PO 75 I8 [0 % Tax credited to the
(PfFEE15) income statement (Note 15) 17,880 58,417
RIERIRAFBRE () Tax credited/(charged) to
(MI3E41) equity (Note 41) 6,365 (33,934)
EHER Exchange difference (3,850) (655)
12 A31H At 31 December 45,930 25,535
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during

the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IRIEFRIBEE : Deferred income tax assets:
AE ELEX
EERRBE REA
Impairment REE Deferred
allowances BiEEE  Investment expenses =5
and provisions Tax losses revaluation and others Total
20141 A1H At 1 January 2014 43,747 4,065 4,165 36,259 88,236
RSB AEE () Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 52,508 (2,988) - 4,432 53,952
AR BRI 3% Charged to equity - - (33,832) - (33,832)
S pagil Reclassification - - 29,667 - 29,667
ERER Exchange difference (582) - - (73) (655)
201412 A31 A At 31 December 2014
20151 A1H and 1 January 2015 95,673 1,077 - 40,618 137,368
RUEBRAEIE /() Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 14,572 (780) - 6,997 20,789
RiE=ERAS Charged to equity = = = = =
Eiagil Reclassification = = - - _
MEH =R Exchange difference (3,677) - - (173) (3,850)
2015612 A31H At 31 December 2015 106,568 297 - 47,442 154,307
EERESRE Deferred income tax liabilities:
MERBIE RENFER
Accelerated  Investment REEf
BE tax  properties  Investment Hit fit
Provisions  depreciation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
201451818 At 1 January 2014 7,122 65,307 13,819 112 169 86,529
RYESERA L/ (E) Charged/(credited) to
the income statement 1,855 7,668 (13,819) - (169) (4,465)
R R Charged to equity - - - 102 - 102
ENNE Reclassification - - - 29,667 - 29,667
201412 A31 AR At 31 December 2014 and
2015F1R1H 1 January 2015 8,977 72,975 - 29,881 - 111,833
IR RERT Charged to the income statement 759 1,207 - 853 - 2,909
R R AE A Credited to equity - - - (6,365) - (6,365)
ERipx Reclassification = = - - - -
20156128318 At 31 December 2015 9,736 74,272 - 24,369 - 108,377
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37. EERIE @)

TR TFRARERERALE (ZH) ZBER
15

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year
is as follows:

2015 2014
PR RE R 2 AT ERE - Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
— AN EFES (MEE41) — available-for-sale securities
(Note 41) 6,365 (33,934)

38. HEEBEAQTZER

REMBRARARE BFRESKZERARRE
BEBRARIR - RERGERETREMELZ
BREESIET

38. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies
arising from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

2015 2014

BHEERREMAR A Advances and other accounts 933 21
EPER Deposits from customers 78,075 119,252
Hb iR B KkiEiR Other accounts and accruals 91 91
78,166 119,343

REMBERRARARE BRERZMB AR Z4E
EREEFIANN

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

2015 2014

ZHEERFEMRE Advances and other accounts 19,236 20,195
BEGER Deposits from customers 1,796,393 2,198,550
HAR B RER Other accounts and accruals 6,960 4,224
BIERER Subordinated notes 40,554 41,021
1,843,907 2,243,795
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39. FAREBREE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
() BEXEE (@) Capital commitments
W12 A31 BERE RIDKIEREEEBEEE B Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
ABETEEEZENEEWNT - assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:
2015 2014
EERAERRRER X Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 165,688 140,972
(Z) EE&RE (b) Credit commitments
AEEEEBERINEKERETEPFZERMIA The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
aHNEREMEEERMRINESEERAT balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:
EHEE
Contract amount
2015 2014
BEEGEERER Direct credit substitutes 320,644 683,652
EAZZ 5188 2 AR B Transaction-related contingencies 455,868 302,523
HiE SRR 2 S AIE B Trade-related contingencies 438,649 501,525
AMEGHEUEM T ETE L Commitments that are
Nz A unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 64,573,823 64,212,547
H A Other commitments with
[RAEARR /& - an original maturity of:
— L1 EF — under 1 year 4,175,180 3,982,693
—1FERAE -1 year and over 494,999 998,616
70,459,163 70,681,556
EERRMESEE
Credit risk weighted amount
2015 2014
koA B 1 R IE Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,521,336 1,725,203
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39. FARBBRAEE @ 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(R) BEEHZEE (c) Assets pledged
T AR AEEEIINERSEHRESNEET N Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
MSHFESMERGEEEERZINEERE trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as
BES follows:
2015 2014
BERGEEEERNEE : Assets pledged with HKMA:
FHEEBERZEMNRES Trading securities 5,771,254 5,157,236
Al EES Available-for-sale securities 490,324 395,430
6,261,578 5,552,666
HEAEE Associated liabilities:
RIEEERZMARE Trading liabilities 6,270,630 5,597,614
Tl Ty B Rl i T IR E S s 2 JE The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
BT &S R EREE G REE : unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the

associated liabilities are as follows:

2015 2014
EEE R N2 EBEE - Assets pledged under repurchase
agreements:
AEHERES Available-for-sale securities 169,803 94,500
BEEHES Held-to-maturity securities 3,943 =
173,746 94,500
HHEE Associated liabilities:
RITIER Deposits from banks 43,914 89,421
HEiRE RTER Other accounts and accruals 123,271 —
167,185 89,421
B ESLERBEEN A FTERER 2 ES The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
REREERS ° approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.
REERZARN - ASETREER - HEER The Group cannot use, sell or pledge the above securities for the
A EE % - IMESES 2 ZBFNETANEER duration of the repurchase agreements and is exposed to the credit
B o risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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39. FARBBRAEE @ 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)
(T) REHERE (d) Operating lease commitments
MAEBEAAEA BT BUBMELEHEEM Where the Group is the lessee, the future minimum lease payments
MARRABAL 7 HIEESMRAAZENT ¢ under non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2015 2014
1FLAR Not later than 1 year 184,232 159,801
16 EE5F Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 468,581 113,400
5 E Later than 5 years 349,332 47,428
1,002,145 320,629
IMAEBEALHAA  HAABEEELHEER Where the Group is the lessor, the future minimum lease payments
KRR B 2 REBEMNKEZET : under non-cancellable building operating leases are as follows:
2015 2014
1F A Not later than 1 year 30,254 29,663
1FEAEESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 19,234 19,128
49,488 48,791
40. BRZN 40. SHARE CAPITAL
2015 2014
R fR A [ A
ZER Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
ERTRHBZERA issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1A1AH At 1 January 62,000,000 6,200,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
BT PRI FIR Proceeds from shares issued - - 12,000,000 1,200,000
12H31H At 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000
2015F 12 A31 HE BT E@ERRNDE B S5t 5 The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2015
62,000,000 A% (2014 £ : 62,000,0000% ) ° FT & is 62 million shares (2014: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully
BEITZROEZEEIT - paid.
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. f#1E 41. RESERVES
NRORER  REEA
TEEMRE REEMHRE B2 e (&)
GaRfE  Premises Investment  EXREf  -MEE Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
0151 A1 At 1 January 2015 8,827 201,779 160,698 283,172 700,254 8125 12,500,075 13,862,930
BRNER 2 ATRNE Fair value ains on avallable-for-sale
FENTEYR securities recognised in equity - - 57,262 - - - - 57,262
ATERERTENRNE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BARERREBENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (16,568) - - - - (16,568)
RAEMGHEE Deferred income tax on movements in
LBIERR (M a7) investment revaluation reserve (Note 37) - - 6,365 - - - - 6,365
BEENAEAEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
YL premises to investment properties - 1,393 - - - - - 1,393
BEHMERIBRR Exchange differences arising on translation of
MERZE the financial statements of foreign entities - - - (209,767) - - - (209,767)
DA AR AR Provision for equity-settled
Etl WA share-based compensation - - - - = 1,961 = 1,961
FREA Profitfor the year - - - - - - 2114920 2,114,920
0155 ERE 2015 interim dividend - - - - - - (111,600) (111,600)
2015128318 At 31 December 2015 8,827 203,172 207,757 73,405 700,254 10,086 14,503,395 15,706,896
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
41. f@#E@ 41. RESERVES (continued)
NRORER  REEA
EEfRE REEMRE M2 G (&)
GRRE  Pemises Ivestment  EXEE  —REE Resevefor  Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
201451 A At 1 January 2014 8,827 165,246 (46,408) 391,771 700,254 4371 10,822,818 12,046,879
M\WEMZW% B Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
AT ENS securities recognised in equity - - 258,976 - - - - 258,976
ATEBRRNLE AR Fair value loss realised and transferred o
At ERRIRENA S income statement upon disposal of
EREEESRENGE investments in securities included in
iﬁ%‘JZﬁ%&ﬁﬁfr@fﬁ the loans and receivables category and
eI e held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - - 3,756 - - - - 3,756
AFERENIETREEES  Fair value gain realised and transferred o
KERRER 2N EER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (21,692) - - - - (21,692)
RASHRER Deferred income tax on movements in
JERERIA (Fi3Ea7) investment revaluation reserve (Note 37) - - (33,934) - - - - (33,934)
REENDRIEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
EPAA] premises to investment properties - 36,533 - - - - - 36,533
HERIEH T Exchange differences arising on translation
BROELZE of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - (108,599) - - - (108599
WA AR (E AR Provision for equity-settled
o BE share-based compensation - = = = = 3,754 = 3754
EERM Profit for the year - - - - - - 1927257 1927257
NBERHRE 2013 inal dividend - - - - - - (2500000 (250,000)
2014%12A31A At 31 December 2014 8,827 201,779 160,698 283,172 700,254 8,125 12,500,075 13,862,930
o Note:
RBTHEUESRER A G ERE SRS ERIFA The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
DNz SIKRERE - G ZEERENATAEEBIR those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
TEENRANESEEEABNZAMEERT - 258 reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
FEREERTREZ FEEHE - LR E 2 2Ea Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
HEBSERETRA  TEENESREEARNFR - purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can
be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.
R2015% 12 A31 H @ NIE1TEFEE 1,528,440,000% 7T As at 31 December 2015, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
(20144 : 1,481,245 000,%71)21\%51157%9”5 1 HK$1,528,440,000 (2014: HK$1,481,245,000) first against the consolidated
SR N HAG S —MRFEE SRR EGEESREB AN E general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
TE ° the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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(BT IRIBITR)
42. RERSRBAERWE
(F) MBRETREREEEEZRERERAM

ZEERAEKETEHRERAFHYIR
*®

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

cash from operating activities

2015 2014
HRETHRE REFEEE 2 W REEA Operating profit before gains and losses on
2 BB certain investments and fixed assets 1,757,778 1,474,896
FH B UL A Net interest income (3,336,897)  (2,992,497)
Hx Bl Dividend income (17,166) (16,608)
ERREEEREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 496,352 472,962
e Depreciation 166,786 145,250
BB B 2 B Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 2,039 4,398
RER B8 2 B sH F 58 Advances written off net of recoveries (323,741) (439,482)
LARRAE 7 1 BARR 1 1 /o EE T S M 2 k4 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 1,961 3,754
REVEG RS Interest received 5,125,227 4,936,452
EAFE Interest paid (1,406,676)  (1,579,935)
B S Dividend received 33,686 16,608
EEEERAREHN c2E R Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,499,349 2,025,798
EEEERBEZED Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— e RERITHESRRRE A HER — cash and balances with banks and
3 Az B &G ETF money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
beyond three months (1,012,606) (873,074)
—RE A EB3E A 2 ERITHFR - placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three months (946,177) (1,605,524)
—RHEEERENE — trading securities (3,534,331) 947,848
*@Tiiﬁﬂlﬁ - derivative financial instruments (10,892) (40,191)
—EBEURAFENEBEEB T ABEN — financial assets designated at
PREE fair value through profit or loss (6,677) (5,573)
—B55K — trade bills 914,158 (1,458,409)
—RFEX — advances to customers (4,394,609) (7,251,875)
—HmARE — other accounts 727,082 (70,778)
—BEEERRENFIEERRN 2 EHFERE - investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category - 2,910
— A HHEERES - available-for-sale securities (823,629) 711,975
—REIEES - held-to-maturity securities 242,272 (863,088)
—ERT—HAEHEE — loan to a jointly controlled entity - 14,620
*ﬁﬁﬁ@m - deposits from banks (21,556) (422,830)
—RIEEERENAE — trading liabilities 673,015 2,235,141
—BPIFER - deposits from customers 7,857,953 13,289,304
—BITENE - certificates of deposit issued 110,714 (28,645)
—HiRB KTER - other accounts and accruals 158,724 139,534
b 3 R Exchange adjustments 62,344 50,491
HRE2EERANE S Cash generated from operating activities 2,495,134 6,797,634
AT BT REZAE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (83,828) (76,598)
BB BT EN Hong Kong profits tax paid (310,497) (251,290)
B &UGINEE R Overseas tax paid (21,101) (26,986)
KEEBRAIR &35 Net cash from operating activities 2,079,708 6,442,760

REERITAERAR | 20155F F R




B s Mot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AEEETTTALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
42. ZRERERBLEERME @ 42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(2) EREeRBEERRN BEREEAHELE (b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
BEEERBEAEIEARIATRHZT and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
itk REEESCEEXR IR AR with maturity of three months or less from the date of
RELERERESHBEZER ° acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2015 2014
e MERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 1,838,051 2,401,312
[REIEA B 7E 3 & A sk A T 2 i &0 K 12 BAfF 5% Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 12,969,242 10,751,666
JR2VER B 7E 3 1 A S A T 2 FERT T I 3K Placements with banks with an
original maturity within three months 2,113,664 886,792
RIEEERBNES Trading securities 228,497 2,040,796
17,149,454 16,080,566
REEBREFR P RIRITH A2 344,517,000/ Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$344,517,000 (2014:
7T (2014 : 327,129,000 7T ) EX [BHE& R ER HK$327,129,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
H4IEE |BETIBREBESE [ Be RIERTH purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

b BEIET o
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

43. ERTESREBERRE

RIBEBEBRTEN (F622GE)F17HI(HEES
M=BER) BERTESFEZ20155 12 A 31
HIEFEZHEFS - T 25 - BE2014F12
A31BIEFEZEFTIHREAB AR ARG (F
32E)F161BEizEMABERER - TE(EE
BELLE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED
WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended
31 December 2015 are shown as below. They are not directly
comparable with the Loans to officers, reported for the year ended
31 December 2014, which were pursuant to section 161B of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

2015 2014
W12 A31 Bz B G REEEE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding
at 31 December
— B EER - Loans and advances 25,433 3,366
—ZEHER - Guarantees issued 1,095 =
FABMR G 2 &mBER Maximum aggregate amount of
relevant transactions during the year
—ERRER - Loans and advances 54,759 46,056
—ZEHER - Guarantees issued 1,095 =

R2015F Ll 2 BAR HE BB ARITERE] ©

44, BREEANLTZRS

RERTT 2 BRI A B ARH IRTT SR E R R AR E IR
ARARFERMARETEEMNEE LT AR -

20154 22014 5 + RERITIR — AR 16K -
B R A A R Eo A [R] 2R Y B A B 35 E 2 IE R AR RS
ER S  BERITREFRARBGK - HEERD H
AER—WRRBER  REEMBITRE
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The above relevant transactions in 2015 were all transacted by the
Bank.

44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company is DSBG and the ultimate
holding company is DSFH. Both holding companies are incorporated
and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2015 and 2014, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution
of life and general insurance products and the provision of other
banking services.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
44, BREAEANLTZRZ @) 44, RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
AN RERTT IR A RARIER A B RER R B A In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative
AREEKRITHARE - HERSAYWETRR services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
B AR - leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
BHEMEBEATZEARZNAT : Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:
(R) EERAT MBATIRBEZKE A (a) Transactions and balances with holding companies,
ANR G k&t subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
(i) WARTH ()  Income and expenses
BEERRAEZERAF
Immediate and ultimate EEA = PN
holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2015 2014 2015 2014
BERFE Interest paid (25) (18) (12,693) (11,708)
EUFILE Interest received - - 192 208
ERAEE Commission received - - 107,350 95,148
B AR & Service fee received 7,240 5,700 17,179 15,716
EHE REERNE Rental and related building
B management fee received - = 19,309 19,660
B EMEESTH Other operating expenses paid - - (16,843) (14,408)
(i) HRENFZ AT A (i) Derivative financial instruments with a subsidiary
an/
EHTHE AFE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE 88
amount Assets Liabilities
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 801,278 8,014 (1,339)
2014412 A 31 H At 31 December 2014 383,445 8,310 (898)
@)  FIHEBREZ 5 E&E (i)  Committed facilities to a subsidiary
2015 2014
EEAHDE Facility amount 700,000 700,000

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 177



B F R Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44, BREAEANLTZRZ @) 44. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
() EEEEAE (b) Key management personnel
() HEFERTEZEEBASEZEAXZLK ()  Material transactions and balances with directors and key
b7 management personnel
FA - RNRITREKRGER 8 8 During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with
FRERERBTFTEEIEAE  HOBEK the key management personnel, their close family members
B SR RATIERIf % - RIS HIE and the entities controlled by them including deposit taking,
BB PR K B At B T RFAER o loans, credit card facilities and investment services. These
transactions were provided in the ordinary course of business
and at the same terms with other employees.
TEEBABZRGEA ZIRA RS H Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
WAREK - MERRFRZEHOT ¢ management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:
2015 2014
R RBH% Loans and advances 79 2,922
55K Deposits 230,424 300,609
REA 2 BEFOEHE Undrawn commitments 3,068 2,698
R Guarantee 1,095 545
FRNERRBAR &= ERE Maximum aggregate amount of loans
and advances during the year 2,674 3,731

(i) ETEEEALSHE

NEFTEEEEABANITES - HRB
EBREERESNRHIE16 -

() BREQRARAEZFHNERZXEZR
533

FR ARTWHBHBEERAEERAT
158,071,000t (2014 4 : 129,187,000 7% 1) I%
BUA o FA + ZARERITEUS — R ) E 58 SR
EREARARZFH - MEMR20156F12 431 BfF
TRASER/556,293,00078 7T (20144 + 26,995,000
JT) °
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(c)

(i)  Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors

and their remunerations are included under Note 16.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate,
dividend income of HK$158,071,000 (2014: HK$129,187,000).
During the year, the Bank received deposits from Bank Consortium

Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled entity and the balance
of deposit as at 31 December 2015 was HK$56,293,000 (2014:
HK$26,995,000).
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45. DA R E R R 8

AIRTTZ EERER AR (KEIRTTERE) RRE&E
AR (RFEE) 5B ERRERT & - BBBRR
BB RFIRTT SR B R A 8 ([ RFTIRITRE
8l hAF & KB R & ([ AF 2 RBEt
g SERARICEFEARTHET - 8%
REBEANRITNES - RBEDBEERERE -

REE B BAFIRTT R B B R A Bat Bl
AR RER B T AEE 2 EERSRTT
BAR -

() R¥RITEETE

AFRITEBRRRMN 2014F5 A 27 BERITHAF
RIT R B R R IEF R @B E RN RAE ST
(T RFIRITEBAEE D - W RRFLRIER
FTIRTTER B 2004 F 6 A 12 B 4 2 R 2]
(TRFRITEBETE]) - RFFRITEEEE
#RIE1E - DEERIEEIE — PR B AR
MERFTIRIT R B E T 82 O A AR AT
MRARAKIERTE R B ERKRIERDRITE 2 226
REEmMS - DEB TR RIER -

BAHMRITREEE - KARITEERTEM
BRRIETESMEBRKE - EFIEFKAFFAK
FIRTTRE AR BERRETER - RESRK
Bz2AEEEAREXN  BERAZEZIESE
TR - RFTSRITEBITERA LIRS B
{557 2012 F AT AT I T O B AR HE - 120126 [
HRART 2 RMHE - R IRITTREITERHITH
Bty PAST S EAGE

o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (“DSBG”) and
ultimate holding company (“DSFH”) has its own share option
schemes. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Schemes (the “DSBG Schemes”) and the DSFH Share Option
Schemes (the “DSFH Schemes”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Schemes and the
DSFH Schemes is available to directors and senior executives of the
Group.

(@) DSBG Schemes

The shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) and, at the same time, the
termination of the Share Option Scheme adopted by DSBG on 12
June 2004 (the “Old DSBG Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
of DSBG held on 27 May 2014. No further options can be offered
under the Old DSBG Scheme after its termination but the provisions
of the Old DSBG Scheme remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to allow grantees to exercise share options
granted prior to the termination of the Old DSBG Scheme but not yet
exercised at the time of termination.

Under the Old DSBG Scheme, DSBG issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSBG the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSBG
has the intention to adopt cash settlement practice in respect of the
share options granted prior to year 2012. For share option issued in
2012 and afterwards, DSBG has the intention to settle its obligations
by issuing new shares.
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45. DR AERBRMEIE ®
() KFBTEEFE @

ZERBRE TR A IRITEBET A ZIER K
R T - BHORRIEZTEEBIIBIRSE R
MEEEREZAFRITEEAESSUIETERR
EBR ST EMARE17.039) FAEET @ &F
ERAT2IER 2 ZmEEEE  ()RFRITEE
BROERTFERBERZMEE 2 RTE  K(ii)
AMRITEERODEERER THASEZEAR
ERRZGEE 2 FHWME - N20145F3 A3
BRG] (622 F ) £ MATR T 2 RIE - BE
BHRBEZITEERDEEAFRITEERAK
RERRMAABTZEE - ZRAREZITERTD
RERTHERFE1EF6 KA -

(2) R EmatE

RS R 2005 F 4 A28 BERMZ RIS
([REremeEsTEl ) ER2015544 A28 HER °
72015 F5 A27 B - K& g R @B ER
R AERT B ([T pEaTEl ) - KFemt
EfEIRIEE THEMFEE TR EEMAR
BRE - RS RMESEIZ X BT RRALT
FERERRIEAMEREEBRRIERBDARITEZS
BRBAEM S - DEB T REIRER -

BAHERETE  KFEeRETEMNBARS
TEEREEREE - ERIERAFATEEA
BERERBRETER  RIESRABREZANEEE
REEXN  BRAZEFHEERLEHBRND - X
e ERALRS X NEP RITEEE I ES
RIRE B HITRIME
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(@) DSBG Schemes (Continued)

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted before
the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) on 3
March 2014, the nominal value of DSBG’s shares of HK$1 each in
the capital of DSBG had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(b) DSFH Schemes

The share option scheme of DSFH adopted on 28 April 2005 (the “Old
DSFH Scheme”) had expired on 28 April 2015. On 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New DSFH Scheme”). No further share options can
be offered under the Old DSFH Scheme after its expiration but the
provisions of the Old DSFH Scheme remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to allow the grantees to exercise
share options granted prior to the expiration of the Old DSFH Scheme
but not yet exercised at the time of expiration.

Under the Old DSFH Scheme, DSFH issued to certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries share options on terms that allow
DSFH the choice of making cash payments, determined based on the
intrinsic value of each share option, instead of allotting newly issued
shares to the directors or employees at the date of exercise. DSFH
has adopted the cash settlement practice and intends to continue this
practice in respect of the existing share options issued.
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45. DR AERBRMEIE ®
(Z) XFErarE @

ZERRE TR A< B EFT BN Z R R AG
T - B RREZITEERIER RFTME
EEREAFERESSUNBERNESERS
Fr ET#8 RIZE 17.03(9) AR E T » R TMMERLAT
2P ZBRSEFETE © () ANERBROERT
BREBRZMEE 2 WTE : K (i) K& F%
NEZEETHASELEEBREERIMER
ZFEUTE - A 2014 563 A 3 AR FMEHI (622
B)ERAR T 2RRE  BESHRREZT
FEREZERATNSBBAFEREN2E T
E1H ° ZRREZITER TN ER T B ERFE
1E5%6FmA °

BAFHBRTEEETERT 2RKRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Schemes (Continued)

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Old DSFH Scheme. The exercise price per
option share was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing
price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant. For options granted
before the commencement of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
on 3 March 2014, the nominal value of DSFH shares of HK$2 each in
the capital of DSFH had been taken into account in determining the
exercise price per option share. The exercise period is between the
first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant.

Share options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme:

BRITERE (BT ()

Exercise price

B¥H L] ikt fTEHR per share (HK$)
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period Note (i)
2011512 A 128 MR EX N 2011F12A12R% 2012512 12HE

201612 A 12H 201712 A 128
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91
201212 A21H PARR B 201212 A21AE 20131221 HE

2017F 12218 2018F 12 21 H
21/12/2012 Equity-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
2014437261 AR S A+ 2014438268 201543 A 26 H

20193 A26HE 20203 A 26 H
26/03/2014 Equity-settled 26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

ANFRITEBEFTE B RANB L E2015F12 A
31 B 1E » WEERRRERBE AR IRITE BT
BIE M -

No share options had been granted under the New DSBG Scheme
from the date of its adoption to 31 December 2015.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

181



B F R Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
45. DR HBHRER R E @) 45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)
RAHERMETERTF2ARE : Share options granted under the Old DSFH Scheme:
SRTHEE (Bx) & ()
Exercise price
B¥H k] ik Gigd: per share (HK$)
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period Note (i)
2011512 5128 MR EX N 2011F12A12R% 2012F12f12A%
201612 A 12 H 201712 A 12 H
12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35
2012412 218 RREX N 2012412 A21AZ 20134612 A21RZ
201712 A21H 2018412 A21 H
21/12/2012 Cash-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88
Rt E BN B RLZE2015F12 A31 H No share options had been granted under the New DSFH Scheme
1E - WEAMRRERBEATSBIIERD from the date of its adoption to 31 December 2015.
7t Note:
(i) 201445 AR T 2 RRIEZ TR EE AR (i)  The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
TERER RS/ BN 2014F5 A K% 2014F 4 adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both DSBG and DSFH in May
B Tem 2 IR T AT EE - 2014 and April 2014 respectively.
Uz BR A RERR 2 BA B 10 A EE i 3R B 2 =2 18 40 Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as
N follows:
2015 2014
VAR e 52 5 2 "R A Equity-settled options 1,961 3,754
AR & 37 1+ 2 3R A% Cash-settled options 7,682 1,868
CEl Total 9,643 5,622
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45. DR AERBRMEIE ®
UB &5 ZRRE

MR IRITEEEA I R AT SR ES BT
T 2RSS NORRE - NEBENEE BRER
39,359,000 7T (2014 4 : 31,677,000 7T) =4
ZERBEN T EZ BE - ZBETEE T (v)
AR MABINTAFER T o A TFETIAZIER
AR B TR R ATl 2 = ERERETE o

ill=!

B A5 R R M ot
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
Cash-settled options

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the Old
DSBG Scheme and Old DSFH Scheme described above, the Group
has recorded liabilities of HK$39,359,000 (2014: HK$31,677,000) in
respect of the fair value of the share options at the reporting date.
These do not include cost separately borne by DSFH as stated under
note (v) below. The fair value is determined by using the Trinomial
Option Pricing Model, and based on the major assumptions set out in

the following tables.

RHFBITEEEE
Old DSBG Scheme

2015 2014

2011 & 2011 &

12A12H 12A12H

12 December 12 December

Grant date 2011 2011

AITRITEEN12 A31 8
ZRRfE (B7T)

1508 (OB ) (R )

TR IR (3 (ii))

FH(5F)

42 [ B A1) 2 (5 (i)

FEETHR B2 (7 (iv)

Share price of DSBG as at

31 December (HK$) 13.72 12.44
Exercise price (HK$) (Note (i) 8.91 8.91
Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 34.33% 39.17%
Time to maturity (years) <2 <3
Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 0.51% 0.98%
Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 2.50% 2.90%

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

183



184

B Bk Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(CABREFThz5I7R)

45. DR AERBRMEE ®

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

UB 25123 (F) Cash-settled options (Continued)
AFERMETE
Old DSFH Scheme
2015 2014
2012 2011 2012 F 2011 &
12821 H 12A12H 12A21H 12A12H
(& (v)) (F (V) (& (v) (& (v))
21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
®FH Grant date (Note (v)) (Note (v)) (Note (v)) (Note (v))
R¥F&rM12A3182 Share price of DSFH as at
RME (&) 31 December (HK$) 38.75 38.75 45.25 45.25
1708 (B7T) (R ) Exercise price (HK$)(Note (i) 31.88 38.35 31.88 38.35
TRaTE R (= (i) Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 36.33% 36.33% 34.76% 34.76%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <3 <2 <4 <3
A ) 2R (R (1)) Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 0.74% 0.51% 1.24% 0.98%
BRI EE (R (iv) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 2.67% 2.67% 3.02% 3.02%
= Note:

(i)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

201445 ARIR T 2 RRIEZITEBBRHAFR
TEBMRARH SR RIR201455 A K% 2014F 4
R HIR T IATE -

TAFHRIE R EENFTE B Z AR E —F RHR
TEERARNSRMREARREmTE - LR
RBEARFRITRE R A BAE 2 RE - &
ERARBREFHRAZIBEIRE - YE/REK
MZER -

BERBHNESERFHZEENEESREZI

BRI B R DB EREMmA] ©

ZERWREZ ZHBERARATERAE - K
1€ B E 5t & R AR EHE R 3,335,000 74 7T (2014
£ : 4,600,000 70) B & R U & AR R H
[B1 % 1,265,000 7 70 (2014 F : WS AR iR~ o
1,551,000/87T) °

RIEEANR T E B EREENE WA » &
NEBELAFERR 20154 12 A 31 B 431,900,000
7T (2014 4F : 19,074,000 7T) °

REERITAERAR | 20155F F R

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both DSBG and DSFH in May
2014 and April 2014 respectively.

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
the share price of DSBG and DSFH, as applicable, during the one year
period immediately preceding the measurement date and is based on
the assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical
volatility of the share prices of DSBG and DSFH as set out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH. DSFH
has recorded liabilities of HK$3,335,000 (2014: HK$4,600,000) and a
reversal of charge to income statement of HK$1,265,000 (2014: charge
to income statement of HK$1,551,000) for these options.

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’

right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2015 is
HK$31,900,000 (2014: HK$19,074,000).
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. LIRHAERRMEE 45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

UBRES (T 2R R Equity-settled options

ot EM AR IRITEBEE 2R T 2 AR S With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the Old

HIRARHE - ERE TR 2 AFE A =E B DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using

EEEXTE - the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are

granted.

2014 FAR FEVRIE 2 A THETDERA TR The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the options granted

ZEEBERME during 2014 are as follows:

20143 526 H

£FH Grant date 26 March 2014

NARITEERETHZRE (BT) Share price of DSBG as at grant date (HK$) 11.26

TEEBT) Exercise price (HK$) 12.13

TEEE R (FE () Expected volatility (Note (i) 42.35%

RIREFE (F) Option life (years) 6

A2 P ) 3 (5 (i) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.71%

TaET AR B2 (5 (i) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.44%

AR D AFEET) Fair value of a share in the option (HK$) 3.35-3.5

5 Note:

(i) FERHR B R ZRERE T B ZAlBE —FRHR (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
TEEMAEARREmMETE - WERRBER of the share price of DSBG, as applicable, during the one year period
RITERBIRE 2K - B ERARRIREZ FH immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the assumption
AZIBFNRE - WREAHNER - that there is no material difference between the expected volatility over

the time to maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the share
prices of DSBG as set out above.

iy EERINEARETAEHEFEHIABINEES (i)  Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
SRR - time to maturity at grant date.
(i) TEFTAREXRIEAETAZBEREME ° (i)  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. DR AERBRMEIE ®
BT 2 RS M E TS TEE 2 EE

45. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

T weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
RiRTEEE:T 8 Kife g E
Old DSBG Scheme Old DSFH Scheme
2015 2014 2015 2014
TS MRS
RTTERE RTWEE e RIUEE RPWEE fife
KFRASE mERE  AHEGEE (%7) KiTEH il $37 AHER (%7)
AR 8 R (& () REH fikE gD &0
RAHE (B7) e Weighted Bk €] (BT) RihgE Weighted
Number of Weighted Number of average Number of Weighted Number of average
DSBG shares average  DSBG shares exercise  DSFH shares average  DSFH shares exercise
in share exercise in share price in share exercise in share price
options price options (HKS) options price options (HKS)
granted (HKS) granted (Note (i) granted (HKS) granted (Note (i)
-A-R At 1 January 12,150,982 869 11,800,000 8.92 47,1 35.92 400,000 3747
T Granted - - 300,000 1213 - - - -
i Adjusted for rights issue - - 466,401 8.66 - - 17,201 35.92
[Rhcl: Expired - - - - - - - -
BTt Exercised (270,023) 8.82 (166,168) 7.96 - - - -
BEE/ R Cancelled/forfeited - - (249,051) 79 - - - -
127318 At 31 December 11,880,959 869 12,150,982 8.69 47,1 35.92 47,01 35.92
12331 BAfIE Exercisable at 31 December 8,474,534 8.69 6,293,590 8.69 302,490 36.34 219,045 36.50
(2 Note:
i) 20144 5 ARIR T 2 RRIEZITEBEHAFR (i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were

TEBMARH SR RIR2014455 A K 20144F 4
RS2 IR T IATE -

adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both DSBG and DSFH in May
2014 and April 2014 respectively.

AFRITEBER 20155 12 A 31 BARTTE 2R
PEZATEEN T 7.96 8 L E 11.68 87T (2014 4F -
NF7.968TE11.6887T  EHAFRITEE
R2014F 2 HBRFLAARE) « RENETFHEF

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2015 have
exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to HK$11.68 (2014: HK$7.96
to HK$11.68, adjusted for DSBG’s rights issue in 2014), and a

186

BHITEEA2.34F (20144 : 3.324F) ° BN
SEEERSRITHRABRERZ AF SRR
¥ R 20159 12 A 31 BRI 2 RIFT& BRI
T2 1T1EE N T-31.88/8 T £ 38.35/8 7L (2014
4 1 F-31.888LE38.3587C ' ERAFT R
EER2014F 2 HIETIAAE)  REMNEFH
Flere A1T1E A 2.33F (2014 4F : 3.334 ) °

REFRITAERAR | 20155F F

weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.3 years (2014: 3.32
years). In respect of directors and senior executives of the Group,
their applicable DSFH’s share options outstanding as of 31 December
2015 have exercise prices in the range of HK$31.88 to HK$38.35
(2014: HK$31.88 to HK$38.35, adjusted for DSFH’s rights issue in
2014), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.33 years
(2014: 3.33 years).
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46. TRIEEHRSHHH

5B AR ERBIERITOEN AT S H SR E E
REBEZERREHE  UWRABNFEEEHH
FREIRBBEREENBEAE  MUTHERE
ERBEBETEHE -

() xFHAEEHSIEELC EM IR
RAHHECEMEERAE

AEBBBETETREEBERAR(E
BRAEE FARZEF BT ETHRE

REER 2B RENEBRRER

CRHREEHEEEBPREE 2 BIKFIE
HREE R B FRIEAAEE - R20155 12 A 31
A ZIFER/ENZBREEN [EMEKE
RIEIRRIBRIEA : KK 2014F12 311 -
ZFREAREWEIER B ERMIEI2H 2 [ fE
WkIB RFBRIEE | BRIBA - HiH 2 S5
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it
conducts securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group
has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from
and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC.
As at 31 December 2015, the net amount was a payable and
was included in “Other accounts and accruals”; and as at 31
December 2014, the net amount was a receivable and was
included in “Accounts receivable and prepayments” in Note 32.

RTX e The amounts offset are shown below.
2015 2014
R E B REE 2 FORERE Gross amount of accounts
receivable from HKSCC 10,748 88,886
JENEBPREE 2 FIEBRE Gross amount of accounts
payable to HKSCC (31,068) (7,623)
(FEfY) PR E B RIEEFEE Net amount due (to)/from HKSCC (20,320) 81,263
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46.

(2)

TREERSBENHEHE@

SFEGEZHERAEMBRRE
NEHEzEMEEREE

BREFERELH

AEESRAREIFHFITLERFR
BEREE WREEERR - FREAEER
FRE —BHBREOEN AT REXR
GHFIZRERRZERIE - MMEHE
RAERH FRHELEE - MIFBHEED
M MERSFIRXFEUNABLEER
—RISEFBARKRTEHEERALE -

TRIVRZ I - BARMAN 2 ERFR
REZHBRBRBHEMORNSE T AR

1B
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46.

(b)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs,
all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be
terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled on
a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are settled on a gross basis
and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

The following tables present details of financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
46. S RIEEHEBBMNEHE @ 46. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHERBEEVEMRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeRMEERERE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AR F R B HE () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
TRERERRARH S B

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

REHRREA RERRRA
b3f Al = HIRZER

SRERES EETE
BEZER  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SHIA
BEBE  recognised financial financial assets ~ (@FEFBLARR)
Gross amounts liabilities setoff ~ presented in the Financial EhBEHR
of recognised i the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral ]
01551231 At 31 December 2015 financial assets financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) received Net amount
SRR Financial assets
fiESMIA Derivative financial instruments 543,117 - 543,777 (474,682) (18,213) 50,882
GELi e P
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
R R AR PBRRRR
HiER fiTzeR
SREELR BEYE
BEZER  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $HI8
BE4E recognised financial  financial liabiities  (BEFREAAR)
(Gross amounts assetssetoff  presented in the Financial BERBLER
of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral 4]
0158128318 At 31 December 2015 financial liabilities financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
SRAR Finncial liabltes
B Deposits from banks 43,914 - 43,914 (43.914) - -
fESMIA Derivative financial instruments 1,250,102 - 1,250,102 (474,682) (446,015) 329,405
RIEEERENAR Trading liabilties 6,270,629 - 6,270,629 (6,261,578) - 9,051
AR R RER Other accounts and accruals 123,71 - 12311 (123,211) - -

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015 189



B F R Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
46. SHEEHRSBENEE @ 46. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHERBEVEMRRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeRMEERERE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial

position (Continued)
AR F R B HE () Master netting arrangements (Continued)

ERBHRARAHE AELE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial posttion

REHIRARA REBIRRR

HHBED lnvka
SHERLE EERE
BEB72%  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $HTA
BEEE  recognised financia financial assets ~ (BIEFEAEAR)
Gross amounts liabiltes set off presented in the Financial BhBREER
of recognised in the statement of statement o instruments (including Cash collateral i ]
01412 f31A At 31 December 2014 financial assets financial posttion financial position  non-cash collateral) received Net amount
AR Financial assets
fEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 386,035 - 386,035 (367,976) - 18,059
UERHBRRRANSE BB
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial posttion
RAEHARA REBHRRR
e ok
SHEESE BEHE
B#A%%  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SMIA
8E4%  recognisedfinancial  financial labilites (MRS EAR)
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financia BERREER
of recognised ~ in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral 7
014512 A31A At 31 December 2014 financial liabilities financial posttion financial position ~ non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
SRRk Financial liabltes
BAR Deposits from banks 89,421 - 89,421 (89,421) - -
SRR Derivative financial instruments 1,038,590 - 1,038,590 (367,976) (141,297) 529,317
RIEEERENAR Trading liabilties 5,597,614 - 5,597,614 (5,552,666) - 44,948
AR E RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - - -
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1. BEXREHR

AEEZHAMHER
UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2015 & 2014 4
12A31H 12AH31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

BT R Capital adequacy ratio
— EBARE— AR - Common Equity Tier 1 12.2% 11.4%
——& — Tier 1 12.2% 11.4%
— B — Total 16.7% 16.3%

2015412 A31 H X% 2014F12 A31 B2 E X
R LR TIARRITHEZE MR (B IERFIE ERIT
RARFRIT(FHE)) 2 ECRITE(EAR) FHADK
EEBRIBE I EETETHE c ZEAT L ERMGT
HEZRE|misRRARERR

AT RBEBEMRITARBEERITESRSD
BTEATREERHFEENR - RPIHERITAE
STARPIRITEEENRE RAHIRT (PE)
AETABTRRITEEENRE - AEE L
ML EREAERHESE -

REAGRITE(KRE) RAD  FRAEEEES
RN E A AR R 5R < FEINE R E TS AR T B
http://www.dahsing.com - I AJ &2 A RN B B E A
www.dahsing.com/tc/html/aboutus/regulatory_
disclosures.html # A

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering
BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel lll basis in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject
to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.
The above ratios of the Group are calculated for reference only.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
www.dahsing.com/en/html/aboutus/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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(LAEREFThzgI7R)

2. RBEELRFLE RBESHE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO/LIQUIDITY RATIO

2015 2014
BN HERFLE 3 Liquidity maintenance ratio 39.5% n/a
TENE © Lt Liquidity ratio n/a% 45.3%

MBEERAFLEERTBER L ETIARIT(E
FERPIREERITRAFBT(FER)) R BEE
BERBANFHNGERBES L ERNBETH
H o RBEEARFLLETIIRE2015F1 A1 HE
M ZCRITE CREME) MADGTE - REBES L
RERBDERITERAFEARRANFETE -

RIBTRBEBZMRITARBTBRITEESE
STRBE DL REN o BPIRHERITRETHH
BPIRITEE T NRE RAFRIT (R E) A&
BRATRRITREEMNMRE -

3. HEERkE

The liquidity maintenance ratio and liquidity ratio are calculated as
the simple average of each calendar month’s average consolidated
liquidity ratio of the Bank (covering BCM and DSB China) for the
financial year. The liquidity maintenance ratios are computed in
accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules effective from 1 January
2015. The liquidity ratios are computed with reference to the methods
set out in the Fourth Schedule of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is
subject to China banking regulations.

3. LEVERAGE RATIO

2015 2014

R xR

IEIRLE R 7 H 52 F 20154F 3 A 31 B#EAER » Wik
B e E RIRECIRITE(EAR) R EICHKEE T
ZBENGAZERSE ERETE o Bl AR
TR 2015F 12 B 31 B 2 a ki 2 LR -

REECRITE(WRE) KA BEAEEESE
B R ZBINER B TIE P AN ER1T 4 & http://
www.dahsing.com * 37 A] & DA N B £ # 4
www.dahsing.com/tc/html/aboutus/regulatory_
disclosures.html # A ©
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Leverage ratio 7.9% n/a

The disclosure on leverage ratio is effective since 31 March 2015 and
is computed on the consolidated basis as specified in a notice from
the HKMA in accordance with section 3C of the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The above ratio represents the consolidated position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2015.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio
is published in the Bank’s website at www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link: www.dahsing.com/en/html/
aboutus/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

4. HNERMRE

T AR2015F12 A31 HZzE T MAEERNE
e 7 HNEE R EB (£ B 2 ONE F R B 8 FT A INE T
10%) @ REBEZ L8 -

R2015% 12 A31 H % 2014512 A31 BEALEE
W AT (] AR I AN S5 BF 58 -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2015 and the

corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2015 and 2014.

Hitshe  SEAEH

Il Other Total

T AR Macau foreign foreign

2015%12 831 H At 31 December 2015 US dollars Renminbi pataca currencies currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 58,812 16,721 8,472 5,443 89,448

BEAR Spot liabilities (24,177) (16,238) (9,566) (8,872) (58,853)

BEHEA Forward purchases 27,958 12,735 - 5,853 46,546

RHEL Forward sales (60,960) (13,018) - (2,364) (76,342)

MR Net options position ®) (1) - 4 -

&/ (1) 8558 Net long/(short) position 1,630 199 (1,094) 64 799

HfpsNE  SMERE

BT B Other Total

e ARE  Australian Macau foreign foreign

201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 US dollars Renminbi dollars Pataca  currencies  currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions

REEE Spot assets 57,240 25,030 1,275 6,894 1,874 92,313

REEE Spot liabilities (24,667) (24,960) (3,324) (8,176) (4,718) (65,845)

BHEA Forward purchases 15,767 5,900 2,150 - 5,371 29,188

EHEL Forward sales (47,028) (5,559) (146) - (2,523) (55,256)

Wi Net options position 2 - 6 - ®) -

&/ (B)&F8 Net long/(short) position 1,314 411 (39) (1,282) (@) 400
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES

5. EERSBEIREITN 3.

(R) TR B2 EFERARE (LEXA (@)
BOERUZERRRENEI LD

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

) by percentage covered by collateral
2015128 31H 201412 A31H
At 31 December 2015 At 31 December 2014
ERaE Ex@ %ﬁ
SHEARRE ZERmR
ZEM Zﬁﬁtt
% of gross % of gross
REEBLELR advances KREELEH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EBRRERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEeR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property development 1,909,605 66.5 1,741,185 67.7
—WELE - Property investment 16,136,906 98.5 15,752,867 98.9
— SRt - Financial concerns 1,118,110 30.7 821,938 62.1
—RELLL - Stockbrokers 965,931 45.1 133,234 55.0
—JBETEZ - Wholesale and retail trade 4,144,996 90.1 4,497,466 90.1
—BUER - Manufacturing 3,026,032 93.5 2,971,483 91.3
— B RERHRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,713,584 89.1 4,612,041 94.2
—RESEE) - Recreational activities 262,522 56.5 277,832 55.9
— AR - Information technology 72,019 89.1 22,938 67.1
—Hit - Others 5,454,602 83.3 5,036,198 84.4
36,804,307 885  35867,182 916
fELA Individuals
-BE[EEEEEE] - - Loans for the purchase of
[FLAZREREE] Kk flats in Home Ownership
[BEBEEFE] BFER Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 869,023 100.0 962,720 100.0
-BEEMEFENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 21,260,300 99.9 19,451,578 100.0
~ERARER - Credit card advances 4,465,225 = 3,838,208 =
—Hft - Others 9,217,401 37.5 8,355,472 8688
35,811,949 714 32,607,978 77
EERERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 72,616,256 80.1 68,475,160 82.1
Z58E (1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 7,394,880 66.5 6,517,342 62.8
TEEBIMEBNER (F2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2) 29,621,510 687 30,245,535 64.8
109,632,646 76.1 105,238,037 76.0
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5. ERERSGE BTN @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

() RIT¥ESBE2EFERLE(UERKA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
BoERUSEHARRENE LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@) by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

2 Note:

(1) B Rz B SRmE BRERZALERELE 2 (1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
RS Mo BEATAED EOMEBOMNE - imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
NREmEIRESZER - merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines

issued by the HKMA.

THREBZE SR EER (BIEARIRITZ/EINE Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
1THBRARIIR T 2B 58 E )48{E592,075,0007 extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
7t (2014412 A 31 H : 618,230,000/ 7t ) 9 48 HK$592,075,000 (31 December 2014: HK$618,230,000) are classified
R EEBAIMERBERIET - under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

@) EEFEAUIMEANERRIERE FTEARPBES ) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
BAIMER 2 &K ° located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5. BERERBREZIEINIDHT @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

() RITESE2EFERMAE(LLERHA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
BoERUSEARRENESLED classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@) by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

FRSTRSEREFEFRBETE10% A ERTT For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting

¥ HEEREEREE - BfiEEE R E R F4R 10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the

AHENEFREEFENT ¢ attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, and individually

and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances are as follows:

BxaE

BHREER
HRiB3EA 18 31 5% GATHE
Gross AEER REERE

advances Individually Collectively
REBES HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
201512831 H At 31 December 2015 balance loans months allowances allowances
EBEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IrEe Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 16,136,906 - 45,009 = 26,886
fEA Individuals
-BEHEMEEDEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 21,260,300 - 23,645 - 2,222
ERBIMERRIER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,621,510 304,159 356,762 191,321 184,899
B
AEARER
B3 1ME A fE B A
Gross BEER HEER
advances Individually Collectively
REBEH HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
201412 A31H At 31 December 2014 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEea Industrial, commercial
and financial
—-MERE - Property investment 15,752,867 - - - 12,357
fEA Individuals
-BEEHEMEEWEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 19,451,578 - - - 1,074
EBEBIMERRIER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 30,245,535 217,649 172,414 135,109 170,031
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ERERBRIEZFEIMIDH @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
() RITESE2EFERMAE(LLERHA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
BoERUSEARRENESLED classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@) by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

THRFEBEBERNEW SRR Z FNILEEIBREERE The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

R B MEHEER -

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year
were disclosed in the tables below.

W E B R EE

isH 2 B

KREeEEER  Recoveries

5%  of advances

A  Loans written  written off in

New off as previous
2015 F 2015 allowances uncollectible years
EBBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IrEer Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = - -
fEA Individuals
—-BEHEMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties - - 474
TEBBAIME RO ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 230,629 108,053 11,610
WEIBEREE
MsH 2 B
ARELEEER  Recoveries
M348  of advances
FMIE%EHS  Loans written  written off in
New off as previous
20144 2014 allowances uncollectible years
ERBFEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEeR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment = = 1
fEA Individuals
—BEHEMEEMESR — Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties = = 614
ERBIMERRE R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 22,653 263,913 8,335
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DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

(CAEREFThz5I7R)

&),

(2) BB KX AEREE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ERER A 2D T @) 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES (Continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

BIEESLESRRTERE)HE]) » LA TS The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
BAREEENBE DN H2BEESEREF categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
Bl R FERTE AR A FIY 2 IERITER SEF exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
Rl EEEREERENSE  Hh B aFEARE with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which
TRERMIRITHIE R BR T 2 5 B A RESESH includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and
FREE o its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

201

54

BEARRA HEREGRH

HEREE HIEREE
On-balance  Off-balance mese
sheet sheet Total
2015 exposure exposure  exposures

ARTRENMRTHERARZ

#

PRI - PREFTIERR

HERAMBLRMN

RERR([AEAR))

WA 73 BT HEA R

HiERAMBLRMN
RERT
REERERM2 BR K
TR B 3t AL B E At
HiERARBLRMN
RERT
AAELAFE-RE2H
PREFFROEMLEE
ARELRE_RERZ
TR E A
JREFEREAIAIN 2
BIR AT E RIS
LRV © TS R
BT B A

X ST - HHBRRIE
HRBEARFRITREP

YRR

MR BEAR

BERERANBREEE

A
(=)
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AASH

1. Central government, central

government-owned entities and their

subsidiaries and joint ventures (“JV”s) 5,600,248 342,416 5,942,664
2. Local governments, local

government-owned entities and

their subsidiaries and JVs 1,812,458 556,047 2,368,505
3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland

China or other entities incorporated

in Mainland China and their

subsidiaries and JVs 6,880,961 2,069,484 8,950,445
4. Other entities of central government

not reported in item 1 above 671,859 174,376 846,235
5. Other entities of local governments

not reported in item 2 above 374,271 231,530 605,801

6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland

China or entities incorporated outside

Mainland China where the credits are

granted for use in Mainland China 10,677,468 336,276 11,013,744
7. Other counterparties where the exposures

are considered to be non-bank

Mainland China exposures 8,270 - 8,270

26,025,535 3,710,129 29,735,664

Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
subsidiary bank after provision 181,672,638

On-balance sheet exposures as
percentage of total assets 14.33%
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. BERERBREZIEINIDHT @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(Z) HHE RBEEKNEREE @) (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBBRA EBEBBERI
iofiXE RIEAEE
On-balance  Off-balance B
sheet sheet Total
20144 2014 exposure exposure exposures
1. FREST  PREFHEER 1. Central government, central
HERERB AR government-owned entities and their
MEEAT subsidiaries and JVs 8,356,840 57,758 8,414,598
2. WAHBN - HABTHEEN 2. Local governments, local
HERERB AR government-owned entities and
YN their subsidiaries and JVs 2,686,695 50,814 2,737,509
3. BEREEHREMMZER 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
Sk 7E R B At S RO oAt China or other entities incorporated
HtE R EME AR in Mainland China and their
MEEAT subsidiaries and JVs 8,665,363 1,791,678 10,457,041
4. REELRE-B2HZ 4. Other entities of central government
RB R E ks not reported in item 1 above 123,365 - 123,365
5. REELMEB2HZ 5. Other entities of local governments
7 BT ) B et not reported in item 2 above = = =
6. BEEEREAMIAINZ 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
B R sk e AR B A A S China or entities incorporated outside
P ILEVHERE - 8 Mainland China where the credits are
EFmBERiEA granted for use in Mainland China 7,457,039 222,237 7,679,276
7. HEtXZEF - HE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
AR (EET R B KR FRER 1T are considered to be non-bank
HR PR Mainland China exposures = = =
27,289,302 2,122,487 29,411,789
AT REAMBTHB AR Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
M ER 2 EES subsidiary bank after provision 172,905,559
BEBERAKNBRERS On-balance sheet exposures as
BERTASL percentage of total assets 15.78%
7 A ERSREeREEPEREEREMEESR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
H2zoHE - other balances of claims on the customers.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5. BERRGEIEIMIDHT @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(RA) REESMZEFERAERBNE (c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
BN loans by geographical area
REEFRZEEBAOWNNIEED ZEREKERE 2 Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
RHEFHREMDEE - —RMS ° EEXHNER to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
FAEREERZSEHFRREZRIEE - B RS 5E transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
% o guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that

of the counterparty.

TREBFERLRE  EARBRESTFER B The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
REEHLER RS GREEERRE S individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
# o customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment

allowances by geographical area.

B B {E 18 Bl ¥4 AT

EFEX EFEM BHER HEER AEER

#%  Individually EX  Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advances to advancesto advances to impairment impairment

2015%12A31H At 31 December 2015 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 88,670,794 694,726 482,606 283,589 205,814
H China 7,374,771 76,030 186,222 31,712 101,454
JRFT Macau 12,014,448 25,507 31,236 12,608 44,534
Hth Others 1,572,633 56 56 44 6,270
109,632,646 796,319 700,120 327,953 358,072

{ERRE (EhEEE fRE T

EPEXR EPEX BEIR P B B LR

4%  Individually B3 Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 customers customers customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 83,856,418 217,196 251,710 123,521 144,074
] China 8,278,746 110,874 44,674 81,114 98,321
JBFT Macau 11,443,268 20,153 25,442 13,045 44,671
HAt Others 1,659,605 64 64 64 4,003
105,238,037 348,287 321,890 217,744 291,069
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(ASEET TThL5R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
5. ERERBRIEZFEIMIDH @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(T) EPRERE (d) International Claims
B EREER EEZERRNERE @ BERXS The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
3 B BT AE 30 T 3% 52 1 AN 2 5 8 F SR AR E /Y counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
Bk —ME @ BERXZEFHEELBRENE to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
KR —HER ETEER—EERITHE transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
INDTT - MERITEHENTRMNBER - 4 SR is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
BB —BEREEE S —BR &5t RERRA another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
ZBBERE - RAEREKEREELRE10% kA branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
BRI ELEEE - Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are
disclosed.
FRITHRABE
Non-bank private sector
Fem
FRAT FAKE
SRME Non-

Bh#E Non-bank financial BRAE
2015%12H31 H At 31 December 2015 17 Official financial private Total
BEAT In millions of HKS Banks sector institutions sector claims
BRI Offshore centres 3,758 13,771 3,231 113,347 134,107

-HA A - of which: Hong Kong 2,483 11,676 3,089 98,523 115,771
ERPDAR Developing Asia and Pacific 28,424 1,574 863 9,223 40,084
-He - of which: Mainland China 22,107 1,574 847 7,821 32,349
FERTTLAMERE
Non-bank private sector

Fer

R ThARERE

DRI Non-

BAlkfE Non-bank financial EREAE
2014612 4311 At 31 December 2014 iidhl Official financial private Total
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector claims
BERTL Offshore centres 4,736 9,718 1,801 108,004 124,259

-Ei HE - of which: Hong Kong 4,232 8,596 1,207 94,214 108,249
ERTDAR Developing Asia and Pacific 26,356 2,124 1,145 11,560 41,185

-Hr - of which: Mainland China 20,974 2,124 756 9,567 33,421
BB T REEFEIREESERN2015F R The comparative amounts have been prepared to conform with
ELZTEMREMER S EHFREZHE - the new reporting basis and the categorisation on the types of

counterparties as required by HKMA in 2015.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ERERBREZEIN T @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(R) EERAERIIAREEZEARREN (e) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed

BoLLDH by percentage covered by collateral
2015 2014
FHEARRE ZEM@IRE
=F | MWEZE SRS HBEDH
Contract % covered Contract % covered
amount by collateral amount by collateral

MISERREMEERR Financial guarantees

FABE and other credit related
contingent liabilities 1,215,161 20.6 1,487,700 171
BFEEREMEERRZ Loan commitments
S and other credit related

commitments 69,244,002 9.7 69,193,856 9.5

70,459,163 9.8 70,681,556 9.6
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B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

6. fFE - mERRERRBIESRER

BRI 2 EAREREEANT -

() FERBZERER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2015 2014
F R R R Sovereign exposures 727 1,916
N R e Public Sector Entity exposures 24,489 22,981
RTT R AR Bank exposures 1,103,611 1,032,642
B 5 R bR AR Securities firm exposures 5,334 1,702
5 B R B Corporate exposures 4,879,814 4,655,599
HEIEH Cash items 24,373 26,673
EET ER A Regulatory retail exposures 1,006,926 866,133
FEZBER Residential mortgage loans 1,164,515 1,055,622
H At AR 280 HA | P A 42 Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 1,079,825 1,420,181
760 HA R P Past due exposures 41,375 16,432
B AR PR IE Securitization exposures 16,496 9,818
BEEBERARBAE C ERNERERE Total capital charge for on-balance
sheet exposures 9,347,485 9,109,699
BEEFERED Direct credit substitutes 14,716 24,988
X Z 8 2 AT E Transactions-related contingencies 14,957 15,036
B2 5 S AIEE Trade-related contingencies 6,256 6,446
H A Other commitments 85,778 91,546
EEE4 Exchange rate contracts 130,197 132,641
FMEEL Interest rate contracts 11,158 12,496
AL Equity contracts 1,097 1,437
ERHERAR Credit valuation adjustment 52,566 56,451
BEBBERINARAE 2 ERERETE Total capital charge for
off-balance sheet exposures 316,725 341,041
EERRZEARBERIERE Total capital charge for credit risk 9,664,210 9,450,740

BB ER T AR BR A BRt B A E H 2 B ke hnE
BERIABSN WB(E - WHAKBZERIEEER
A

This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the

institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.
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6. FE MERBRERBZERER 6. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND

() OPERATIONAL RISKS (continued)
iy WHRRZERER (i) Market risk capital charge
AERITIRAEEFTE LT EM SRR - The Bank uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.
2015 2014
B gL BXER  ERINEHE BARER
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
R R BRI (R IR ) Interest rate exposures
(including options) 527,025 42,162 1,129,588 90,367
INERBEAE (BEESR Foreign exchange exposures
HifE) (including gold and options) 1,119,975 89,598 1,342,400 107,392
1,647,000 131,760 2,471,988 197,759
E\e NS e R R R T R AFRTT (F The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
VERETZOTEAS L &FE - derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.
(iii) BERBZEARER (iiiy Operational risk capital charge
ANERTTEL A E AR FEIE A B AT E IR ER o The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating

operational risk.

2015 2014
BIERR 2 EARER Capital charge for operational risk 632,371 550,893
7. 1XEESA 7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PEERESNTINEE  LTHISEESESE Corporate governance is concerned with how companies are
BARNBENRTRBITEESADENAE managed and controlled, and in particular the role and operation of
NBIEFM © the Board of Directors in sustaining sound business integrity and

practices, and effective accountability.

() 6= (@) Statement of Compliance
NEEBRE T2 ETHEEESE R HEETRE The Group has fully complied with the requirements set out in the
FMAL [ AR e iEN S EE 5155 | AT Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
SIERESK o Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the HKMA.
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
(b) The Board

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised a Chairman, seven
executive directors including the Group Chief Executive, and five
non-executive directors. The Board meets at least quarterly. Its
principal roles include the formulation and approval of corporate and
business strategies, review of operations and financial performance,
approval of key policies and annual business plans, and ensuring the
maintenance of sound risk management and regulatory compliance.

Executive directors are appointed to the Board based on their
experience, specialist skill and knowledge of different businesses
of the Group. Non-executive directors bring to the Board their
knowledge and experience of other markets and industries,
guide executive management’s strategy development and policy
implementation, and provide valuable external perspectives in the
Board’s deliberations.

(c) Board and Specialised Committees
(i) Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee, established by the Board of
DSBG, has the authority to review all matters related to
financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed by
internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
Committee reports to the Board its observations and comments
on any issue that needs to be brought to the attention of the
Board, and makes recommendations to the Board regarding
financial statements and results announcements.

Three independent non-executive directors comprise the Group
Audit Committee, which meets at least three times a year with
the Group’s senior management, the head of internal audit and
the external auditors. The Chairman of the Committee is an
independent non-executive director with a high level of financial
and audit experience.

The head of internal audit of the Group reports functionally
to the Group Audit Committee. External auditors have direct
access to the Committee for expressing their views and
comments on any matter or concern relating to the Group.
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7.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(i) Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The RMCC of the Bank is a Board-level committee with the
responsibility to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s
risk management strategy and development, review risk
management issues and the resolution thereof, review risk
management policies and major risk limits prior to the approval
by the Board, and review major regulatory compliance issues
and development, and exercise oversight on the compliance
function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk
management and compliance with risk policy and regulatory
requirements.

The RMCC comprises two independent non-executive directors
of the Bank and the Chief Executive of DSBG.

(i) Executive Committee

The EC comprises the Chairman, Group Chief Executive and
executive directors of the Bank. It is responsible for developing
and setting the strategy and objectives of the Group. It
provides direction and guidance to business divisions, reviews
business performance, ensures effective internal control
systems, allocates resources, prioritises business initiatives and
investment, and is delegated with the authority of the Board
to exercise the authority and power of the Board on matters
relating to the normal course of business of the Group.

The EC can call upon such members of senior management
for advice or participation in its discussions as it deems
appropriate.
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7.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(iv)  Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Group ALCO is accountable to the EC of the Group and
of the Bank, and oversees the overall management of the
statement of financial position, liquidity, funding, interest
rate risk and market risk of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating business plans affecting lending business, loan mix,
treasury investments, deposit taking and capital management.
It also plays a key role in the overall risk governance and
management of the Group.

ALCO meets every week and its regular tasks include the
review of key business emphasis and development, loan and
deposit changes, funding requirement, liquidity, surplus funds
investments, capital market dealing, and review of market
changes and competition. ALCO also conducts a regular
monthly review of overall statement of financial position and
business performance, including trend analysis and actual
positions against limits and targets.

ALCO is chaired by the Group Chief Executive. Members of
the Committee include executive directors of the Group and
its banking subsidiaries, heads of most business divisions, risk

management and financial control.

(v)  Credit and Risk Management Committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee are the
functional committees responsible for credit policy formulation
and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury business
respectively. These committees are all chaired by the Chief
Executive of DSBG with certain executive directors and
senior business and credit officers as members. Credit
risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
(c) Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(vi)  Compliance Committee

The Group Compliance Committee is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Committee serves to uphold a high level of
awareness and accountability of compliance requirements.
The Group has adopted an ongoing compliance control and
monitoring process within business and support functions to
enhance compliance control.

Members of the Compliance Committee include the Chief
Executive, the Head of GRD, the Head of Legal and Compliance,
a number of executive directors and senior operation and risk
control executives of the Group. Minutes of the Committee
meetings and regular report are submitted to the Group Audit
Committee.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in
relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the
transaction and portfolio levels;

. the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics
and policy compliance; and

o the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial
measures.

The RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee and guide
the management of different risks which are more particularly
managed and dealt with by Group Risk Division and different
functional committees.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. GRD
monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions to the Board via the
RMCC, sets standards for the management of financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered in the
product planning and pricing process. GRD reviews and manages all
credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval
of exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations,
credit products and financial instruments which expose the Group to
different types of risks. In determining risk policies, GRD takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business direction,
and risk adjusted performance of each business.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter
into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the

associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of GRD, with increasing focus of its risk
strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group uses
a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its management
of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these
are continually being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-
changing business needs and the requirements of the regulators.

(c) Credit committees

The Group has a GCC for approving major credit limits. The CMC and
the TIRC are the functional committees responsible for approving and
recommending policies, limits and mandates for risk control in loans
and treasury business respectively. The credit risk function, while set
up to support the business areas, reports solely to the GRD.

(d) Credit risk
() Credit risk exposures

Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the external credit
assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) that the Group uses
for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures
to rated corporates. The Group also has an internal grading
methodology for assessing credit exposures to unrated
corporates.
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8. MEBREE @ 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEGEAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
AEBEREGRITE(BEAR)BRDE 4351 The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
EZER BESHETERERAZ AR AEES booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
PR ST M 384T NSEAR o Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
SATER
ERDE
fiE18AH
REZER
g
Total
FanEERERS exposure
ZERRE FED covered by
Evposures after BRNENE fRE 2R recognised
recognised redit Risk-weighted REEE quaraniees
risk mitgation amounts BRER Total o
R #E R #E g exposlre recognised
BRARLE (2) (&3] (&2) (&3] Totel sk covered by credi
05§ 215 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
BRES Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
B OEEBEAR A Onbalanceshest
1 TEkE 1. Sovereign 8,075,602 9,286,426 - 9,087 - 9,087 - -
2 DEEH 2. Public Sector Enty 829,140 1674997 - 306,115 - 306,115 - 118,333
3 BEEEET 3 Mufiate
Development
Bark 7078 708 - ; ; . . ;
4 B 4. Bank 36,207,148 36,514,368 852,034 13,369,606 405,331 18,795,143 - -
b #E 5, Securts firn 133,708 1L 132,605 314 66,302 86,676 356 -
b 6. Corporate 13,313,705 20,324,455 16,286,423 11,480,302 49,517,367 60,997,669 5,034,364 892,931
7. BeER 7. Cashftems 780518 - 3,677,564 - 304,657 304,657 - -
8 EETE 8. Regulatory retai 17,224,322 - 16,762,095 - 12,586,571 12,586,571 291,567 150,670
T 0. Residental
mortgage loans 34,268,269 - 33,300,144 - 14,556,441 14,556,441 106 958,019
10, Zb588 10, Other exposures
Bl which ae not
past due
exposures 11,845,454 1977154 999,853 1128312 12,374435 13,497,807 196,124 8
11, BEERAE 11, Pastdue exposures 477,59 - 477,59 - 517,188 517,188 293,043 39257
L. BEBER) B Offhalanceshest
1. B 1. Offbalance sheet
TE%A5 exposures ofher
fR&fE tran OTC
TERi Gervtive
1EERE fransactons or
#ER credit dervtive
R contracts 1,118,843 - 1,718,043 - 1,521,336 1,521,336 54,787 -
2 FIEIE 2 OTCdervative
X5 fransactions 2,926,935 1,799,013 1,127,922 729,699 1,050,751 1,780,650 85,862 -

R, BT1250%E 0. Exposures that are
B2 AR fisk-welghted
at1,250% 16,49
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(T) EERK @

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

()  1GEEGEAEE) () Credit risk exposures (Continued)
fETRAR
REZER
g
Total
Rk eAposure
LBRAE SRR covered by
Evposures fter BB EgE REER recognised
tecognised crdlt Risk-weighted g Quarantegs
fisk mitigation amourts BlRiER Totd o
il AR Bl R 2 exposure recognised
BhmEsE () (3) (#2) (3) Tota risk covere by credi
M4 2014 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated Weighted recognised derivative
ERE Class of exposures Expostres (Note?) (Note ) (Note ) (Note ) anounts coleteral contracts
B OEEBERR A Onbenceshest
1. TERE 1. Soverign 6715284 6715286 1400757 2956 - 2956 - -
2. DEEf 2. Public Sector Enty 458811 1,421,634 14451 284367 280 287,251 - 118,333
8 ZBEEZT 3 Mt
Development
Bank 269,888 269,888 - - - - - -
4 B 4, Bank 33,048,302 32,380,389 2,066,213 12,4947764 413,258 12,908,019 - -
5 B57 5, Securities firm 254 2,361 40,184 1,180 2009 1203 - -
6. 8 6. Corporate 71,086,039 19,141,165 45,907,049 12,645,987 45,549,046 56,104.963 4,133,033 1,102510
7. BEER 7. Cashitems 844,505 - 4,612,256 - 383409 383409 - -
8 EETE 8. Requlatory retail 14,901,604 - 14,435,546 - 10,826,660 10,826,660 217,150 179903
9. fFEiE 0. Residential
mortgage loans 31,721,758 - 30,642,182 - 13,195,260 13,195,260 - 1,019,340
10 EfKBSH 10, Otherexposures
Bl which are ot
past due
£XpOSUreS 16,096,955 2,145,650 13,990,106 1,385,009 16,367,255 17,752,264 390,682 -
1, BHERAE 11, Pastdue exposures 168,482 - 168,482 - 205,402 205,402 43090 17,184
L. BERER) B Offodenceshest
1. BEMMIE 1 Offbalance sheet
TARSY exposUres ofher
H-(jia than OTC
TEAH Qervative
LEEEE transactions or
FoNak creditdervtive
i contracts 1,983,233 - 1,983,233 - 1,725,208 1,725,208 16,127 -
2. BIMPEIE 2 OTC dervative
25 franszctions 2,856,8% 1,548,757 1,308,139 602,412 1,229,760 1,832,172 90222 -
R, EF1250%8E . Exposureshat
EI S e isk-veghted
at1,250% 9818
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.
(d)

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer
rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue
rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from OTC
derivative transactions, repo-style transactions and credit
derivative contracts booked in its banking book or trading
book. The credit risk exposures associated with these contracts
are predominantly their fair values (i.e. the positive marked-
to-market values favourable to the Group). These credit risk
exposures together with potential exposures from market
movements are managed as part of the overall lending limits
allowed to counterparties. Collateral or other security is
generally not obtained for such credit risk exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. EMEREm 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) XKBHFEEEfRANE &) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
BRASERTAEBITETIAGN 2 ERR Under the terms of the current collateral obligations of the
ETIER KIBE2015F12A31H 2 Group with respect to derivative contracts, the Group estimates
R REBGHATESEREEEERE based on the positions as at 31 December 2015 that it would not
FE— Z A B T & AR IME &S (2014: be required to post additional collateral in the event of one notch
) o downgrade in its credit rating (2014: Nil).
AREEE Bl EBUR &2 Al & 2542 85 The Group has in place the policies and procedures to control
MER @ BIERTHEITIET Z5EMERRR and monitor wrong-way risk, including requiring prior approval
ZHIHEBERZ before entering into prescribed wrong-way risk deals.
TRBAAEBRESIMTERSGZEE The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
EE RS A - exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.
2015 % 2014 4
12831 H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2015 2014
N EIESEERE Gross total positive fair value 1,152,520 829,590
EESEYE Credit equivalent amounts 2,926,935 2,856,896
RAERmEE - EER Value of recognised collateral by type
—TFR - Deposits 85,882 90,222
[ B e 258 Risk weighted amounts 1,780,650 1,832,172
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. REBEREum 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  XKBHFzERERFRIEE) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TRELCEESESENEERRFHENL An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
2Bz INFE BN RR 2 AT o exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as
follows.
20154 2014 4F
12H31H 12AH31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTER S OTC derivative transactions 2015 2014
HEEE Notional amounts:
—§R1T — Banks 93,087,809 89,489,496
— =8 — Corporates 31,038,100 35,478,655
—HAh - Others 720,946 874,642

124,846,855 125,842,793

CESEHES Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERBFE credit exposures:
—#R1T - Banks 1,690,666 1,534,486
— =8 — Corporates 1,122,993 1,203,595
—Hfth - Others 113,276 118,815
2,926,935 2,856,896
[R\ B INRESL AR - Risk-weighted amounts:
—#R1T - Banks 675,725 595,275
— =8 — Corporates 1,068,165 1,196,120
—Hfth - Others 36,760 40,777
1,780,650 1,832,172
72015912 A31H & 2014F12 5318 - There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style
TWHEBEARBERALSREETERSE transactions and credit derivatives contracts at 31 December
Nz EERRE - 2015 and 31 December 2014.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every six months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

(e) Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the
risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note
3.3 to the financial statements.

() Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures on Basel Ill basis.
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has
used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures
below.

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
21.29% (2014: 12.66%) of the par value as at 31 December 2015
based on price quote obtained from the investment manager.
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. REREREm 8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(B) BEEZESHtum () Asset securitisation (Continued)
B R nE
k]
¥ 1,250%
AREE BRAETRE

AME  Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from

izl amount - EXHE SRRE-SER —HRER
#EHL Securitisation Outstanding at1,250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
B EE exposures amounts risk weight  requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
2015 2015
HHRAK Synthetic securitisations
—HEBEHRETR - Structured investment
vehicles 16,496 206,201 16,496 - -
2014 5 2014
HHRAK Synthetic securitisations
—HEBEHRETR - Structured investment
vehicles 9,818 122,725 9,818 - -
(BR) $B1TBRZ PR FE R B (g) Equity exposures in banking book
NE BB UIIARS R D RIS B A EREEE The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
HERIFIEEAEER M - R AR EEAER strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes
M2 RN EBERE 2 RES T RAKBRE at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
P& - MR - BE FERREMNERET appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
RS 2 NEES| - REM R EIEESI{E analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
A - Fris R IRE R MG B EEEME - marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,
and various other control guidelines. Listed equity holdings are valued
on the basis of market bid prices.
2015 2014
KRB 7 B Unrealised revaluation gains
—BEEshREEERERNKER — Amount included in reserves but not
pd ¢ through income statement 123,415 106,230
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(%) RITRZFRER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book

g%
Currency
B in AR Hity &t
20155 2015 HK$ Uss$ CNY Others Total
MEEREE Interest rate risk shock
+F200%F +200 basis points
— &M/ Cad) - Increase/(decling) in earnings 110,000 (156,000) (8,000) (42,000) (96,000)
Currency
BT ey AR% Hith Ch
2014 2014 HK$ Us$ CNY Others Total
MERREE Interest rate risk shock
+F200%F +200 basis points
— &AM/ Cad) - Increase/(decling) in earnings 2,000 (203,000) (12,000) (133,000) (346,000)

(F) BERR

AEEEE - AERRABERRERR  BES
REBAS  —BYRREE N MEREEE
BRI Z BRIERRA S - WiFEB— 555
ERBREE - BRIAM  BRERRFMHRER
EFER RARFHEENEI2AR ?a%lﬂ
EBIF - RIFRR R AMEEZ B S ([RIERR
NEEEZEEG ) ERT LA%%K%@ZT%%VE
REREERAREEEE - RIERARKABEE
ZEERTRAREEIRELAE TATESER
SEEIRABMARK - ERRY —EARIFAEBEE
R BIERR TR o R - FF M - BEiE
KRR o RBER SR B A& B BB M (B E X R 1F
RBIRHE - BT RRIETEFERIT o

RBREFGEABALBHAEEEE 2HFE K
SEDRERASM - RIFRTHR NS I
HIAEBERH RIRMPIETAR -

SN R A H IR BTN S PO B L1 R B
FMLA LR IERREN - ARE2ERELR
AREBREEERREARER 2 RARAN
f -
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(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management, and an
independent risk management team and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self-assessment and
key risk indicator tools. The Operational Risk and Internal Control
Committee (“ORICC”) has been set up to oversee the operational
risk management and internal control matters of the Group. ORICC is
chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors and
senior management as members. Together with a well-established
internal control system, operational risk can be adequately identified,
assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk
framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s RMCC have an overall oversight of the performance and
effectiveness of operational risk management.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; anti-money
laundering and counter terrorist financing; proper staff training and
supervision; staff awareness of compliance issues; proper handling
of customer complaints or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound
business practices. Standards are set and policies and procedures
are established by the Group in all areas, which operate to reduce
vulnerability to reputation risk.

(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, ensure proper change management is in place, review business
performance and address issues arising from anticipated operational
or market changes, deploy proper resources to achieve the Group’s
objectives, and authorise management to take appropriate actions to
mitigate risks.

() Compliance with the Basel lll Capital Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effective from January 2007, the Bank has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Bank has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the
standards required for these approaches.

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2014, and
revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process” in the 4th
quarter of 2012. The revised capital standards and related regulatory
requirements have come into force for all locally incorporated
authorised institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1 January 2013.
The Bank has enhanced its capital management and reporting
framework as well as disclosures for meeting the new requirements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital Standards
(Continued)

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Capital) Rules
under the Basel lll framework in Hong Kong, two new capital buffers,
namely the Capital Conservation Buffer and Countercyclical Capital
Buffer, designed to ensure that banks build up sufficient capital to
withstand periods of stress and system-wide risk associated with
periods of excessive aggregate credit growth, would commence to
phase in starting from 1 January 2016. To align with the regulatory
requirements, the Bank’s capital management framework has been
enhanced to incorporate the two capital buffers as elements in the
setting of internal capital targets for capital adequacy monitoring and
capital planning.

To address the negative externalities posed by systemically
important institutions, the Basel Committee established a framework
in November 2011 (subsequently updated in July 2013) for the
identification of global systemically important banks (“G-SIBs”) and
the determination of their corresponding HLA capital requirements.
Subsequently, a principles-based framework for dealing with
domestic systemically important banks (“D-SIBs”) was issued by the
Basel Committee in October 2012. Based on the latest list of G-SIBs
and D-SIBs issued by the Financial Stability Board (“FSB”) and the
HKMA respectively, the Bank is neither designated as a G-SIB nor
D-SIB and is therefore not subject to further capital surcharge.

(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the New
Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy
which requires the relevant business and supporting units, including
GRD, to review the critical requirements, risk assessment and
resources plan before the launch. New products or services which
could have a significant impact on the Group’s risk profile should be
brought to the attention of the Board or its designated committee(s)
before the launch. The Group’s Internal Audit function performs
regular independent review and testing to ensure compliance by the
relevant units in the new product approval process.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.

9. REMUNERATION SYSTEM
(@) Remuneration Principles

The Group adopts the following remuneration principles:

o Pay for performance is the guiding principle to reward individual
performance and contribution, which are measured through the
performance management process.

° The remuneration structure is based on various factors such
as business needs, market situations and the principles set
out in relevant legal and regulatory requirements applicable to
employees’ remuneration.

o The Group Remuneration Policy (“GRP”) is to align with the
Group’s risk management framework, and to support the
achievement of long-term financial soundness of the Group,
including its key subsidiary banks.

° Variable remuneration is designed to align employees’ incentive
awards with their performance and contributions in the long
term, and the time horizons of risk.

° Generally, the proportion of variable remuneration to total

remuneration increases in line with the seniority and
responsibilities of an employee.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9.
(a)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration Principles (Continued)

The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred depends on a number of factors, including an
employee’s seniority, role, responsibilities and activities
within the Group, the time horizons of the risks incurred by
the employee’s activities and the overall level of their variable
remuneration both in absolute terms and as a proportion of his/
her fixed pay.

Decision of individual remuneration package will depend on
market pay levels, individual performance and contribution,
principles set out in the GRP, and performance and affordability
of the Group, and consideration of regulatory guidelines.

The Group’s remuneration strategy is to position itself at market

median to upper quartile level, and offers to its employees

remuneration packages, which normally consist of guaranteed

cash and variable remuneration largely in the form of discretionary

performance incentive bonus, that as a whole will properly reward

individual performance and are competitive relative to market pay

levels.

(b)

Governance of the Remuneration System

()  Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Group’s Board of Directors approves the GRP and assumes
the ultimate responsibility for overseeing the formulation,
implementation and update of the GRP. The Board of the
Bank’s parent company, DSBG, has in place the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”), which is a committee
of the Board of DSBG having oversight responsibilities and
authority on remuneration system and practices over DSBG and
its subsidiaries, including the Bank. Members of the NRC are
appointed by the DSBG Board. The majority of the members of
NRC are independent non-executive directors of DSBG and of
the Bank. The committee is responsible, among other things, for
the review of the nomination of new directors, approval of the
remuneration of directors and senior management. The Board
delegates the following responsibilities and authorities to the
NRC:

o Assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for
the design and operation of the Group’s remuneration
system;
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o
(b)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)

(i) Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Continued)

o Reviews, and makes recommendations to the Board
in respect of the Group’s remuneration policy and
practices and ensures that these are determined based
on appropriate factors such as business needs, market
practices and the principles set out in relevant legal and
regulatory requirements;

° Determines the specific remuneration packages of
members of senior management of the Group;

o Evaluates any practices or recommendation by which
remuneration is paid for potential future revenues or
benefits whose timing and likelihood remain uncertain;
and

° Ensures that regular review of the Group’s remuneration
system and its operation is sustained.

The NRC held three meetings in 2015 and 2014 respectively.
No director’s fee was payable to the Bank’s Independent Non-
Executive Directors, as they were remunerated by the Bank’s
holding company, DSBG or ultimate holding company, DSFH.

(i)  Review of the Remuneration System

Internal Audit Division (“IAD”) of the Group is responsible to
conduct internal monitoring of the remuneration system and
its operation to ensure compliance with the GRP. As required
by the Group’s remuneration framework, a review, at least on
an annual basis, of the Group’s remuneration system and its
operation, which includes an assessment of consistency with
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by
the HKMA, is conducted independently of the management and
the result is submitted to the NRC and to the HKMA if required.
The independent review can be conducted by an external
party, or by the Group’s internal audit, legal and compliance or
human resources functions, or a combination of these parties as
directed by the NRC. The NRC will report any material issues in
relation to the Group’s remuneration system or practices to the
Board of the Group and the Bank.

IAD conducted the review in the second quarter of 2015 jointly
with Human Resources Division (“HRD”) and noted that the
Group’s remuneration system was in compliance with the GRP
and consistent with the HKMA'’s guideline in this connection.
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(b)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(iii)  Roles of the Risk Control Functions

Risk control functions, including GRD, Legal and Compliance
Division (“LCD”) and FCD, are involved in the process of design
and implementation of the GRP. They will play a continuing
role in the operation of the remuneration system in relation to
matters such as risks measures and risk judgements. They
will also be consulted by the NRC, where appropriate and
independent of business divisions, on their view and advice
as to how compensation relates to risk at various levels within
the Group or specific business division, including the proper
alignment of risk and reward, and the time horizon on risk
and performance measurement, changes in the risk profile
of the Bank in general, or of a particular business division or
major business strategy, and the considerations as regards
remuneration to properly align with risks taken, with the need to
balance the time horizon for longer term business performance
and risk realisation.

FCD together with GRD are responsible for the proper
disclosure of the Group’s remuneration system and practices,
and specific features relating to actual remuneration to comply
with the HKMA remuneration guideline. The heads of each of
the risk control functions report administratively to the Chief
Executive, and most have a functional reporting line to relevant
board-level committees chaired by independent non-executive
directors. All risk control functions specified above have direct
and independent access to the NRC on matters relating to the
Group’s remuneration system and practices. In addition, both
GRD and LCD have direct access to the Bank’s board-level
RMCC.

The Group’s banking and financial services business model
is a risk underwriting and risk management business. With
risk management as a key function and control process of
the Group, a key purpose of GRD is to assist the Group to
maximise the probability of achieving the Group’s long-term
objectives while ensuring that the Group, its business and
risk control units, in pursuing various business strategies and
managing risk taking activities, will have proper regard to short-
term constraints, limits and regulatory guidelines, and with the
general sense and appropriate process on striking a proper
balance of risk and reward for the long-term success and
soundness of the Group.
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(b)

(c)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(iv)  Roles of the Human Resources Division

One of the key roles of HRD is to support the Group to attract
quality candidates and retain and motivate existing employees.
To achieve these objectives, HRD regularly reviews the Group’s
human resources policies and employees’ compensation
and benefits with reference to market practices to ensure
competitiveness. HRD also provides support to the design and
implementation of remuneration policy and measures to meet

regulatory requirements and align with market practices.

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group

The GRP is established to provide the key remuneration principles

and practices covering all employees of the Group, and the key risk

management requirements relating to remuneration, performance and

risk control. Specific regards are on the remuneration and the roles of

the following personnel:

1)

Senior Management are senior executives with accountability
to the Board, and are responsible for executing the firm-
wide strategies, guiding the development of the Group, and
overseeing business activities, risk management and internal
control of the Group. These mainly include the Chairman, Vice
Chairmen, Chief Executive and Executive Directors of the Bank.
The total number of individuals classified under this category is
9 (2014: 9).

“Key Personnel”, i.e. individual employees whose duties
or activities in the course of their employment involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Group. During 2015 and 2014, the
Group did not have any employees classified as Key Personnel
under its existing remuneration system.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group (Continued)

Groups of employees whose activities in the aggregate may
expose the Group to material amounts of risk, and who are
subject to the same or similar incentive arrangements (including
employees who are incentivised to meet certain quotas or targets
by payment of meaningful amount of variable remuneration).
During 2015 and 2014, the Group did not have any employees
classified in this category under its existing remuneration system.

Employees within risk control functions (including group risk
management, legal and compliance, internal audit, and financial
control).

Remuneration of all employees in risk control functions is independent

of the performance of the business units which they exercise control

or oversight. Generally, the remuneration of these employees is

determined by their respective Divisions, and Top Management will

be involved in the determination of remuneration of the respective

senior personnel. Management of business units are not allowed to

determine the remuneration of employees in the risk control functions.

Subsidiaries in overseas locations broadly follow the principles

and guidelines set out in the GRP, and may customise the relevant

parts where appropriate to address their local legal/regulatory

requirements, market situations and business needs.
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)
(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration
(i) Components

The structure of remuneration is generally composed of the
following components:

° Fixed remuneration including basic salary, allowances and

retirement benefits, and

° Variable incentives-based remuneration including
discretionary performance incentive bonus, and for some
front-line sales and services staff, incentive payment
based on business and sales performance.

In determining an appropriate balance between fixed and
variable remuneration, the Group takes into consideration the
seniority, role, responsibilities and activities of its employees,
the need to promote appropriate behaviour amongst employees
that supports the Group’s risk management framework and
long-term financial soundness, as well as market pay practices.
The proportion of variable remuneration to total remuneration
generally increases in line with the seniority and responsibilities
of an employee.

For Senior Management, a fair to substantial proportion of
the remuneration is paid in the form of variable remuneration,
which is mainly granted in the form of performance incentive
bonus. Starting from 2010 performance year, a portion of the
bonus is deferred in the form of deferred bonus and subject to
vesting over a period of at least three years. This practice is to
achieve an effective alignment of incentive awards with the time

horizons of risks.

DSBG, the Bank’s holding company, and DSFH, the Group’s
ultimate holding company, have established executive share
option schemes under which, and subject to proper approval
process and vesting conditions, share options can be granted
to senior executives and other employees of the Bank to reward
their performance and contribution, and as a means to retain

relevant senior executives or employees.
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(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk
Adjustment

The Group’s performance is evaluated based on the
achievement against a set of pre-determined business or
financial targets that are of broader and higher level nature, such
as profitability target, and supervisory rating assigned by the
HKMA, which were set at the beginning of the performance year.
The performance of a division in a year is determined by the Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive based on the actual performance
and achievement against a set of pre-determined objectives or
targets of the division for the year set at the beginning of the
year, contributions to the Group and other factors considered
relevant for assessing performance. For business divisions, the
pre-determined targets normally include return on allocated
capital and business growth targets. Individual employees’
performance measures include assessable financial (e.g.
revenue, profits, costs, customer base, etc.) and non-financial
factors (e.g. competence, adherence to risk management
policies, compliance with legal, regulatory and ethical
standards, etc.).

Within the risk-based remuneration framework operated by the
Group, GRD performs assessment of the Group’s risk profile
which takes into account major risks such as credit risk, market
and interest rate risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. In
aligning the remuneration of employees with the performance
of the business units or support functions to which they belong
and the risks taken on by the Group, both quantitative and
qualitative risk-adjusted measures are adopted by the Group.
Examples of the quantitative risk-adjusted measures applied
include risk-adjusted return on capital and liquidity costs.

GRD has the responsibilities of managing different types of risk
and maintaining a sound risk management system to enable
the Group to achieve its objectives, which include achieving
proper risk and return balance for the Group and its major
lines of business. The Head of GRD has access to the EC and
reports functionally to the board-level RMCC chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and administratively to the
Chief Executive.
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)
(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

Based on the Group’s performance against the pre-determined
targets set at the beginning of the year, long-term performance
and affordability of the Group as well as other relevant internal
and external factors, the Chief Executive proposes a preliminary
amount of total performance bonus for the year and allocation

considerations.

GRD provides an annual report to the RMCC, or on a more
frequent basis as appropriate, on the risk management
performance of the Group and for the purpose of remuneration
review. The GRD report will include but not limited to the
following:

° any significant changes in the risk profile of the Group
during the year;

o any significant improvement or deterioration in the system

of internal controls;

° any significant deterioration or concerns about the
external economic environment that could have potential
adverse impact to the Bank’s businesses and financial
performance;

o any significant concerns raised by regulatory authorities;

° any events that caused significant damage to the
reputation of the Group; and

° specific business or risk actions taken to help mitigate risk
or improve revenue (risk adjusted or justified), or actions
which are considered to have contributed to the long-term
success or values of the Group.

On the basis of its review, the Head of GRD can provide
comment or recommendation to RMCC if any specific factor
or adjustment needs to be considered in determining the
performance bonus pool for the year based on the qualitative
measures as listed above. The Chairman of the Group, in
consultation with the NRC if necessary, has the discretion and
flexibility to withhold all or part of the provisionally accrued

bonus amount when circumstances warrant.
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(d)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

The approved performance bonus pool for the performance
year is allocated to divisions based on the relative contribution
of different divisions, their staff profile as well as consideration
of applicable factors, including any input from the risk control
functions, and assessment of risk and return of the key
businesses. Once the respective performance bonus pool of
a division has been determined, the division head will decide
the bonus payments for individual employees taking into
consideration their individual performance and contribution,
internal relativity, the prevailing bonus distribution guideline and
available budget.

(iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria

The proportion of variable remuneration to be deferred varies
from one employee to another and depends on a series of
factors including the employee’s seniority, his or her roles,
responsibilities and activities within the Group, the time horizons
of the risks incurred by such activities and the overall level of the
employee’s variable remuneration both in absolute terms and as
a proportion of his or her fixed pay.

Starting the 2010 performance year, a minimum vesting period
for any deferred variable remuneration for the Bank’s Senior
Management is adopted so that the deferred remuneration
will only be vested and released to the awardees with due
consideration of fulfilling vesting conditions. These pre-defined
vesting conditions, depending on the level of the seniority of the
Senior Management and key roles assumed by each, normally
include factors such as the nature of the business outcomes
and risk arising from the activities undertaken by relevant
Senior Management in the past, the timeframe during which
the risks from these activities are likely to be realised, and the
assessment from risk control functions on the Bank’s internal
control, risk management and compliance performance. The
vesting of the deferred bonus over a period of years is gradual
and no faster than on a pro-rata basis, subject to fulfiiment and
validation of the pre-defined performance conditions. For the
deferred cash bonus under the 2015 performance incentive
bonus to be awarded to Senior Management in March 2016,
the maximum deferment period is no less than three years from
March 2016.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. FENFIE @ 9. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

(T) %ML @ (d) Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(i)  BEREBR KA TR (&) (iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria (Continued)
ETHERT  @nEREF2IELTE A “claw-back” mechanism is applied in respect of any unvested
ENEENELA TR ] #H) : () REKIE TIE deferred variable remuneration if (i) the vesting conditions
B () RBFTEMRBECEIBEEREER are not fulfilled; (i) performance measurement was based on
BRFESR AR IR 5 (i) (& 5l B T HGreF SRk data which is later proven to have been manifestly misstated;
TTEMBETA  S(iv) B TEREE KA (iii) fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the individual
BEPRER o employee; or (iv) major violations by the employee of internal

control policies.

BRSNS (AnE R BMIE SR ) 4 0 ET Departure of employees will not trigger early payout of deferred
EEEANBERE TS B IR R T SHREHEN - remuneration that is still within the deferment period other than
in exceptional cases, such as on compassionate grounds.

(R) EEEEAS 2 (e) Remuneration for the Senior Management

TRHFI|RBEBESE RBEM2(EEBEERFM The tables below summarise the aggregate quantitative information
CG-5[ REFMTIE S]] FIRE 2 ARRIT=E on the remuneration for the Bank’s Senior Management as defined in
EEAETMNESERIRE - accordance with the SPM CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System” issued by the HKMA.

(1) FoWEw (1) Remuneration Structure
2015 2014
ZHEAHE X AEE
HEZ12A31H For the year ended %] Number of k-] Number of
LLEE 31 December Amount Beneficiaries Amount  Beneficiaries
(& £ 5 Fixed remuneration 43,568 9 44,112 9
FEEM (BENUT ) Variable remuneration
PR 2 EE ST ) (including deferred remuneration

as shown in (2) below) 71,531 9 62,530 8
BEEFHMEZFBFMRE BN RERMK The fixed and variable remuneration were paid and payable in
5 o S 8 S B BARR 19 IR AR D AB R 2 T A SZ cash. No remuneration in the form of shares and share-linked
i o instruments were given.
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

9. HMFE @ 9. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

(R) BBREEBAEZ2HM @) (e) Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)
2) EEEFB (2) Deferred Remuneration
H2010F 8 » IR & /2B FH A —20 5 (Bliz Starting 2010, a portion of the cash variable remuneration,
SEEBAEBNBEZREMETZRE being the performance incentive bonus awarded to members of
HRE) RNBELEEAL 2 AT o IEESEAL Senior Management for their performance in each year, is paid
B 32 3 2 BR A B T Il S ) BB 4R TR T or payable in the form of deferred cash bonus. The payment
A2 FEEIFANKEZEZ - T H of deferred bonus is subject to vesting and performance
EZERIEREELFTE  WAFAEERESR review in the 3 years immediately following the year when the
RFEMEZESBHRIEERTAEE - & deferred bonus is awarded. Vesting factors and terms are pre-
JETEALIR T 12 8 3FHARA LA E1EE 2 determined, and are subject to the review and approval of the
FELREI - Group’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If vested,

the deferred bonus will be paid by 3 equal annual installments
over the 3-year period.

I 7 557 B
Deferred
Remuneration

2015 2014
REFE12A31H K Balance at 31 December of the
®1 A1 B z&#% preceding year and at 1 January 43,453 37,143
HE12A31HILEFE : For the year ended 31 December:
BT &58 Awarded 19,422 17,058
BT KA Vested and paid (12,326) (10,370)
HRREEEASERMEUE 2 25 Cancelled due to resignation of
members of Senior Management - (878)
M®12 A31 Bz &% Balance at 31 December 50,549 43,453
R2016F 3 AR T M ZIBEEIEAL (IR The total value of the deferred cash bonus to be vested and payable
NmERAEE N TRTELERTEZE TR in March 2016, subject to satisfying performance review and fulfilment
) - H4A%8 414,690,000 T30 B B FEE of pre-determined vesting conditions, amounts to HK$14,690,000,
3201512 A31 B 2 &5 A © mEkF which is included in the above balance as at 31 December 2015. The
FEFEBEE A 12,326,000 78 T30 2 B 3EFE corresponding amount for last year included in the above balance as
FR 201412 A 31 B Z &8 A © at 31 December 2014 was HK$12,326,000.

232 AFRITER AT | 20155 E3R



BAHFBITARABRER
(REEZMA L2 R E])

Az A (VAT T8 F A D BB IERE17TE
190 E AFNRITAR AR (AT EE [ERT]) &
HMB AR (558 [ E5E ) 2R WEHRE « Ut
GAPKBRRBIENR 2015512 A 31 BNGE Y
BRREZEBHEZ B IEFENGEREER K6
2ERGEE - e BaZBRRGARENELH
BX  UREFZESHABERBEREMMFREE
e

ESRGaMBERRARENER

BRTESAARREBTESHTMASRMNE
BB IS R R BB R RGP DR E G A
B#ER  UeHEEMBRRELEEMAFHR
R REEERAREGAMBHREALUENA
BRIES - AESFE M B RE T FEBAREERE
RMEHH B ARERERAL -

BB ERE

BN EERRERMINBAHZEFRA M ER
RIELEBR - WIRREECR AHEDI)EE 405 5(E
FEERRES  RUIEZIABERERLMLE
B BRI ERABRENARAEMEMLALE
ESOREEREE -

BMEREBEEE SRS RMAOFTEBET LR
EITER - ZFERNERBMETERRE - A
HREIRATES  UAERTEAAMBRERRS
PrEEEAREREL -

AR GRS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 17 to
190, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2015

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

233



234

VR Gl
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

41T Branch #h3k Address B Tel BE Fax
RHFBTERAT

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

BEBBDT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEEFDT BB AT 20557

Aberdeen 20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen 2554 5463 2554 0843
SEEER VDT BRE18EET LES 2 105k

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 3110 1886 3110 2818

No. 18 Harcourt Road

$HiRE D 1T 3% S B 58 482 5%

Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037

FED T EEBER 19 IR T AR

Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

BEILDTT 238 293-299 SR IiE = AE M T~ 15-22 5% & [ i &

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

ELITEDTT HLITE 108 S RFT R AL O T BSR4

Gloucester Road Shop B, G/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654

S 4T S ERFET 13 R B AEM AR

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, 2572 0708 2572 0718
Happy Valley

BHIEWD1T SETE R TR AT 100 SR A TE TR B IE M T G59 5%

Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing 2558 7485 2889 2520
Tai Road, Chaiwan

HTBEDT B 2B 164 5%

Johnston Road 164, Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743

Bl 51T TRIEE 2B T A2RA R 1EASR

Kennedy Town Shop A2, G/F, & Unit A, 1/F, Man Kwong Court, 12 Smithfield Road 3101 3883 2960 0790

tAS1T 238 433-437 SRR AE

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BEEHIT LEEE57-87 i AL IEM T G8 5

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AREEDT SRANET443-453 55 T 15-16 554

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

ERH1T FIRTEEHE 288 5 S EAEM T B2 R E—EBE

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 2581 2216

REF DT RE A 1 SR B A 501 5k 4

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing 2884 4802 2884 3151

Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB D

44T Branch it Address B Tel & HE Fax

RETRITHRA A

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEDT

Kowloon Branches

REHDT BEREF 105 AR

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 2191 8103 2191 8723

AWD1T ATEDRET 28 SRS EEIM T 3 45548 12 2554 R 2 1Z 3554

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop 2365 8110 2363 5917

No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EB D 1T R E 335 5%

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 2385 0161 2782 0993

BUES1T BERZEASFELTR O T 7-9 555

Kwun Tong Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, 2389 3911 2389 8239

Kwun Tong

BEHT REEM %= ES—1E 1101 & 1102548

Lok Fu Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom 2337 6300 2337 6922

EZHWAIT FEF U A AR FE 10A T~ N26E & F 5= 47

Mei Foo Sun Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V, 2370 2660 2370 2006
Chuen Mei Foo Sun Chuen

HADT HE A 8 2UE 697 5%

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 2391 9104

AR 21T KRR A 124 55 T

Shamshuipo G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo 2361 0951 2958 0985

EREEDT NEEEERES — B 22 F5A-F6A 5

Telford Gardens Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

TIES 1T 4T85 245B [ 247 S =SB E 2 Bty

Tokwawan G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase Il, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road 2365 9035 2363 5696

BERD 1T 15 5 B (£ 47 9 5% PopCorn i& 351t T B G58 5 i i

Tseung Kwan O Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O 2752 1223 2752 1098

# E R A BT AN A 0SB = HA— 12 127 548
FEE AP ODIT

Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza Ill, Tseung Kwan O 2927 2101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza

RWBHIT SR IBBHIE 66-T0 & HAE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 2311 1491
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

44T Branch it Address T Tel & HE Fax

RETRITHRA A

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEDTT

Kowloon Branches

BEXRLD1T =ANIEEE 103 5= AU s~ G3C Sk iR

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

JBR i 3t 53 4T B i3 5 2B 561 5%

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285

HREDT

New Territories Branches

BEDT ORELS FEATT SRS PR ES 118 116 5%

Kwai Fong Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate, 2487 8033 2489 1253
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

BRLESDT B8 LI 7R BE 608 5% 55 3% 1L &35 — 12 335 5 4

Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan

BEREWD AT K E AR 33 57 & K 108 D-E 5 #

Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 2435 1368 2435 1582

BB DT P95 2R 5 168-236 5% /88 11 [ 93-95 5k 4

Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130

PHEAT YO HAFE AR O T 9 S

Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 2601 2413

WRES AT &Y IEE 288 H i T

Sha Tsui Road G/F, No. 288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 2615 1510 2615 1099

FXkH1T KT B 55-59 SR IKERIEHE T B S5

Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 26715030 2672 1533

REHT AL REE A RAEISH T 53 5% & 54 55 i

Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637

RESTT YA K [El3E 55-56 SRFEIE AT 14-18 SR 2 LB N 1 N 2574

Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 2691 1272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
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DITIER

LISTS OF BRANCHES

44T Branch

ik Address

B Tel

& HE Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

MREDT

New Territories Branches

RAKERIT
Tin Shui Wai

BT
Tsuen Wan

BRA1T
Tuen Mun

FORDT
Tung Chung

BEDT

Fanling

B WEDT

Yuen Long Castle

Peak Road

TURARIKEIR B 1T 3 SR KA S0 REX 4% 148 L120 574

Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,

Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai, Yuen Long
ZERE14-16 R EEKRE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan
TP E B 52-62 SR B FEIEH T 4 5% & 5554

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

R | 1) 5RO BE SR AT 1 5% SR AR E MY T 23 54
Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

By%a A F1EE 88 SRAEEE S T A11-A14 K2 110-112 575

Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

TLRAE L AR TTBAER 162-168 SRHE S 124 T C 5kl

Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2448 9112

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522
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LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

B DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB DSB

44T Branch

ik Address

T Tel

RAEERITROBRAF

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

B9 1T

Macau Branches

RERLT /& A 5 B8 572 5%

Main Branch Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572 (853) 8791 0000
REST LIRS 4357 B

Almirante Lacerda

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B

(853) 2831 6191

BHBRDIT EPIRE 5818 K5 ¥ 30-30E 5%
Areia Preta Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, Nos. 30-30E (853) 2837 8262
STEST SRS TE A S B 53-59 5Rih iR+ 58T AB,D

Horta e Costa

Avenida Horta e Costa, Nos. 53-59, R/C,
Edf. Grand Oceania, Lojas A,B,D.

(853) 2821 6523

BEHT EPRGETIREENIE 13 BB N A

Kin Wa Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N, (853) 2845 0759
Edf. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

B 51T A A 40-42 5 At

Mercadores Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

EHN1T R 415 315-363 SR B Z FIFR O\ttt N O 4

Nape Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpc¢éao, Nos. 315-363, (853) 2872 2515
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

BEE DT & 2T 4-6 5%

Palha Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

AT ASAT BT 0 2953

Ponte e Horta

DRAST
Ribeira do Patane

Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29

E=ITHR &4 402 9%
Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C

(853) 2837 8704

(853) 2895 2942

Blla 1T BB E -+ — MRS 18 E“CC” &
Toi San Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N, (853) 2823 8483

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

wE ST

Taipa Branches

RFIEHRDIT

Prince Flower City

FRBAEAFEN — BB T I8

Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

rEs T K BRA G EREESIEE F i
Tak Fok Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden, (853) 2882 1308
R/C, Loja F, Taipa

BERDIT

Coloane Branch

BIBOIT KIRE S AT 9 %% D

Coloane Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D, Coloane (853) 2888 2374
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44T Branch

ik Address

B Tel

RERIT (FE) BRAF
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

BT RN # R R SR B% 5047 SR F 2 iRITAE 1618
Head Office 16/F, Ping An Bank Building, 5047 Shennan Dong Road, (86-755) 2519 9033

EINAEEZIT
Shenzhen Qianhai

Luo Hu District, Shenzhen

RYIT R IR e A TR S A2 20 (JLE) 4-7 BREHE 123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North), Industrial
Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

(86-755) 2238 5500

Sub-Branch
BM 21T BREEMNmBFER AR 604-2 5 KFRITAE 1 B
Guangzhou 2/Z 0158
Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2, (86-20) 8116 0888
North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
tEAT EETREREZILKS6E1EBE
Shanghai Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai (86-21) 2411 3388
MEDTT B mEEmAfESEILE 13658 1-2 /8
Nanchang 1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi  (86-791) 8688 7333
SEIA1T T ERE ST T R M [R AR AR 59 57
Zhenjiang 59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu (86-511) 8530 9999
LR 1T R & 35 1L Th FE e R A 8 B B 8 9k B B iR R B KA

Foshan Sub-Branch

1EE111 88 - 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-757) 8513 3555
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#R{THRAF)

36/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
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